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Meeting of the Joint, Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee on 13
FEBRUARY 2019 at 11am, in Conference Room 2, Police HQ,
Ripley.
AGENDA: Reports attached
ITEM SUBJECT
1
2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

Presented
by
CHAIR
ALL

3

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC
HELD ON 14 NOVEMBER 018

CHAIR

4

REVIEW OF ACTIONS

CHAIR

CORE BUSINESS
5

INTERNAL AUDIT

5A

Internal Audit Recommendations Monitoring

CHAIR

5B

Internal Audit Progress Report
a) GDPR
b) Core Financials
c) Recruitment
d) Follow up of Audit Recommendations

INTERNAL
AUDITOR

5C

Strategy for Internal Audit and Internal Audit Plan

INTERNAL
AUDITOR

6

EXTERNAL AUDIT

6A

External Audit Plan

6B

Audit Committee Briefing

7

RISK MANAGEMENT

7A

None

8

INTERNAL CONTROL AND GOVERNANCE

8A

HMIC VfM Profiles - VERBAL

8B

EU Exit Preparations

8C

Update on Workplace Inspections

EXTERNAL
AUDITOR
EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

SIMON ALLSOP
CONSTABULARY
SIMON ALLSOP

9

FINANCIAL REPORTING

9A

Summary of Revenue Budget and Precept
Process 2019/20

SIMON ALLSOP/
ANDREW DALE

9B

Year End Accounting Arrangements & Accounting
Policies

SIMON ALLSOP/
ANDREW DALE

10

JARAC GOVERNANCE
None
END OF THE PUBLIC MEETING

CLOSED SESSION
None
DEVELOPMENT
D1

Briefing on the Police Funding settlement for
2019/20 (including police pension financial
implications)

ANDREW DALE /
SIMON ALLSOP

Copies of the following for members (ONLY)
included in the pack (in addition to the Annex
at Agenda Item 9A):

D2

D3

• Capital Report
• Reserves Strategy
Feedback from Chair on the Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA)
Feedback from Chair/Deputy Chair on the two day
risk Seminar

CHAIR

CHAIR/DEPUTY
CHAIR
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MINUTES of a meeting of the JOINT AUDIT, RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
held in the Old Reception Room, Police HQ on 14 NOVEMBER 2018
PRESENT
Ms S Sunderland (in the Chair)
Mr L Harrold
Mr D Morgan
OPCC Present:
DPCC Gillott, Mr A Dale, Mr D Peet, Mrs L Kelly
Constabulary Present: Mr A Allsop, DCC Knighton
Internal Audit:
Mark Lunn
External Audit:
Hassan Rohimum

47/18

APOLOGIES
47.1

48/18

Ms A Joynes, Mr A Jenkinson, Brian Welch, Andrew Cardoza
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

48.1

No declarations declared.

RESOLVED:
1.
To note that no members declared any personal or prejudicial interests.
49/18

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JARAC HELD ON 26 JULY
2018
49.1

The minutes were noted and confirmed by the Committee.

RESOLVED:
1.
The Minutes of the meeting of the JARAC held on 26 July 2018 were
confirmed as a true record by the Committee.
50/18

REVIEW OF ACTIONS
50.1

Members commented that the one action around anti-fraud and
corruption had been added to the forward plan so it was agreed that
this action be removed.

RESOLVED:
1.
The actions and updates were noted.

1
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51/18

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Chair advised that Appendix B (Recruitment) was being withdrawn from the
Agenda. Questions had been raised by members prior to the meeting and the Head
of HR had submitted evidence to mitigate the query. This will now be re-visited and
verified by Internal Audit and therefore re-submitted and presented to the Committee
in February.
51.1 Mr Lunn presented the Internal Audit report as attached at Annex A and
provided an overview of the summary of work to date as detailed on
page 2 of the report. Mr Lunn highlighted that the Collaboration Internal
Audit Plan had been issued as a draft as of 6 November.
51.2 The Procurement report was attached at Appendix A. Satisfactory
assurance was given with three priority 2 recommendations which were
noted.
51.3 The Divisional Regulatory Checks attached at Appendix C was noted
and members queried the need to receive this report twice per year. It
was agreed that Internal Audit consider the risks and review the
frequency and/or necessity of continuing with the Audit. Mr Lunn agreed
to put this forward as part of the planning process for next year.
51.4 The Code of Corporate Governance report was attached at Appendix
D.
Satisfactory assurance was given with two priority 2
recommendations which were noted.
RESOLVED:
1. The Committee took assurance that the internal audit plan addresses
relevant matters and is being delivered as expected, as detailed in the
progress report.
2. The committee took assurance that the controls upon which the
organisation relies to manage the functions detailed below are suitably
designed, consistently applied and effective:
Procurement (Appendix A)
Divisional Regulatory Checks (Appendix C)
Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix D).
52/18

INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING
52.1 The monitoring of Internal Audit recommendations was tabled at the
meeting and provided an update on progress made toward
recommendations.
52.2 Members welcomed the inclusion of this monitoring document as did
Andrew Dale who advised that this would be used internally also.

2
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52.3 Members noted the update at 1(a) (Payroll) and queried the lengthy
delay of 18 months in actioning this recommendation. Mr Allsop was
able to advise that the ‘go live’ date for the new payroll system is now
26 November, 2018 and Mr Allsop advised that he would speak with the
Head of Finance to ensure that the Expenses Module can be
progressed quickly.
52.4 Members noted the response and the reasons for the delay however,
they urged that for the future, when agreeing implementation dates,
consideration should be given to an interim solution if there is likely to
be a lengthy delay in meeting the recommendation.
52.5 Members queried why there was an omission of the six priority 2
recommendations from the Health and Safety report received at the last
meeting. Mr Dale was able to reassure members that this was an
oversight and the monitoring record will be fully updated for the next
meeting.
To provide members with reassurance on these
recommendations it was noted that an update on the Health and Safety
recommendations will be provided later on the agenda at item 7A.
52.6 To ensure this remains a ‘living document’ members requested that
after an action has been deemed as complete the text then be shown
as black with any updates remaining in red text. All updates to remain
on the monitoring form until the Internal Audit follow up at which time
these can be archived. This was agreed by all.
52.7 All updates are provided by the action owner, but to provide further
reassurance to members, Mr Dale advised that both he and Mr Allsop
sign off and validate each action prior to the meeting.
RESOLVED
1.
The progress on audit recommendations was noted.
53/18

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
53.1

The Annual Audit letter was attached to the report at Appendix A. The
Letter confirmed that a certificate was issued confirming that the
2017/18 audits of the PCCs and CCs financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 an the Code of Audit Practice had concluded. There were no
recommendations made as a result of the 2017/18 work.

53.2 Thanks were extended to Mr Neaves and the team for their excellent
work in achieving this, which it was acknowledged was an outstanding
Letter with no concerns. Thanks were also extended to KPMG for
helping to get the accounts ready and the Chair had sent a personal
email to the outgoing External Auditor.

3
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RESOLVED:
1. The Annual Audit Letter for 2017/18 was received and assurance was
taken that once again the arrangements by Derbyshire police for financial
reporting, value for money and external reporting were satisfactory.
2. The Committee noted that the Commissioner and the Chief Constable will
receive the Annual Audit letter for 2017/18 at the Strategic Priorities
Assurance Board meeting on 26 November 2018.
54/18

AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING
54.1 The External Auditor provided an overview of the Committee Briefing
document which is produced to support and inform the Police sector on
wider matters of potential interest.
54.2 The Briefing was welcomed by members and the Chair advised that
members had requested a briefing on each of the key questions
outlined on page 10.
54.3 The Chair welcomed Mr Rohimum to meeting as the incoming External
Auditor. Ms Sunderland commended Derbyshire as a low risk Force and
highlighted the need for close working relationships which was
encouraged moving forward. Mr Allsop advised that the EY also audit
the Fire Service and the LLP which will be helpful in fostering good
relations.
54.4 Mr Dale highlighted that a meeting is taking place between EY, Mr
Allsop and Mr Dale next week and he hoped to get early sight of any
potential differences in opinion on how the accounts are prepared –
thus not creating any additional pressure at the year end.
54.5 Ms Sunderland referred to the Briefing document highlighting Brexit and
other emerging issues which can be pushed forward ahead of time. It
was agreed that an update on Brexit be prepared for the next meeting
of the JARAC in February.
54.6 It was agreed that the next meeting of the JARAC (13 FEBRUARY)
include the following pre-meetings:
Member pre-meeting at 09:00 (MEMBERS ONLY)
Meeting with External Auditors: 09:40 – 10:10
(MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL AUDIT ONLY)
Meeting with Internal Auditors: 10:15 – 10:45
(MEMBERS AND INTERNAL AUDIT ONLY)
RESOLVED:
1.
The Committee Briefing document was received.
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55/18

FORCE RISK MANAGEMENT

55.1 Mr Allsop presented the report and highlighted the following:
55.2 High Risk Properties – it was noted that this risk score had risen. Mr
Allsop advised that this will be reported to the next Health & Safety
meeting and is also being monitored by Business Continuity. It is
hoped that an update will be provided to the JARAC in due course.
55.3 Adverse Incidents in Custody due to Physical Condition. This was
noted as a new risk which had arisen following a HMICFRS Inspection.
Mr Allsop advised that the issues identified had been addressed
immediately and Chesterfield Custody Suite is being upgraded.
55.4 Loss of Airwave through Handset Shortage. Airwave will cease by
2021 and there will be a need to procure an alternative. Members were
advised that this is not time critical and the Force will look to procure in
2019 with funding already set aside in the budget.
55.5 Mr Allsop added the financial risk of the Funding Settlement which may
be insufficient to meet Budgetary Requirements (STR1192).
55.6 It was also highlighted that a budget is being drafted on spending for
the future and this will be presented to the Strategic Priorities
Assurance Board in January.
55.7 Mr Allsop provided an update on the Health & Safety progress report
attached at Appendix A to the report.
55.8 The update on Workplace Inspections was noted and Mr Allsop advised
that a further update will be provided for the next meeting of the
JARAC.
55.9 Mr Allsop advised that the action at 3.4 (Communication of Health &
Safety) has now been signed off and the force will upload more material
onto the Force Intranet site.
55.10 Finally Mr Allsop was able to provide some assurance on the action at
3.8 as he advised that he is regularly updated on this area of work.
RESOLVED:
1.
Direct assurance was gained that this area of business is being
managed efficiently and effectively.

56/18

OPCC RISK MANAGEMENT
5
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56.1

Mr Dale presented the report highlighting to members that the OPCC
Risk Register is managed in tandem with the way the Force manage
risk and examined through the delivery of Strategic Objectives.

56.2 Mr Dale explained that text highlighted in yellow gives additional
information from the last update and he also highlighted that the risk
profiles have stayed constant since the last report.
56.3 There will be an update to Risk STR193 – ‘Diverse Communities’ as the
BAME Steering Group will be added as a control.
56.4 Mr Dale was happy to advise that the risk around partnerships was now
being mitigated with the inclusion of a newly recruited Policy and
Partnerships Officer. Thanks were extended to Ms Connelly-Thompson
for her work undertaken to meet the audit recommendations.
56.5 Mr Dale added that risk is considered and discussed at all major
meetings and will be next discussed at the next Executive meeting.
56.6 The impact of Brexit has not been included on the OPCC Risk Register
as it is felt that this will be covered by the Force and as Mr Dale sits on
the Gold Group he can feed in from an OPCC perspective.
56.7 DCC Knighton provided an update on this years’ Force Risk Seminar
advising that the format will be different this year to last and the top 10
risks identified will remain and not be changed. Ms Sunderland advised
members that both she and Andrew Jenkinson (Vice Chair) will be
attending the seminar and will provide an update to other members.
56.8 Mr Harrold referred to the Committee Assurance Map and asked when
this would be reviewed. It was agreed that Ms Sunderland and Mr Dale
review this at their pre-meeting in January (15th) with a view to
presenting at the next meeting of the Committee in February (13th). It
was agreed that extra time be allocated to the pre-meeting to allow for
this review.
RESOLVED:
1.
The update on the OPCC Risk Register was noted.
57/18

VALUE FOR MONEY PROFILES - VERBAL
57.1

Mr Allsop advised that the Profiles are being reviewed by the Chief
Officer team to understand how this can be used for the future. Mr
Allsop provided some reassurance, stating that the headlines are
positive and a fuller update will provided to the next meeting of the
Committee in February.
RESOLVED:
6
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1.
58/18

The verbal update was noted.
UPDATE ON GDPR – VERBAL

58.1 Mr Peet provided an update advising that the Head of Compliance post
within the OPCC is currently vacant, he is therefore working closely with
Force colleagues to ensure the OPCC remain compliant.
58.2 Mr Peet further advised that there is currently an Internal Audit being
undertaken and the outcome will be briefed to the Committee in due
course. Mr Peet provided some reassurance by stating that he was not
aware of any issues. Further reassurance was provided by the DCC
who advised that equally, the Force is not aware of any issues.
RESOLVED:
1.
The verbal update was noted.
59/18

HMIC ACTIVITY
59.1 DCC Knighton presented the report which provided an overview of
HMICFRS activity over the past 12 months. The following was
highlighted and discussed:
59.2 Force Management System (FMS).
The Derbyshire FMS was
submitted in June 2018 and redacted version is available on the Force
website. Mr Peet added that the PCC is in discussion with HMI
Billingham to understand how we can work better with the Force
through the FMS for the future. Members queried if this will updated and
published annually and DCC Knighton was able to advise that there will
be a requirement to update and publish from 2019.
59.3 Joint Inspection of Derbyshire Custody Facilities. DCC Knighton
highlighted that there were a number of recommendations arising from
this inspection around ligature points, lack of updates to the Custody
record and better partnership working. A Gold Group was established
and lots of work has already taken place to address the areas of
concern. DCC Knighton also added that the HMICFRS did identify the
fact that Derbyshire had a positive culture within the Custody Suites.
59.4 Mr Peet added that there is currently additional work being undertaken
by the Derbyshire Custody Visiting Scheme which focusses on
vulnerabilities in Custody and picks up some of the areas of concern
highlighted by the HMICFRS. A report providing an update of this work
will be presented to the next meeting of the SPA Board.

RESOLVED:
7
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1.

60/18

Direct assurance was gained that this area of business is being
managed efficiently and effectively.
BRIEFING ON THE POLICE PENSIONS FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
AND DISCUSSION

60.1

Mr Dale provided an update on the Police Pensions Financial
Implications and referred to the appendices which set out the concerns
and the financial implications of the expected changes to Police
Pensions.

60.2 The significant financial implications were highlighted to members which
could see a liability in the region of £2.8m next year rising to over £6m
in 2020/21 onwards.
60.3 Mr Dale assured members that they would be kept abreast of
developments and members welcomed the information which may be
on the horizon for the future.
RESOLVED:
1.
To note the update.

8
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JOINT AUDIT, RISK AND ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
REVIEW OF ACTIONS
Agenda
Report Title and Action Required
Item
Meeting of the JARAC held on 14 November 2018
AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING
An update on Brexit be prepared for the next meeting of the JARAC in
February.

Responsible
Officer

Progress

SIMON
ALLSOP

On the agenda

FORCE RISK MANAGEMENT BRIEFING
An update on Workplace Inspections will be provided for the next meeting
of the JARAC.

SIMON
ALLSOP

On the agenda

ASSURANCE MAPPING
Ms Sunderland and Mr Dale review the Assurance Map at the pre-meeting
in January (15th) with a view to presenting at the next meeting of the
Committee in February (13th).

Review to take place
ANDREW
after the meeting of the
DALE / SUE
SUNDERLAND JARAC 13 February
2019

1
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JARAC – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION MONITORING
Contac
t

Last
update
d

Dan
Fern

Dec
2018

A Dale/
Jen CT

REF
NO.

Audit / Recommendation

Priori
ty

Agreed
Implemen
tation
Date

Recommendations
Manager
Manager
Confirmed
Confirme
Implementatio
d Not
n
Implemen
ted

Audit
Confirme
d
Implemen
ted

Comments

Update

1/2018
A

Payroll 2016/17
Expenses Policy – Derbyshire
The Force should review and
update the Expenses Policy to
ensure that all information in relation
to expenses is collated into one
formal document for completeness.
This should include guidance on
train journeys and first class travel.
This document should include an
author, date of issue, date of review
and all key guidance for expense
claims.

One recommendation raised – P2
P2
April
N/A
2017

Yes

N/A

Recommen
dation due
to
be
implemente
d
by
October
2018.

The expenses policy has been reviewed and
updated. However, it has not been implemented
as yet because it needs to incorporate changes
due to the impending electronic expenses
process. Electronic expenses has been put on
hold due to the change of payroll system being
delayed. As the system went live in November,
we are in the process of negotiating with the
supplier to establish when the expenses system
can be rolled out.

2/2018
2A

Partnerships 2016/17
Production of Partnership
Principles
A set of partnership principles
should be produced to complement
the business plan for delivering the
objectives within the Police and
Crime Plan. The business plan
should include a section for
partnership working which includes,
but not be limited to, the following:
•The priorities to be delivered;
•How partners will help to deliver the
priorities;
•When partnerships will be used;
What the roles and responsibilities
of partners are;
•How resources will be utilised in
partnerships; and
•The risk management processes

Four recommendations raised – P2
P2
Sept
N/A
Yes
2017

N/A

Recommen
dation due
to be
implemente
d by
September
2018.

Complete
A set of partnership principles has been
completed and reviewed by the Chief Executive
and Chief Finance Officer. It is scheduled to be
shared with the wider OPCC team at the next
meeting.
A Partnership Establishment Form has been
produced to guide representatives from the
OPCC embarking on a new partnership through
the mechanism for setting up, working with,
monitoring and evaluating collaborative working
and ensuring the partnership will directly
influence the strategic areas of the Police and
Crime Plan.
The information received from the Partnership
Review exercise will update the Delivery Plan for
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that are in place for partnerships.

2B

2C

Establishing the Partnership
Framework
An exercise should be conducted to
identify the current partnership
working arrangements in operation
and a map of the framework of
partnerships should be produced.
This should include the identification
of governance arrangements in
place to oversee partnership
working across work streams
helping to deliver the Police and
Crime Plan and the resources
currently utilised within these
partnerships.

P2

Annual Review of Partnerships
A formal annual review of
partnerships should take place to
confirm that they continue to be
appropriate and useful, that the
partnerships are being managed
effectively, that resources are being
appropriately utilised and that
results are being produced against
the strategic priorities.

P2

Upon production of the partnership

Sept
2017

Sept
2017

N/A

Yes - Partial

Yes

N/A

N/A

Yes Partial

Recommen
dation due
to be
implemente
d by
September
2018.

Partially
implemente
d.
Recommen
dation due
to be fully
implemente
d by
September
2018.

the OPCC and guide staff on future areas of
working. The Delivery Plan will be monitored and
updated alongside the Partnerships Review twice
annually and will be presented to SMT twice
annually.
Complete
A Partnership Review mapping exercise has
been carried out with all members of the OPCC
staff to establish an up to date baseline of
collaborative working involving the OPCC.
Where specific data has not been available; such
as the full membership details, or availability of
the Term of Reference, this has resulted in an
action for the newly appointed Policy &
Partnerships Officer to research missing data,
collate and review at the first bi-annual monitoring
meeting scheduled for December 2018.
The information will be updated with individual
members of the OPCC twice annually to ensure it
is constantly updated and monitored for best
practice and value for money, newly established
partnerships are added and partnerships which
have dissolved, concluded or the OPCC have
withdrawn from are noted.
Completed
Following the Partnerships Review and the
information received as part of this, the newlyappointed Policy & Partnerships Officer will
formally monitor each partnership arrangement
as part of the partnership and delivery plan
update meetings twice annually.
Included in this formal review will be updating
information on current working partnerships, their
impact and progress towards outcomes, newly-
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principles, these should also be
reviewed on an annual basis to
confirm that they remain relevant
and appropriate for the office.

A Dale
/ Dawn
R

3/2018

Victim Services 2017/18

3A

Referral System & Reconciliation
of Data
The OPCC should work with the
Force to document how Victims are
referred to services. This should
then be reviewed and updated to
ensure the referral system is
operating as intended.
The OPCC should ensure that all
potential referrals are captured on
Niche and can be reconciled to that
submitted to / acted upon by the
service providers.

formed partnership agreements and partnerships
which have subsequently been dissolved. These
reviews will be concluded by an annual briefing
report to the Chief Executive to be included in the
official OPCC Annual Report.

Four recommendations raised – three P2 and one P3. One P2
outstanding at last update:
P2
Sept
Yes - Partial
N/A
Yes Partially
2017
Partial
implemente
d.
Recommen
dation due
to be fully
implemente
d
by
September
2018.

The schedule for the monitoring of these
partnerships and how this fits in with the
monitoring of the delivery plan is attached.
A designated monitoring form has been devised
to ensure consistency across all information
collated and to prompt staff in ensuring certain
information is collated and available.
A review of the pain-points at the front end of the
referral system was completed early 2018, and
options to remedy the issues were discussed
between the Force and OPCC. A business case
proposing a new system of victim referral and
triage that both remedied the pain points and
increased the likelihood that victims would
consent to be referred to services, that complies
with GDPR was accepted by the Chief Constable
and PCC and is currently being implemented with
“go live” planned for January 2019. The business
case involves significant system/process change.
The new system will be monitored routinely every
quarter using a standard performance dashboard.
The PCC has developed a new method of
monitoring the uptake and impact of victim
services using a quarterly Victim Pack produced
by the OPCC. This now tells a clear story of the
proportionate referral and uptake of victims
services.
The business case for change includes a
systematic approach to checking that all victims
are given the opportunity to be referred to victim
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R
Poxon

10.01

4/2018
4A(1)

4A(2)

Procurement
Raising of Requisitions and
Purchase Orders
A reminder should be issued across
the Force to enforce the
requirement to raise requisitions for
all purchases which have not been
included on the approved list of
exemption and obtain quotes for
goods, works and services for
purchases over £5k and up to £25k
in accordance with Contract
Regulations.
It should also be ensured that
procurement are informed where
contracts are overspent so that a
contract variation can be completed.
Budget holders should be reminded
that purchase orders must be raised
for additional contract expenditure.

Three P2 recommendations raised.

P2

Immedia
te

service, and this recorded on NICHE directly, with
additional resource being placed on those victims
categorised as enhanced (Victim Code of
Practice defined).
This reminder will be issued week commencing
19Th November. This will then refer to the
updated list of order exemptions which is due to
be approved week commencing 12th November.
The reminder was delayed whilst the exemption
list was further refined. The reminder has now
been passed for publication along with an
updated summary of procurement procedures
for the new intranet

P2

Finance team will copy Procurement in when
overspends are identified

R
Poxon

10.01

4A(3)

The purchase order exemption list
should be reviewed to ensure that it
include all purchases exempt from
the purchase ordering process.

P2

The Purchase order exemption list has been
reviewed by the Head of Procurement. The list
should be approved by November 15th.
The exemption list is now finalised and
published.

D Fern

Dec
2018

4A(4)

Where invoices are received without
a purchase order number, before
processing, the invoice should be
verified to the purchase order
exemption list. Where the
expenditure type is not listed this
should be raised and addressed
with the service area.

P2

Implemented. A reminder has been sent to
relevant finance staff.
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R
Poxon

10.01

D Fern

Dec
2018

A Dale/
D Peet

09.01

Adherence to Procurement
Regulations
The Area of non-contracted spend
identified in this audit report should
be addressed to ensure compliance
with the Force Contract Regulations
and OJEU procurement rules.
Contract frameworks for categories
of spend should be considered
when Agresso spend analysis is
completed by the Procurement
team.

P2
P2

By 30
Novemb
er (and
underta
ken
every
couple
of
months)

4C

Segregation of Duties
Requisitioners and system
approvers should be reminded that
two people should be involved in the
raising and approving of requisitions
and invoices to ensure appropriate
segregation of duties are in place.

P2

Immedia
te

6/2018
6A

Code of Corporate Governance
Self Assessment Review
The Self-Assessment Matrix should
be completed to include the
evidence that demonstrates that the
OPCC and the Force are compliant
with each principle.
Where it is assessed that they are
non-compliant, actions for
improvement should be detailed,
assigned to relevant officers and
given a target date foe
implementation.
The matrix should be reviewed on a
quarterly basis with updates
provided on each action.

4B

Two significant recommendations
P2
January
2019

The items identified as non-compliant during the
audit have been added to the Procurement
pipeline.
Regular Spend Analysis
The November review has been completed with 3
items identified for investigation prior to a
Procurement plan being prepared.
The report to facilitate this review has been
automatically programme to run so will act as a
regular reminder to complete the work.
As above, this is now ‘business as usual’
Implemented. A reminder has been sent to
requisitioners and approvers.

On target for completion
CFO and CEO meeting before the end of January
to complete the work.
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Jen CT

8/1/19

Mark E

9/01

6B

Policy Review Log
Policy Review Logs for both the
Force and the OPCC should be
developed that enables the status of
the policies to be tracked. The log
should include, but not be limited to:
•
A list of all policies for
both the Force and the OPCC;
•The version number of the policy;
•The date of the last review;
•The due date of the next review;
•The officer responsible for review;
•The approving officer /committee;
•The monitoring checks to be
undertaken to confirm if the policy is
being applied correctly;
And
- Evidence of the monitoring checks
being completed.
The log should be held centrally and
updated on a monthly basis, with
each department submitting their
evidence for the updates.

7

Health & Safety
Workplace Inspections
The roles and responsibilities for
completion of workforce inspections
should be clearly stated, including
any delegations.
A centralised record of completed
workplace inspections should be
established and maintained to
ensure inspections are being
completed consistently and in
accordance with the Policy.
A workplace inspection procedure or
guidance should be should be

7A

P2

January
2019

Underway, Policy & Partnerships Officer provided
the OPCC Heads of Department with updates
required to ensure compliance with this action.
Currently on target for completion by January
2019

Septem
ber
2018

In relation to consistency and training of
workplace inspectors, the decision has been
taken that Health and Safety Advisors will carry
out annual inspections of all Force owned
premises. These inspections will be conducted
over a 12-month period with findings being fed
back into Divisional Committees at their regular
meetings.
To ensure a consistent approach is applied for
these inspections and reports a template has
been developed which will be used for future
inspections. The professional competency of the
Advisors will ensure that consistent approach is
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documented to ensure a correct and
consistent approach to inspections
is followed. This should be shared
throughout the Force.
The H&S Team should consider
running workplace inspection
training for the relevant officers to
ensure that staff carrying out the
inspections have the necessary
skills to do so.
Mark E

09.01

Mark E

09.01

7B

applied with regard identifying issues and
providing advice and guidance to rectify as
appropriate.
To enable demonstration that these inspections
take place, a programme has been developed
which will be completed with inspection dates and
any findings.

External Contractors
The external contractors on-site
monitoring framework should be
completed and include relevant
reporting requirements to provide
assurance over health and safety.
A H&S Team representative should
be included on the tender evaluation
panel for all contracts that includes
a health and safety element.
The sharing of health and safety
information between Assets and the
H&S Team should be formalised
and agreed to ensure that the
Health and Safety Section has an
appropriate amount of insight and
proactive monitoring of ongoing
works being completed by external
contractors.
A process to ensure the periodic
refresh of contractor due diligence
documentation should be
established, along with a contract
monitoring checklist to ensure
health and safety requirements are
continued to be met.

P2

Septem
ber
2018

A significant amount of work has taken place in
conjunction with Procurement in regard to
addressing the recommendation. A standard set
of questions have been developed and will be
included in the contractor selection element of the
tender process. In addition, Health and Safety
Advisors will assess the submissions of
contractors in relation to the answers provided to
these questions which will form part of the final
decision and selection process.
To assist on-site monitoring to take place a
template has been developed which will be
updated on a monthly basis with project
information including start date and frequency of
inspections. Frequency of inspections will be
determined upon the duration of the contract and
how they scored in the selection process.
To ensure the continued health and safety
requirements of those longer term contracts are
maintained (i.e. 5yrs) a process of due diligence
shall take place every 2yrs, whereby contractors
are requested to submit their most recent signed
Health and Safety Policy as well as confirmation
of continued compliance with a recognised
accreditation body (where applicable)

Strategy Objectives

P2

Decemb

The previous and current Health and Safety
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Mark E

09.01

7C

Progress towards each objective
should be monitored and reported at
both the Force H&S Committee and
the Strategic Governance Board in
accordance with the reporting
requirements as set out in the
Strategy.

7D

Accident/Injury Reporting
The H&S Team should ensure they
receive notifications of reportable
incidents.

er 2018

Strategies have been monitored and updates
provided to various forums on an annual basis,
however this did not meet what the documents
stated, i.e. provide updates on 6 monthly basis.
Progress of objectives for the 2018 – 2020
Strategy will be a standing agenda item on Force
Health and Safety Committees and will be
included in the SPAB reports provided to the
OPCC.
The 3 documents associated with accident
reporting have been reviewed and merged into
one Legislative Guidance document which now
reflects the upgraded reporting system. In
addition to this, to provide further guidance to
Investigators, with regard completing the report,
the step-by-step guidance has been updated to
provide information with regard completing the
section which details absence periods of the
injured person.
A robust system is already in place with regards
identifying incomplete reports which may affect
the ability of the Health and Safety section to
make timely reports to the HSE. Due to the
improved functionality of the injury on duty
reporting system, notifications are received by the
Health and Safety section when an incident is
reported and the system is far more user friendly
which means that the number of incomplete
reports has significantly reduced.
Information below details the training which is
delivered in terms of induction for new starters
and management training available within Force.
As can be seen there is very little, if any,
foundation level health and safety training
provided to all employees within the Force.
Induction
No formal induction package for new starters

P2

The H&S Team should review all
appropriate accident reports to
confirm there are no further ‘stuck’
cases in the system that require
reporting to the Health and Safety
Executive
Mark E

09.01

7E

Accident/Injury Reporting
Process
The Accident & Incident reporting
procedures should be updated to
ensure that key information is
captured that allows the Force to
ensure compliance with the
RIDDOR guidance.

P2

Septem
ber
2018

Mark E

09.01

7F

The Co-ordination of Health and
Safety Training
The H&S team should review all
mandatory and optional training
courses that staff are undertaking
for health and safety to ensure
these courses are appropriate.
The H&S Team should liaise with

P2

Decemb
er 2018
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the regional learning and
development unit to confirm what
elements of H&S are included within
training courses and provide the
Force with assurance over levels of
H&S training being received by the
workforce.
Information sharing regarding the
training courses provided and
completion dates should be
established to ensure that this can
be included in reports provided to
Divisional and Force Health and
safety Committees.

(Police Staff) is currently in place which would
include health and safety training requirements
such as Fire Safety, Display Screen Equipment,
Risk Assessment, Accident Reporting and
Manual Handling etc. Currently, student officers
receive basic health and safety training via the
NCALT portal during their term of training. Force
Operation Room new staffs receive a classroom
based induction session of basic health and
safety delivered by the H&S section when upon
request.
Management Training
Currently
the
Force
has
several
“Manager/Leadership” development programmes
that are delivered through EMCHRS Learning
and Development. These programmes are
aimed at leadership for PC to Sergeant and
Police Staff, and Leadership for Inspectors.
These programmes are split into five modules
and form part of the National Police Promotions
Network that, in conjunction with awarding
bodies, awards national qualifications.
There are no areas within the modules that look
at or deal with Health and Safety.
Mandatory Health and Safety Training
A regular programme of fire safety awareness
and display screen equipment training and risk
assessment is completed by all Officers and Staff
usually on a biennial basis.
Rates of completion for these two courses are fed
into Divisional Health and Safety Committee
meetings.
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COMMITTEE
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TITLE

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018/2019

REPORT BY BRIAN WELCH
DATE

13 FEBRUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1

To receive a progress report from the internal auditors on their work to date
during 2018/19

1.2

This report is in a format which includes each audit report in full as an Appendix,
rather than under separate reporting cover.

ATTACHMENTS
Progress Report (Annex A)
GDPR Review (Appendix A)
Core Financial Systems (Appendix B)
Recruitment (Appendix C)
Follow up of Audit Recommendations (Appendix D)

RECOMMENDATIONS
i. That the Committee takes assurance that the internal audit plan addresses relevant
matters and is being delivered as expected, as detailed in the progress report.

AGENDA ITEM 5B
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ii. It is recommended that the committee take assurance that the controls upon which
the organisation relies to manage the functions detailed below are suitably designed,
consistently applied and effective:
GDPR Review (Appendix A)
Core Financial Systems (Appendix B)
Recruitment (Appendix C)
Follow up of Audit Recommendations (Appendix D)

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Andrew Dale

Tel:

0300 122 6000

Email

pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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OVERVIEW
1.1 As part of the management of the internal audit process, a progress report is
provided to each meeting of the JARAC. Attached at APPENDIX A to this report is
the latest progress report dated JANUARY 2019.
1.2 Members are requested to review the covering progress report and each detailed
audit assignment.
1.3 The committee can consider if it can take assurance that the controls upon which
the organisation relies to manage each of the audit activities are suitably designed,
consistently applied and effective as detailed in each of the Appendices to the
report.
1.4 The report will be presented by a representative from Mazars. JARAC Members
will then have the opportunity to question the internal auditor.
1.5 There is an opportunity to review the content of the audit plan to ensure it continues
to be fit for purpose.
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ANNEX A TO AGENDA ITEM 5B
JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire
Police
Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19
January 2019

Presented to the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee meeting of: 13th February 2019
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01 Introduction
1.1

The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC) as to the progress in respect of the Operational Plan
for the year ended 31st March 2019 that was considered and approved by the JARAC at its meeting on 8th March 2018.

1.2

The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are responsible for ensuring that the organisations have proper internal control and
management systems in place. In order to do this, they must obtain assurance on the effectiveness of those systems throughout the year, and are
required to make a statement on the effectiveness of internal control within their annual report and financial statements.

1.3

Internal audit provides the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable with an independent and objective opinion on governance, risk
management and internal control and their effectiveness in achieving the organisations’ agreed objectives. Internal audit also has an independent
and objective advisory role to help line managers improve governance, risk management and internal control. The work of internal audit, culminating
in our annual opinion, forms a part of the OPCC and Forces’ overall assurance framework and assists in preparing an informed statement on internal
control.

1.4

Responsibility for a sound system of internal control rests with the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable and work performed by
internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all weaknesses which exist or all improvements which may be made. Effective implementation of
our recommendations makes an important contribution to the maintenance of reliable systems of internal control and governance.

1.5

Internal audit should not be relied upon to identify fraud or irregularity, although our procedures are designed so that any material irregularity has a
reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control will not necessarily be an effective safeguard against collusive fraud.

1.6

Our work is delivered is accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

1

02 Summary of internal audit work to date
2.1

We have issued three final reports in respect of the 2018/19 plan since the last progress report to the JARAC, these being in respect of Recruitment,
GDPR and the Core Financial Systems. Further details are provided in Appendix 1.
Derbyshire 2018/19 Audits

2.2

Report
Status

Assurance
Opinion

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Priority 2
(Significant)

Priority 3
Total
(Housekeeping)

Business Continuity – Followup

Final

Satisfactory

-

-

2

2

Health & Safety

Final

Satisfactory

-

6

2

8

Code of Governance

Final

Satisfactory

-

2

3

5

Recruitment

Final

Satisfactory

-

2

2

4

Regulatory Check – Visit 1

Final

N/A

-

-

-

0

Procurement

Final

Satisfactory

-

3

8

11

General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR)

Final

Satisfactory

1

-

4

5

Core Financial Systems

Final

Satisfactory

-

1

1

2

Total

1

14

22

37

Fieldwork in respect of Payroll, provided by Leicestershire Police, has been completed and the report will be issued shortly. The audits of IT Strategy
and Data Quality are due to be completed by the end of the quarter. Additionally, it was agreed that the second Regulatory Check would be cancelled,
with this being included in the Property Management audit which forms part of the draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20. Further details are provided in
Appendix 2.
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2.3

The 2018/19 Collaboration Internal Audit Plan is largely complete. Since the last progress report to the JARAC we have issued two draft reports, these
being in respect of Risk Management and Business Planning. Responses in respect of all three regional collaboration draft reports are being coordinated by a nominated OPCC Chief Finance Officer lead. Further details are provided in Appendix 2.
Collaboration Audits
2018/19
Strategic
Planning

Financial

Status

Assurance
Opinion

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Priority 2
(Significant)

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Total

Draft

Risk Management

Draft

Business Planning

Draft
Total

3

03 Performance
3.1

The following table details the Internal Audit Service performance for the year to date measured against the key performance indicators
that were set out within Audit Charter.
No

Indicator

Criteria

Performance

1

Annual report provided to the JARAC

As agreed with the Client Officer

Achieved

2

Annual Operational and Strategic Plans to the
JARAC

As agreed with the Client Officer

3

Progress report to the JARAC

7 working days prior to meeting.

Achieved

4

Issue of draft report

Within 10 working days of
completion of final exit meeting.

100% (8/8)

5

Issue of final report

Within 5 working days of
agreement of responses.

100% (8/8)

6

Follow-up of priority one recommendations

90% within four months. 100%
within six months.

7

Follow-up of other recommendations

100% within 12 months of date of
final report.

Achieved

8

Audit Brief to auditee

At least 10 working days prior to
commencement of fieldwork.

100% (9/9)

9

Customer satisfaction (measured by survey)

85% average satisfactory or above

100% (1/1)

Achieved

N/A
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Appendix A1 – Summary of Reports 2018/19
Below we provide brief outlines of the work carried out, a summary of our key findings raised and the assurance
opinions given in respect of the final reports issued since the last progress report in respect of the 2018/19
Internal Audit Plan:
General Data Protection Regulations
Assurance Opinion

Satisfactory

Recommendation Priorities
Priority 1 (Fundamental)

1

Priority 2 (Significant)

-

Priority 3 (Housekeeping)

4

The audit covered the following risks and objectives:
•

The Force has not sufficiently applied changes to data protection regulation;
o The Force has an action plan in place which addresses the key areas of GDPR and provided a clear
plan by which the force would be compliant.
o The Force has completed a ‘Privacy Impact Assessment’ on new systems or they form part of the
project life cycle.
o The Force undertook an exercise to map and understand the data which is collected and currently
stored, and this has been utilised to identify potential risks to compliance with GDPR. (N.B. does the
mapping include what data is held, where it came from and who it is shared with?)

•

The Force’s management and staff are unaware of the updated regulations, and their increased
responsibilities. how the organisation is structured to assess compliance against requirements;
o The Senior Management team were informed and made fully aware of the risks posed by the
implementation of the GDRP. (N.B. consider whether GDPR is identified as a risk on the Force’s risk
map, and whether the score can be justified)
o Those staff who handle data have received, training on the GDPR. (N.B. consider whether the training
relates to operational ‘day-to-day’ information handling)

•

The Force is non-compliant with the GDPR.
o The Force has identified a method of obtaining consent for the information collected by service users
internally such as HR etc. (N.B. if this is already in place, review a sample of transactions where
consent should be obtained and ensure there is a clear record of this consent).
o The Force is subject to the guidance on law enforcement processing and we will consider how the
force has applied this guidance internally.
o The Force has considered how best to communicate the changes in regulation to service users,
including the ‘right to erasure’.
o The Force has identified and appointed a ‘Data Protection Officer’, and the officer is suitably placed
within the organisation.
5

o The Force has identified how data can and should be deleted from all relevant systems.
o The Force has a clear process for the identification, review and reporting of a personal data breach,
which incorporates the updated 72-hour timescale to report the breach. (N.B. does the process
seem feasible in 72 hours?)
o The force has a clear subject access request policy in place and has dealt with requests appropriately
since the May GDPR deadline.
We raised one priority 1 recommendation of a fundamental nature that required addressing. This is set out
below:
The organisation should seek to complete the implementation of its action plan.
We acknowledge the approach being taken to update the Information Asset Register and this
should look to be completed as soon as is practical. It will require management commitment,
Recommendation adequate resource to implement and oversight of management to ensure it is implemented in
1
a timely manner.
We also acknowledge the ongoing drive to embed the process for completing the Data Privacy
Impact Assessments.
The force has an action plan in place, which continues to address key areas of GDPR, and
which provides a plan addressing compliance with new Data Protection guidance. This is
managed by the Deputy Data Protection Officer, provides a future direction, utilises a RAG risk
status for each point as well as identifying the compliance requirements (against the 12 step
ICO guidance), and action required.
Whilst good progress has been made it is noted there is a significant number of outstanding
actions remaining such as updating the Information Asset Register and embedding the process
for completing Privacy Impact Assessments.

Finding

Progress is reported regularly to the Data Protection Officer, but the plan currently lacks overall
governance oversight through a steering group or committee in the current structure.
The department is currently transitioning to a new independent structure and a more effective
governance process is planned. This will be established at both a strategic level but also an
information governance level to which the progress around the action plan will be reported and
monitored.
The plan provides a means of moving towards compliance and we acknowledge its aims.
Management acknowledge there is still progress to be made but the recognition of the
importance of GDPR is being expressed and is understood.

Response

Accepted.
September 2019

Timescale

Deputy DPO

We also raised four priority 3 recommendations of a more housekeeping nature. These are set out below:
• NCALT training should be formally relaunched following resolution of technical issues and completion rates reviewed.
• The Force should review multiskilling and succession planning requirements to avoid key single points of knowledge.
This should form the basis of an action as part of the action plan referenced above.
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• The organisation should keep resourcing levels in this area under regular review to limit the risk of future backlogs.
• The Terms of Reference for the Regional Data Protection meetings should be reviewed and updated, and all
members should engage with the process to ensure it represents an effective forum for all in the context of both Data
Protection, GDPR and wider Information Management.

Management confirmed that actions had either already been addressed or will be completed by December
2019.

Core Financial Systems
Assurance Opinion

Satisfactory

Recommendation Priorities
Priority 1 (Fundamental)

-

Priority 2 (Significant)

1

Priority 3 (Housekeeping)

1

Our audit considered the risks relating to the following areas under review:
• Clearly defined policies and/or procedures are not in place resulting in ineffective and inefficient
working practices.
• Systems and data entry restrictions are not in place which could lead to inappropriate access to the
systems and data.
• There are errors in accounting transactions posted on the General Ledger resulting in inaccurate
financial information.
• Inaccurate cash flow information regarding investments and borrowings is produced which could result
in inappropriate levels of cash held within the Force.
• The purchasing process is not complied with by staff which could lead to fraudulent transactions that
go undetected.
• An ineffective debt management process is in place which could lead to irrecoverable income and
inappropriate write off of debt.
In reviewing the above risks, our audit considered the following areas:
• General Ledger
• Cash, Bank and Treasury Management
• Payments and Creditors
• Income and Debtors
We raised one priority 2 recommendation where we believe there is scope for improvement within the control
environment. This is set out below:
•

Finance should ensure that investments stay within the approved thresholds by ensuring that calculations
are provisionally entered into the Investments Spreadsheet to calculate total exposure before being
agreed with a broker.

We also raised a priority 3 recommendation of a more housekeeping nature with regards clearing leavers from
the Agresso system.
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Management confirmed that actions had either already been addressed or will be completed by the end of
March 2019.

Recruitment
Assurance Opinion

Satisfactory

Recommendation Priorities
Priority 1 (Fundamental)

-

Priority 2 (Significant)

2

Priority 3 (Housekeeping)

2

Our audit considered the risks relating to the following control objectives:
• Policies and Procedures
• Recruitment
• Selection & Shortlisting
• Vetting & Pre-Employment Checks
• Job Offer
• Performance
We raised two priority 2 recommendations where we believe there is scope for improvement within the control
environment. These are set out below:
• Retained HR should carry out sample tests on candidates that have been recruited to give assurance that
the Service Centre are carrying out the process accordingly.
There should be further guidance provided within the Service Centre around the importance of the pre-offer
stage.
Guidance and refreshers should be provided to all staff involved in the recruitment process, emphasising
the importance of retaining documentation on e-recruitment.
• The Force should determine targets and performance standards which it expects of the Transactional
Services team. Following this, regular reporting should be carried out against this.
Performance reporting in respect of recruitment should be included as a regular item on the board reports.
We also raised two priority 3 recommendations of a more housekeeping nature with regards the reporting
functionality and the review of policies.
Management confirmed that actions had either already been addressed or will be completed by October 2019.
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Appendix A2 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
Auditable Area

Planned
Fieldwork
Date

Draft Report
Date

Final Report
Date

Target
JARAC

Comments

Core Financial Systems

Nov 2018

Dec 2018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Final report issued.

Payroll

Nov 2018

May 2019

Fieldwork completed.

Regulatory Checks – Visit 1

July 2018

Nov 2018

Final memo issued.

Core Assurance

Regulatory Checks – Visit 2

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

N/A

N/A

Deferred to 2019/20 and incorporated within
Property Management audit.

Code of Governance

June 2018

June 2018

Sept 2018

Nov 2018

Final report issued.

Procurement

Sept 2018

Sept 2014

Nov 2018

Nov 2018

Final report issued.

Information Technology - GDPR

Nov 2018

Dec 2018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Final report issued.

Business Continuity – Follow-up

April 2018

April 2018

April 2018

May 2018

Final report issued.

IT Strategy

Feb 2019

Recruitment

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Jan 2019

Feb 2019

Final report issued.

Health & Safety

May 2018

June 2018

June 2018

July 2018

Final report issued.

Data Quality

Mar 2019

Strategic & Operational Risk

May 2019

May 2019
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Auditable Area

Planned
Fieldwork
Date

Draft Report
Date

Risk Management

Aug 2018

Strategic Financial Planning

Final Report
Date

Target
JARAC

Comments

Nov 2018

May 2019

Draft report issued.

July 2018

Oct 2018

May 2019

Draft report issued.

Business Planning

Sept 2018

Jan 2019

May 2019

Draft report issued.

Review of Collaboration
Assurance Statements

May 2018

May 2018

July 2018

Final memo issued.

Projected Underspends

Feb 2019

May 2019

Additional request.

Collaboration

June 2018
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Appendix A3 – Definition of Assurances and Priorities
Definitions of Assurance Levels
Assurance Level

Adequacy of system
design

Effectiveness of
operating controls

Significant
Assurance:

There is a sound system
of internal control
designed to achieve the
Organisation’s objectives.

The control processes
tested are being
consistently applied.

Satisfactory
Assurance:

While there is a basically
sound system of internal
control, there are
weaknesses, which put
some of the
Organisation’s objectives
at risk.

There is evidence that
the level of noncompliance with some
of the control processes
may put some of the
Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance:

Weaknesses in the
system of internal
controls are such as to
put the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

The level of noncompliance puts the
Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

No Assurance

Control processes are
generally weak leaving
the processes/systems
open to significant error
or abuse.

Significant noncompliance with basic
control processes
leaves the
processes/systems
open to error or abuse.

Definitions of Recommendations
Priority

Description

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high
degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 2
(Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate
degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk.
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Appendix A4 - Contact Details

Contact Details
07552 007708
David Hoose
David.Hoose@Mazars.co.uk

07780 970200
Brian Welch
Brian.Welch@Mazars.co.uk
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A5 Statement of Responsibility

Status of our reports

The responsibility for maintaining internal control rests with management, with internal audit providing a
service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy of the
internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform testing on those controls to ensure
that they are operating for the period under review. We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a
reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone are not a
guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.
The contents of this report are confidential and not for distribution to anyone other than the Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police. Disclosure to third parties cannot be made
without the prior written consent of Mazars LLP.
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is
registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out company audit work.
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OPCC for Derbyshire & Derbyshire Police
Final Internal Audit Report
GDPR Review
February 2019
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Key Findings
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Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan

Appendices
A1 Audit Information
A2 Statement of Responsibility
If you should wish to discuss any aspect of this report, please contact Brian Welch, Senior Manager,
brian.welch@mazars.co.uk or David Hoose, Partner, david.hoose@mazars.co.uk

Status of our reports
This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and
Derbyshire Police and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters raised in this Report are
only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided
in this Report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided
and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that
exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.
The Report was prepared solely for the use and benefit of the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police
and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use
or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification.
Accordingly, any reliance placed on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any
third party is entirely at their own risk
Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility in Appendix A2 of this report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and
confidentiality.

01 Introduction

data, to rectify or erase information held about them, the right to be informed
and the right to be forgotten.

As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 for the Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire (OPCC) and Derbyshire Police, we have
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of the
response to General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) legislation. The aim
of the audit is to establish the level of GDPR processes and procedures in
place within the Force post the implementation date of May 25th 2018 and
where applicable will include testing from areas within the Force.

The changes brought about by the GDPR will undoubtedly have a significant
impact on all law enforcement organisations. Any law enforcement
organisation that operates within the EU, or that processes data on EU
citizens will be subject to the GDPR, regardless of where that information is
stored.

The audit identified the level of assurance which can be placed on the system
of controls and level of compliance with these controls in the area being
audited.
We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force during the
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.

02 Background
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) became legislation in the
UK on 25th May 2018. The UK government has confirmed that the UK’s
decision to leave the EU will have no impact to the enactment of the GDPR
within the UK.
The Data Protection Act 2018, being supplemented by the GDPR and
incorporating the Law Enforcement Directive, is designed to safeguard
European Union (EU) citizens’ personal data privacy rights. The GDPR will
affect all UK and European organisations and any country doing business
with any European Union (EU) state.
The GDPR gives individuals far greater control and rights over their personal
data in several ways including consent, the power to access their personal

GDPR will have a similar impact on technology tools that are used for
managing information within law enforcement, with those who act as data
controllers or data processors being required to comply with GDPR. Law
enforcement organisations must show that their systems, technology and
processes are fully GDPR compliant.
With severe non-compliance penalties of €20 million or 4% of worldwide
turnover, GDPR will make organisations fully accountable for their approach
to data compliance
Whilst there are significant financial penalties for failing to comply with GDPR,
the regulation also provides an important opportunity to improve the quality
of stored data.
To support compliance, law enforcement agencies need to identify where
information is held solely for law enforcement purposes, and whether this
data is held in systems that also hold personal data that is used for non-law
enforcement purposes. These two groups of data will need to be separated
and held independently of each other. This will avoid the possibility of crosscontamination of data.
In the realms of policing within the UK there have been several documented
incidents where police forces throughout the UK have found themselves
under scrutiny from the ICO and the courts.
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In Brown v Commissioner of Police for the Metropolis (2016) the Metropolitan
Police were successfully sued by one of their own officers, a detective
constable, for breaching personal data protection under the current Data
Protection Act 2018(DPA). The Metropolitan Police were alleged to have
abused their position using non-existent legislation (Police Act 2007) and
powers designated to investigate crime to obtain personal information about
their own colleague without consent.
The DPA sets out eight key principles, one of which states that any data that
is processed must be relevant to the purpose for which it is processed. Also,
and more importantly, the data must not be excessive in relation to
accomplishing that purpose. The points mentioned above were breached on
both counts.
These incidents are not few and far between but happen across the UK where
fines have been imposed by the ICO, and as a result, officers have either
resigned or been sacked for major breaches of data protection.
The impact of the GDPR needs to be at the forefront of policing where the
future of personal data protection is concerned for non-law enforcement
related purposes. Unlike the current DPA the GDPR introduces several
mandatory elements covering how data is accessed, used, processed and
removed within the UK.
The introduction of the requirement to keep certain mandatory records while
having to display a complete and comprehensive audit trail will increase
administration overheads for the Data Protection Officer together with the
data controllers and data processors.
The GDPR creates new rights for individuals while reinforcing the individual’s
rights that presently exist under the DPA:

•

•

•

•

•

•

The right to be informed - The right to be informed contains the
commitment to provide ‘fair processing information’, typically through
a privacy notice. It accentuates the demand for complete
transparency regarding how a business will use personal data.
The right of access - Under the GDPR, individuals will have the right
to acquire proof that their data is being processed. They will have
complete access to their personal data including any other additional
information. This matches the information that should be provided in
a privacy notice (Article 15). These are similar to the subject access
rights under the current Data Protection Act.
The right to rectification - Individuals will have the right to ensure that
businesses have personal data corrected if it is imprecise or not fully
complete. If a business has disclosed personal data to third parties,
the business must inform the third party of the rectification where
possible. Businesses must also inform individuals about the third
parties to whom their data has been given.
The right to erasure - The right to erasure is also known as ‘the right
to be forgotten.’ The dictum for the basis of this right is to allow an
individual to request the complete removal of their personal data
without the need for the individual to justify their actions.
The right to restrict processing - Under the DPA, individuals have a
right to quash the processing of personal data. The constraint of
operation is equivalent under the GDPR. When processing is limited,
a business is authorised to store the personal data, but not permitted
to use it for processing. The business however can keep just enough
information about the individual to warrant that the restriction is
respected in future.
The right to data portability - This permits the individual to acquire
and reconstitute their personal data for their own intentions spanning
many different services. It allows individuals to copy, transfer or move
personal data effortlessly from one technology environment to

OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police – GDPR Review – February 2019

Page 2

•

•
•
•

another in a guarded and protected way, without obstruction to
usability.
The right to object - Individuals have the right to object to specific
types of processing covering:
o Direct marketing (Only the right to object to direct marketing
is absolute. There is no need to demonstrate grounds for
objecting, no exemptions which allow processing to
continue);
o Processing based on legitimate interests or performance of
a task in the public interest/ exercise of official authority; and
o Processing for research or statistical purposes.
There are obligations to notify individuals of these rights at an early
stage – clearly and separately from other information
Online services must offer an automated method of objecting
Rights in relation to automated decision making and profiling - The
GDPR provides key safeguards for individuals against the risk that a
damaging decision is taken without any form of human intervention.
These rights work in a similar way to existing rights under the DPA.

03 Key Findings
Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls

Satisfactory Assurance
Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably
•

•
•
•
•
•

The force has an action plan in place following completion of a gap
analysis using ICO and National Police guidance. This continues to
address key areas of GDPR compliance, which provides a plan
addressing compliance with new Data Protection guidance. This is
managed by the Deputy Data Protection Officer and provides a clear path
towards compliance.
The plan utilises a RAG risk status for each point as well as identifying
the compliance requirements (against the 12 step ICO guidance), selfassessment, action required and due date.
The force has invited an ICO Audit in March 2019.
Clear roles involved in the process such as Data Protection Officer,
nominated deputy and Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) have been
identified and assigned.
Senior management were engaged with through a number of different
routes, including regular meetings with Head of Team, Deputy Chief
Constable (SIRO) and reports to strategic risk board.
The Data Protection Unit also has an ongoing Internal Communications
Strategy. This in addition to training and presentations also provided a
range of communications relating to Data Protection and GDPR
specifically between February and September 2018, both across the
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•
•
•
•

•
•

•

•

force but also targeted at key data processing and operational areas.
Risks associated with Data Protection and GDPR compliance are
recognised in departmental and corporate level risk registers.
The organisation has a defined process in place for completing Privacy
Impact Assessment which it is seeking to improve and embed further in
internal processes.
Data protection policies and data privacy policies are defined and
available both internally and via the force’s website. These are in line
with national guidance from both the ICO and national Police guidance.
The force has identified methods of obtaining consent in its Information
Asset Register (IAR) which is currently being updated. Standard data
collection forms in non-operational areas such as HR have been reviewed
and updated.
Specific requirements of the new act, including 'Right to erasure' are
included within the Data Protection and privacy policies with clear
identification of the process to be followed.
The force has a General Records Management Policy and a Review,
Retention and Disposal (RRD) Policy, both of which are currently under
review as highlighted by the action plan and following the recent
appointment of a new Records Manager.
The force’s procedures for investigating security or data breaches is well
defined and robust. We reviewed a sample of incidents, SIRT no 3564,
SIRT 3361, and SIRT 3554 and found they were reported, recorded and
investigated in line with the defined process.
The Force acknowledges and adopts the Information Commissioner’s
‘Subject Access Code of Practice’ when processing subject access
requests following a defined and consistent policy and procedure. The
Subject Access Request response process was inspected and noted to
be operating effectively with no backlog of requests at the time of the
audit.

Priority

Number of recommendations

1 (Fundamental)

1

2 (Significant)

-

3 (Housekeeping)

4

TOTAL

5

Sector Comparison
In comparison to audits conducted at each of the five East Midland’s regional
forces as well as other public sector organisations, we identified a number of
areas of concern including:
-

Completion of the GDPR action plan;
Completion of the Information Asset Register; and
The resource levels available for managing disclosure requests.

However, we do note this is similar to some of the other forces reviewed who
have similar actions to address and these challenges are not unique to
Derbyshire.
In terms of a direct comparison of the control environments of the East
Midlands forces reviewed we would rank the force joint 2nd out of 5. No
backlog of requests currently noted and resourcing to deal with disclosure
requests is in line with the average across all forces. We do note that
resourcing is an area which should be subject to regular monitoring to
address any future increase in request numbers.
There is a noticeable trend in the increase of both subject access requests
and security incidents across all forces. This could be attributed to increased
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awareness of both GDPR and data protection changes which have been
heavily reported in the media. But also, an increased awareness and
enforcement of policies supporting security incident reporting rather than
specific weaknesses identified.
Risk Management
Data Protection and GDPR itself is embedded within the ICT and Force Wide
Risk Management processes including recognition that some areas are
outstanding or requiring completion.
This coupled with regular management engagement does indicate that whilst
there are issues with current levels of compliance, that the organisation is
aware of some of the steps needed to address weaknesses in areas such as
action plans and resourcing.
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04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1.
We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, to
whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.
Observation/Risk

4.1

Recommendation

Implementation of Action Plan

The organisation should seek to
complete the implementation of its
Observation: The force has an action plan in place, action plan.
which continues to address key areas of GDPR, and
which provides a plan addressing compliance with new We acknowledge the approach being
Data Protection guidance. This is managed by the taken to update the Information Asset
Deputy Data Protection Officer, provides a future Register and this should look to be
direction, utilises a RAG risk status for each point as completed as soon as is practical. It
well as identifying the compliance requirements will require management commitment,
(against the 12 step ICO guidance), and action adequate resource to implement and
oversight of management to ensure it
required.
is implemented in a timely manner.
Whilst good progress has been made it is noted there
is a significant number of outstanding actions remaining
such as updating the Information Asset Register and
embedding the process for completing Privacy Impact
Assessments.

Priority

1

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Accepted.

September
2019
Deputy DPO

We also acknowledge the ongoing
drive to embed the process for
completing the Data Privacy Impact
Assessments.

Progress is reported regularly to the Data Protection
Officer, but the plan currently lacks overall governance
oversight through a steering group or committee in the
current structure.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Accepted.

Complete

The department is currently transitioning to a new
independent structure and a more effective governance
process is planned. This will be established at both a
strategic level but also an information governance level
to which the progress around the action plan will be
reported and monitored.
The plan provides a means of moving towards
compliance and we acknowledge its aims.
Management acknowledge there is still progress to be
made but the recognition of the importance of GDPR is
being expressed and is understood.
Risk: Failure to complete the outstanding plan items
leads to non-compliance, which potentially leads to
financial penalties.
4.2

Training

NCALT training should be formally
relaunched following resolution of
Observation: The Force has made use of the national technical issues and completion rates
NCALT training, but there have been some technical reviewed.
issues with the roll out of the training and the recording
of completion has meant that a full implementation has
been on hold.

3

Deputy DPO

It is understood these issues are near resolution and as
such we would advise a relaunch of the training and
monitoring of completion rates.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Accepted.

July 2019

Risk: Staff not effectively trained and aware of their
obligations resulting in inconsistent adherence to
processes and controls.
4.3

Succession Planning

The Force should review multiskilling
and
succession
planning
requirements to avoid key single
points of knowledge. This should form
the basis of an action as part of the
action plan referenced in 4.1 above.

3

The organisation should keep
resourcing levels in this area under
Observation: The organisation has 4.5 FTE staff regular review to limit the risk of future
involved in subject access and freedom of information backlogs.
disclosure requests.

3

Observation: There is considerable knowledge of Data
Protection, but some staff are approaching retirement
age and as such skills and knowledge needs to be
maintained. The team has taken an approach of
multiskilling, but succession planning should be
considered to ensure key knowledge is passed on to
other staff.

Deputy DPO

Risk: Key skills and knowledge lost on staff departure
or in staff absence resulting in inconsistent adherence
to processes and controls.
4.4

Subject Access Request Resources

Accepted.

Head of
Department,
Information
Management.

This ranks the force 2nd out of the 5 East Midlands
forces in available resource and also 3rd out of 5 in the
total number of disclosure requests.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Accepted.

July 2019

Whilst there was no current backlog of requests the
numbers of requests have increased year on year, and
this could potentially place a strain on the team should
there be a further increase.
Risk: The organisation has insufficient resources to
manage the demand for disclosures and may be at risk
of not achieving the statutory time limit.
4.5

Regional Data Protection Meetings
Observation: Lincolnshire’s Data Protection and
Freedom of Information Manager has recently taken
over the chair of the regional data protection meetings.
Given some of the general comments made about the
group during our audits we would suggest that:
- An opportunity is taken to review the terms of
reference for the group to ensure it represents what
everyone would most gain from such a meeting;
and
- To avoid potential off topic conversation and
reinvigorate group discussion.

The Terms of Reference for the
Regional Data Protection meetings
should be reviewed and updated, and
all members should engage with the
process to ensure it represents an
effective forum for all in the context of
both Data Protection, GDPR and
wider Information Management.

3

Chair of the
Regional Data
Protection
Group.

A similar recommendation has been made in all
regional reviews to encourage engagement.
Risk: Group discussions do not meet terms of reference
or provide an effective forum.
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A1 Audit Information
Audit Control Schedule
Client contacts:

Scope and Objectives
Abby Turner, Head of Information Management
Liane Dodd, Senior Compliance Officer

Internal Audit Team:

Brian Welch, Internal Audit Senior Manager
Neil Belton, IT Audit Manager

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting:

19th December 2018

Draft report issued:

21st December 2018

Management responses
received:

31st January 2019

Final report issued:

1st February 2019

The overall objective of this internal audit is to provide the Senior Management and Audit
Committee with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. We will review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the key controls relating to the GDPR processes within the Force and where
applicable our sample testing from all areas within the Force. The audit will cover the following
risks and objectives: •

The Force has not sufficiently applied changes to data protection regulation;
o
o
o

•

The Force has an action plan in place which addresses the key areas of GDPR and
provided a clear plan by which the force would be compliant.
The Force has completed a ‘Privacy Impact Assessment’ on new systems or they
form part of the project life cycle.
The Force undertook an exercise to map and understand the data which is collected
and currently stored, and this has been utilised to identify potential risks to
compliance with GDPR. (N.B. does the mapping include what data is held, where
it came from and who it is shared with?)

The Force’s management and staff are unaware of the updated regulations, and their
increased responsibilities. how the organisation is structured to assess compliance
against requirements;
o

o

The Senior Management team were informed and made fully aware of the risks
posed by the implementation of the GDRP. (N.B. consider whether GDPR is
identified as a risk on the Force’s risk map, and whether the score can be justified)
Those staff who handle data have received, training on the GDPR. (N.B. consider
whether the training relates to operational ‘day-to-day’ information handling)
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•

The Force is non-compliant with the GDPR.
o

o
o
o
o
o

o

The Force has identified a method of obtaining consent for the information collected
by service users internally such as HR etc. (N.B. if this is already in place, review a
sample of transactions where consent should be obtained and ensure there is a
clear record of this consent).
The Force is subject to the guidance on law enforcement processing and we will
consider how the force has applied this guidance internally.
The Force has considered how best to communicate the changes in regulation to
service users, including the ‘right to erasure’.
The Force has identified and appointed a ‘Data Protection Officer’, and the officer
is suitably placed within the organisation.
The Force has identified how data can and should be deleted from all relevant
systems.
The Force has a clear process for the identification, review and reporting of a
personal data breach, which incorporates the updated 72-hour timescale to report
the breach. (N.B. does the process seem feasible in 72 hours?)
The force has a clear subject access request policy in place and has dealt with
requests appropriately since the May GDPR deadline.

Testing was carried out on a sample basis.
Our work does not provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud or provide an
absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not exist.
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Definitions of Assurance Levels
Assurance Level

Definitions of Recommendations

Adequacy of system
design

Effectiveness of
operating controls

There is a sound system
of internal control
designed to achieve the
Organisation’s
objectives.

The control processes
tested are being
consistently applied.

While there is a basically
sound system of internal
control, there are
weaknesses which put
some of the
Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

There is evidence that
the level of noncompliance with some
of the control
processes may put
some of the
Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

Limited
Assurance:

Weaknesses in the
system of internal
controls are such as to
put the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

The level of noncompliance puts the
Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

No Assurance

Control processes are
generally weak leaving
the processes/systems
open to significant error
or abuse.

Significant noncompliance with basic
control processes
leaves the
processes/systems
open to error or abuse.

Significant
Assurance:

Satisfactory
Assurance:

Priority

Description

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a
high degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 2
(Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a
moderate degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have
highlighted opportunities to implement a good or
better practice, to improve efficiency or further
reduce exposure to risk.
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A2 Statement of Responsibility
Status of our reports

The take
responsibility
for maintaining
withCommissioner
management,for
with
internal audit
providing a Police
serviceforto this
management
to enable
themon
to the
achieve
We
responsibility
to the Officeinternal
of the control
Police &rests
Crime
Derbyshire
and Derbyshire
report which
is prepared
basis
this
objective.
Specifically,
we
assess
the
adequacy
of
the
internal
control
arrangements
implemented
by
management
and
perform
testing
on
those
of the limitations set out below.
controls to ensure that they are operating for the period under review. We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of
The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests
detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone are not a guarantee that fraud, where existing, will be discovered.
with management, with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy
The effectiveness
contents of this
are confidential
not arrangements
for distribution implemented
to anyone other
than the Officeand
of the
Policesample
and Crime
Commissioner
for Derbyshire
and
of report
the system
of internal and
control
by management
perform
testing
on those controls
in the period
and Derbyshire
Police.
to an
third
partiesoncannot
be made
without
written
of Mazars LLP.
under
review with
a viewDisclosure
to providing
opinion
the extent
to which
risksthe
in prior
this area
areconsent
managed.
Mazars
the in
UKorder
firm of
an international
advisory and
accountancy
group. Mazars
LLP control
is registered
by the Institute
of Chartered
We
planLLP
our iswork
to Mazars,
ensure that
we have a reasonable
expectation
of detecting
significant
weaknesses.
However,
our procedures alone
Accountants
England
out company
audit work.in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity.
should not beinrelied
uponand
to Wales
identifytoallcarry
strengths
and weaknesses
Even sound systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement
of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full
impact before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the
application of sound management practices.
This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent
permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or reply for any reason whatsoever on
the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.
Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299.
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If you should wish to discuss any aspect of this report, please contact Brian Welch, Senior Manager,
brian.welch@mazars.co.uk or David Hoose, Partner, david.hoose@mazars.co.uk

Status of our reports
This report (“Report”) was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and
Derbyshire Police and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters raised in this Report are
only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information provided
in this Report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation provided
and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that
exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.
The Report was prepared solely for the use and benefit of the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police
and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use
or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification.
Accordingly, any reliance placed on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any
third party is entirely at their own risk
Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility in Appendix A2 of this report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and
confidentiality.

01 Introduction
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 for the Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police, we have
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of the
Core Financial Systems.
The specific areas that formed part of this review included: General Ledger,
Cash, Bank & Treasury Management, Payments & Creditors and Income &
Debtors. The Payroll element of Derbyshire’s Core Financial Systems is
covered in a separate audit.
We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force during the
review and are grateful for their assistance during the course of the audit.

02 Background
The administration and management of the core financial function is the
responsibility of the Finance and Business Support team who are based at
the Police Headquarters in Ripley, with the operation being overseen by the
Head of Finance and Business Support. The Corporate Finance Manager
oversees the specific areas covered by this audit, with the Finance Support
Team dealing with day to day processing operations.
Derbyshire Police use the Agresso system to manage their General Ledger.
The system is modular in nature, with access levels and permitted user
controls embedded within the system with a number of system administrators
in Finance.
The management of the ledger is overseen by the Corporate Finance
Manager, with operational input by the Finance Support Team and budget
control carried out by Operational Management Accountants.

The management of cash and cheques that are received at HQ are
completed on a daily basis, with preparation of banking and delivery of
monies to the bank completed. A safe is held in the office and a driver is
called upon to accompany finance staff to transport funds to the bank. A
manual cash receipts book and overall cashbook is maintained, updated and
reconciled to the bank statements and the general ledger.
The Senior Operational Management Accountant ensures that funds held by
the Force are controlled and maximised to assist the Force in meeting its
organisational and statutory objectives. An annual Investment Strategy is
approved by the Strategic Priorities Assurance Board (SPA) and the Senior
Operational Management Accountant carries out the strategy with oversight
from the Corporate Finance Manager. A borrowing strategy is also in place,
however the Force have not undertaken any borrowing for a number of years.
The Finance Support Team administers the payment of suppliers through the
processing of requests from other departments. They are also responsible for
managing the supplier standing data, including setting up new suppliers and
amending existing ones.
The team also raise invoices to debtors based on the information provided by
departments. If debtors fail to pay within the allotted payment period, the
Finance Support Team also carry out the agreed debt recovery process,
which includes reminder letters, before being passed to Legal for
consideration of any legal action to recover outstanding debts.
The Force operates credit cards which are provided with pre-authorised credit
limits. These can be amended by Finance with appropriate approval from
Senior Management on request. Cards can be used by PAs of senior
officers/staff and, in these cases, approval must be given by the Card Holder
(senior officer/staff) before using the credit.
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03 Key Findings
Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably
•

The General Ledger is regularly and independently reconciled, with
unbalanced items investigated and suspense accounts regularly reviewed and
cleared;

•

Banking is undertaken securely and transactions are accounted for correctly,
with appropriate cross checking of manual records, bank statements and the
Agresso Financial system;

•

Cash flow information is prepared on a daily basis to assist the decision making
process for investments undertaken by the Force;

•

A robust bank reconciliation process is in place to ensure all items are
accounted for;

•

Payments are made when appropriate authorisation has been obtained to
proceed;

•

Robust processes are in place for raising debtor invoices and chasing
payments when it falls overdue;

•

Write offs are reviewed and authorised before being processed; and

•

Credit card expenditure is appropriately managed, with authorisation controls
operating effectively.

Satisfactory Assurance

Area Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls
General Ledger

Significant

Cash, Bank & Treasury Management

Satisfactory

Payments & Creditors

Significant

Income & Debtors

Significant

Credit Cards

Significant

Priority

Number of recommendations

1 (Fundamental)

-

2 (Significant)

1

3 (Housekeeping)

1

TOTAL

2
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Risk Management

Sector Comparison

The Agresso system is key to the completion of accounts and management of
finances at the Force and the Finance function have a number of system
administrators to control access to the system. It is noted that during 2017/18 the
Force moved to submission of overtime on the system and therefore the number of
users has increased significantly as all staff, including officers, now require access.
When staff leave the Force they should be removed promptly to prevent
unauthorised access to the finance system. Whilst action was taken following this
being raised in the previous audit of this area, this remains an issue and a
recommendation has been raised to address this.

From our experience across our client base, we are seeing pressure on resources
and higher service demands have resulted in challenges to the existing control
environment. This often results in increased challenges to the decision making
process where conflicting priorities exist and need to be balanced with effective risk
management.

The Force previously had a dedicated Treasury Accountant who dealt with all
investments and borrowing, however they have now retired and the Senior
Operational Management Accountant has taken over these responsibilities. During
audit testing it was noted that in one instance the Investment Limits set out in the
Treasury Management Strategy were breached. This increases the risk of the Force
being over exposed and a recommendation has been raised below.
We noted during the testing of banking procedures that on one occasion we were
unable to confirm that the banking slip has been signed twice to indicate a review to
confirm the amount. The finance team confirmed that on some occasions the slip is
scanned onto Agresso before the second signature and that this is likely to have
been the case and we were unable to locate the physical slip to verify it. As this was
an isolated instance, we have not raised it as a recommendation, however the force
should be aware of the reason segregation of duties are important within the banking
process to mitigate fraud risks.
Moreover, it is noted that an Expenses Policy is still not in place. This was raised
during the 2016/17 internal audit visit and remains on the outstanding audit
recommendations list. A further recommendation has not been raised in this report.

Reduced resources mean that organisations have to accept a certain degree of risk
within processes and systems in place and need to ensure this risk is identified and
managed as business as usual. Derbyshire have begun to align with similar
organisations as they move towards more electronic processing, such as the new
overtime process that is now in place.

Value for money
Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our audit
process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and processes in
place within the auditable area.
During the review of amendments to debtor details it was noted that there appears
to be a duplication of processing. In five out of ten instances the debtor details were
being ‘re-opened’ after being previously closed due to no longer being in use. Staff
time is wasted having to carry out this processing and last year audit raised a
suggestion to review this process to ensure a more efficient use of time. This was
discussed with management during the audit and the position remains the same. A
recommendation has not been raised as the Force continue to review the most
efficient way to manage their Debtors.
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04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1.
We identified areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, to whom we
have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.
Observation/Risk

4.1

System Security
Observation: We noted in the previous audit in
2017/18 that testing of all leavers between 1st April
2017 and 30th September 2017 found that 63 out of
196 leavers still had access to the Agresso system.
Further testing as part of the 2018/19 audit found
that between 1st April 2018 and 30th September
2018 only 6 of the 245 leavers still had access to
the system.
The finance team had assigned a member of staff
to ensure that the leavers had been taken off
Agresso. They believe that a lack of holiday cover
for this role has resulted in the 6 leavers not being
removed. It is noted that compensating controls are
in place prior to logging onto the Agresso system,
such as access to buildings, access to computers
and access to the Force system.
Risk: Staff have access to make unauthorised
amendments to the Forces finance system.

Recommendation

Finance should ensure that
there is resilience for the role
of clearing leavers from the
Agresso system.

Priority

3

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

There are mitigating controls in 31st
March
place
which
ensure
that 2019 / Head of
officers/staff who have left the force Finance
cannot access the system so the
risk is removed.
The Force’s IS Department
promptly remove network access
for leavers and therefore once
network access has been removed
there is no access to Agresso.
The finance team will review
access as part of maintaining the
system but the risk is mitigated as
outlined above.
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Observation/Risk

4.2

Investment thresholds
Observation: Derbyshire operate limits within their
investment portfolio to ensure that they are not over
exposed with too much of their investments with
certain institutions. These limits are set within the
Treasury Management Strategy and include not
surpassing a total of £30m invested across local
authorities at any one time, with a maximum of £6m
per institution.
Audit carried out testing on five investments
completed during 2018/19 to date and testing found
supporting documentation was held, there was
evidence of segregation of duties between inputter
and authoriser and they were appropriately
authorised. However, audit did note that two
investments were made on the same date and it
was found that these investments resulted in the
£30m limit for local authorities being exceeded.
It was noted that on this occasion agreements were
being made with brokers ahead of a Pension top up
being received and the investment spreadsheet
used to monitor the investments was not updated
with the future agreements. As a consequence, the
£30m local authority limit was exceeded.
The Senior Operational Management Accountant
noted that the threshold had been passed after
agreeing the investments. At this point senior
management were informed and approval granted

Recommendation

Finance should ensure that
investments stay within the
approved thresholds by
ensuring that calculations are
provisionally entered into the
Investments Spreadsheet to
calculate total exposure
before being agreed with a
broker.

Priority

2

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

As
referred
to
in
the Implemented /
observation/risk,
retrospective Head
of
approval was sought at the time the Finance
investments were made. This
shows that mitigating controls
immediately identified the error and
the
Senior
Operational
Management Accountant took
appropriate action to bring this to
the attention of the Director of
Finance and Chief Financial
Officer.
It is not always practical for the
investment spreadsheet to be
completed prior to investments
being made, as this is used to
check
the
confirmation
documentation from the broker.
A ‘lessons learned’ de-brief has
been undertaken with the Finance
Team to try and prevent a similar
error happening in the future.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

retrospectively.
Risk: Where the Force exceeds its investment
limits, there is a risk that it is overly exposed.
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A1 Audit Information
Audit Objectives

Audit Control Schedule

Our audit considered the risks relating to the following areas under review:
Primary Sponsors:

Client contacts:

Internal Audit Team:

Andrew Dale – OPCC Chief Finance
Officer
Simon Allsop, Temporary Joint Director of
Finance and Business Services

•

Dan Fern, Force Head of Finance and
Business Support
Julie Burton – Corporate Finance
Manager
Claire Widdowson – Finance Support
Manager

•

David Hoose, Partner
Brian Welch, Internal Audit Senior
Manager
Mark Lunn, Internal Audit Assistant
Manager
Tom Evans, Internal Auditor
Alex Campbell, Internal Auditor

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting:

9th November 2018

Draft report issued:

5th December 2018

Management responses received:

29th January 2019

Final report issued:

29th January 2019

•

•
•
•

Clearly defined policies and/or procedures are not in place resulting in ineffective
and inefficient working practices.
Systems and data entry restrictions are not in place which could lead to
inappropriate access to the systems and data.
There are errors in accounting transactions posted on the General Ledger
resulting in inaccurate financial information.
Inaccurate cash flow information regarding investments and borrowings is
produced which could result in inappropriate levels of cash held within the Force.
The purchasing process is not complied with by staff which could lead to
fraudulent transactions that go undetected.
An ineffective debt management process is in place which could lead to
irrecoverable income and inappropriate write off of debt.

In reviewing the above risks, our audit considered the following areas:
• General Ledger
• Cash, Bank and Treasury Management
• Payments and Creditors
• Income and Debtors
The objectives of our audit were to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Core
Financial Systems with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this
area are managed. In giving this assessment it should be noted that assurance cannot be
absolute. The most an Internal Audit Service can provide is reasonable assurance that there
are no major weaknesses in the framework of internal control.
We are only able to provide an overall assessment on those aspects of the Core Financial
Systems that we have tested or reviewed. Testing has been performed on a sample basis,
and as a result our work does not provide absolute assurance that material error, loss or
fraud does not exist.
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Definitions of Assurance Levels
Assurance Level
Significant
Assurance:

Satisfactory
Assurance:

Adequacy of system
design

Effectiveness of
operating controls

There is a sound system of The control processes
internal control designed to tested
are
being
achieve the Organisation’s consistently applied.
objectives.
While there is a basically
sound system of internal
control,
there
are
weaknesses, which put
some of the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

There is evidence that the
level of non-compliance
with some of the control
processes may put some
of the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

Limited
Assurance:

Weaknesses in the system
of internal controls are such
as to put the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

The level of noncompliance puts the
Organisation’s objectives
at risk.

No Assurance

Control processes are
generally weak leaving the
processes/systems open to
significant error or abuse.

Significant
noncompliance with basic
control processes leaves
the processes/systems
open to error or abuse.

Definitions of Recommendations
Priority

Description

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high
degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 2
(Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate
degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted
opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk.
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A2 Statement of Responsibility
Status of our reports

We take responsibility to the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations
set out below.
The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management,
with internal audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control arrangements implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under review with a view to providing an opinion
on the extent to which risks in this area are managed.
We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone should not be
relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Even sound systems of
internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are
implemented. The performance of our work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management
practices.
This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent permitted by
law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or reply for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents,
conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.
Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299.
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A1 Audit Information
A2 Statement of Responsibility
If you should wish to discuss any aspect of this report, please contact Brian Welch, Senior Manager,
brian.welch@mazars.co.uk or David Hoose, Partner david.hoose@mazars.co.uk
Status of our reports
This report ‘Recruitment’ was prepared by Mazars LLP at the request of Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and
Derbyshire Police and terms for the preparation and scope of the Report have been agreed with them. The matters raised in this Report
are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information
provided in this Report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base findings on the information and documentation
provided and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this Report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the
weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.
The Report was prepared solely for the use and benefit of Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire
Police and to the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who
purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or
modification. Accordingly, any reliance placed on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, reinterpretation, amendment and/or
modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.
Please refer to the Statement of Responsibility in Appendix A2 of this report for further information about responsibilities, limitations and

2 confidentiality.

01 Introduction
As part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 for the Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire (OPCC) and Derbyshire Police, we have
undertaken an audit of the controls and processes in place in respect of
recruitment.
The specific areas that formed part of this review included: policies and
procedures, recruitment, selection and shortlisting, vetting and preemployment checks, job offer and performance.
We engaged with a number of staff members across the Force and Shared
Service Centre during the review and are grateful for their assistance during
the course of the audit.

02 Background
All recruitment at the Force and OPCC is managed by the Retained HR team
and the Shared Service Centre (also known as Transactional Services). The
Shared Service Centre provides recruitment transactional services to both
Derbyshire and Leicestershire.
The Force has a Recruitment and Selection policy that documents the
procedures that are to be followed when recruiting for both Staff and Officers.
Previously, a paper-based method for recruitment was used for the Force. In
October 2016, a new e-recruitment system was implemented, which
manages the recruitment process via a cloud-based platform. This has
changed the way in which recruitment is carried out and managed at the
Force.

E-recruitment
As the primary method for recruitment relies on the e-recruitment system,
process maps have been developed, detailing what is to take place at each
step of the recruitment process. Separate documents are in place for the
recruitment team, hiring managers and the head of department. These
supplementary documents detail who is required to carry out which actions.
For a vacancy to be made live, initial approval is required by the head of
department within the area of the role.
To ensure that recruitment is aligned with workforce planning, on a monthly
basis, a performance report is produced. This report compares the
establishment values against actuals across all staff areas, allowing for
continuous monitoring of how under or overstaffed each area is.
Recruitment agencies
To create additional awareness of roles within the Force, there is an East
Midlands contract in place with the recruitment agency, Brook Street.
Meetings take place on a quarterly basis where performance and
effectiveness is reviewed, which is supported by a business review document
produced by Brook Street. This document includes measures of performance
against Service Level Agreements and KPIs.
Diversity
As part of the Police and Crime Plan, there is a strategic priority for "Working
with the Constabulary to develop the policing family to be more representative
of the diverse communities it serves". The driver of equality within recruitment
at the Force is the Positive Action team, who are part of the wider Equality
and Diversity department. The team work in line with the Derbyshire
Constabulary 'valuing people, valuing difference' strategy 2017-2020, which
covers the areas of recruitment, retention and progression.
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03 Key Findings
Assurance on adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls

Satisfactory Assurance

•
•

•
Priority

desirable criteria. For a sample of five applicants, we compared their
application to the criteria for the role and were able to confirm that these were
met.
When candidates are shortlisted, the e-recruitment system will send an
automated email to advice of this and retain these emails, leading to efficient
logging of communication.
Vetting requirements are clearly specified on a matrix which enables
consistency in the process.
The recruitment agency used is monitored on a quarterly basis to review
effectiveness.

Number of recommendations

1 (Fundamental)

-

Risk Management

2 (Significant)

2

3 (Housekeeping)

2

While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are weaknesses
which put some of the Organisation’s objectives at risk.

TOTAL

4

Examples of areas where controls are operating reliably
•
•
•

•
•

The e-recruitment system is used for the recruitment process which considers
all aspects and stages.
Detailed process maps are in place to guide staff on the recruitment process,
mirroring the sequence of events in e-recruitment.
Workforce planning carry out a preliminary check for each vacancy, which
ensures that there is capacity within the establishment; the job description and
hours of work are also reviewed. A second line check is carried out by
management in the workforce planning team, which includes the approval of
the vacancy on the e-recruitment system.
We reviewed the approval that was carried out for a sample of five vacancies
and noted that in all instances a head of department and workforce planning
had made their approval.
Applications made by candidates are assessed against a set of essential and

Process maps are in place which detail what is to take place at each step of the
recruitment process. These cover the respective roles of the recruitment team, hiring
managers and the head of department. These supplementary documents provide
clear guidance in respect of each element of the process, including the initial
approval required for a vacancy to be made live. Sample testing confirmed that the
relevant approval processes had been adhered to and that a log of first line checks
is maintained and was completed in all instances tested.
During audit testing of the recruitment process it was identified that the eRecruitment system was unable to provide reports that correctly demonstrated the
date that the application was submitted. This lack of reporting inadvertently made it
appear that applications were received after the closing dates. See Section 04 for
further details.
As candidates progress through the recruitment process and reach the point of
being shortlisted, the e-recruitment system will send an automated email to advice
of this. This ensures consistency, with the system retaining these emails, providing
an effective log of communications.
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To ensure that the level of vetting carried out is proportionate to the role advertised,
the recruitment team have a matrix in place which outlines roles within the Force
and the level of vetting appropriate to the position. For a sample of five roles we
noted that the job description vetting level was in line with what was detailed on the
spreadsheet.
All supplementary documentation from the recruitment process should be uploaded
onto the e-recruitment system. This provides a clear audit trail with regards the
recruitment process and ensures that documentation is available in the event of a
query. Additionally, as part of the e-recruitment process, the recruitment team
compile a welcome pack, along with the contract and offer letter for candidates who
have been offered a position, with evidence of this retained on the system.

Value for money
Value for money (VfM) considerations can arise in various ways and our audit
process aims to include an overview of the efficiency of systems and processes in
place within the auditable area.
The implementation of the e-recruitment system has contributed to the objective of
securing value for money to the Force. Previously, under the paper-based system,
the process was manual, consumed more time and there was also the potential for
administrative error. Key areas where efficiencies have been gained are:
•
•

A single data input is required for the whole recruitment process for applicants.
The pre-screen questions do not require a member of staff to review the
application to confirm that criteria has been met. Instead, the e-recruitment
system will conduct this check automatically.
The process for sending emails has been streamlined and areas, such as the
shortlisting of candidates, allows for the system to automatically generate this.

We did, however, note a few instances where documents had not been uploaded to
the e-recruitment system (see Section 04 for more details) and felt that this was an
area where further attention is needed.

•

Whilst monthly ‘client liaison’ meetings take place between Retained HR and the
Service Centre during which performance of the Service Centre is reviewed, we felt
that the process of performance monitoring could be enhanced through a more
analytical reporting process which provided greater focus on productivity and
targets.

As the Service Centre is shared between Leicestershire and Derbyshire, economy
is obtained through only requiring one set of licenses for the e-recruitment system
for the two Forces. Additionally, the Service Centre is able to increase their
effectiveness by the ability to learn from two Force’s expertise.

Performance of the recruitment area was reported to the Shared Human Resource
Service Centre (SHRSC) Management Board at the last meeting in March 2018. In
relation to e-recruitment, we have noted that the report gives statistics from the date
of implementation (April 2017). These include how many vacancies have been
handled, how many applications have been submitted by candidates, the quantity
of interviews that have been booked and how many offers of employment that have
been provided.
The above information, however, is not a standing item on the board management
report - rather it was given as a special item through an update being provided on
the area. Formal KPIs should be in place, which will allow the board to effectively
monitor and be updated on performance.
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04 Areas for Further Improvement and Action Plan
Definitions for the levels of assurance and recommendations used within our reports are included in Appendix A1.
We identified a number of areas where there is scope for improvement in the control environment. The matters arising have been discussed with management, to
whom we have made recommendations. The recommendations are detailed in the management action plan below.
Observation/Risk

4.1

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

System Reporting
Observation: The e-Recruitment system is used to
manage all the job applications received and thus all data
in relation to the process is stored here. When audit initially
carried out testing on the application process an incorrect
data set was provided to audit, this indicated that
applications were being received after the deadline.
Upon review it was identified that the system provided two
dates on applications, ‘Form Submitted’ and ‘Form
Received’. The received date appeared when a manual
duplicate check was carried out after the closing date and
thus indicating that applications were being received after
the deadline.
A subsequent review by audit confirmed that applications
had not been accepted after the closing date. However,
the reporting functionality of the system is unable to run a
report of ‘Date Submitted’ for applications.
Risk: Where management information is inaccurate or
unavailable, this may impact on the effective management
and monitoring of the process.

Retained HR should liaise with
the system developers to ensure
the reporting functionality can
deliver the reports required to
confirm the correct date an
application was submitted.

3

A request has been put in with the Head of HR
supplier, Oleeo and a training session has Service Centre
been set up for late January which
includes investigating how the reporting Immediate
mechanism works within the system and
how/where it extracts data from.
Conversations will also be had at this point
to ensure that all fields within the ERecruitment system can be reported on so
that the correct report is available for
monitoring purposes.
In the meantime I can confirm that data
within the system is correct and available
via the built in audit/history trail, and the
HRSC is able to check manually when an
application form is submitted. All late
applications are rejected unless there is a
valid reason to accept one, these are few
and far between and signed off by
management.
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4.2

Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Retaining Documentation

Retained HR should carry out
sample tests on candidates that
have been recruited to give
assurance that the Service
Centre are carrying out the
process accordingly.

Observation: All relevant documentation in respect of the
recruitment process should be retained on the erecruitment system. As part of the procedure, a review is
carried out at the pre offer stage in the process to ensure
all documentation is retained. From our overall sample test
covering five candidates, we found instances where
documentation relating to the recruitment process had not
been uploaded onto the system and/or had not been
correctly recorded.
Vetting & Employment Checks

Priority

There should be further guidance
provided within the Service
Centre around the importance of
the pre-offer stage.

Guidance and refreshers should
be provided to all staff involved in
We reviewed the e-recruitment system to confirm that the
the
recruitment
process,
relevant vetting checks had been carried out.
emphasising the importance of
For two candidates, there was no supporting vetting check retaining documentation on edocument uploaded to confirm that this had been recruitment.
completed.
We also reviewed whether or not references, medical tests
and drug tests had been completed, as appropriate to the
role applied for, where we noted:
-

Four individuals had no drug test form attached to erecruitment to confirm that this had been completed.

-

Two individuals had no medical test form attached to
e-recruitment.

-

One employee had no references uploaded to erecruitment.

-

Another employee, who was an internal candidate,
had no internal reference uploaded to the erecruitment.

2

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

The Service Centre will carry out monthly Head of HR
audit checks of the recruitment process Service Centre
and report back findings of these to both
forces as part of the Client Liaison
function.
Dec – 2018
An offer and pre-employment checks has
been created across all employee types to
ensure each stage of the process is
completed consistently and correctly
before the vacancy is achieved.
The Drug tests results are supplied on
long lists of candidates, so these are
saved locally and obtained by the supplier.
But the result should be updated within ERecruitment.
The team will receive additional training to
ensure they are adhering to process.
The
process
around
retaining
Completed Jan
documentation was reviewed in Oct/Nov
2019
and training has been provided to the
Recruitment Team regarding this. The
new checklist for pre-employment
documentation was introduced in January
2019 and is now being utilised by the team
and signed-off by Team Leaders.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Interview Stage
We confirmed that documentation in respect of the
interview was maintained, supported the outcome of the
interview and had been uploaded onto the e-recruitment
system. In one instance we noted that the assessment
areas of the interview did not match the summary sheet
that had been used during the interview. Therefore, it was
not evident how the scores given for the candidate were
arrived at
We sought to confirm whether the selection panel was
appropriate for a sample of five interviews conducted and
noted that:
-

In one instance the panel members section was not
completed on e-recruitment and we had to identify
who had completed this though reviewing the
interview marking sheet.

-

For another interview, only one individual was noted
as being a panel member. The information for the
second member on the panel was not noted, neither
was their interview notes uploaded onto e-recruitment.
The information was not noted on the interview form
either for who either of the individuals were.

Job Offers
We reviewed five job offer emails that were sent to
candidates to confirm that these were appropriately
administered. We noted one instance where only a
contract was sent, however a welcome pack should have
been sent along with this, which includes an offer letter.
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Observation/Risk

Recommendation

Priority

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

Risk:
Relevant checks are not completed leading to
inappropriate candidates being recruited.
New recruits are not provided with the appropriate
documents on commencing employment.
A consistent approach to administering job offers is not
followed.
Candidates are not assessed in a fair and consistent
manner.

4.3

Performance Reporting
Observation: Although monthly ‘client liaison’ meetings
take place between retained HR and the Service Centre,
there is a lack of analytical reporting which hinders the
effective monitoring and measurement of performance in
respect of productivity and targets.
Performance of the recruitment area was reported to the
Board at the last meeting in March 2018. However, this is
not a standing item on the board management report rather it was given as a special item through an update
being provided on the area.
Risk: The Force are not aware of the performance of the
Transactional Services area.

The Force should determine
targets
and
performance
standards which it expects of the
Transactional Services team.
Following this, regular reporting
should be carried out against
this.
Performance reporting in respect
of recruitment should be included
as a regular item on the board
reports.

2

Performance of the recruitment area is Head of HR
always reported to the HRSC Service Centre
Management Board. Whilst performance
is not a separate item on the agenda it has
always been included as part of the
performance data in the Manager Board
Report.

There are further plans to develop Jan - 2019
reporting to both forces in the future so
that a quarterly Information pack is
provided detailing relevant performance
data.

Overall performance of the area of recruitment is not
monitored and measured.
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Observation/Risk

4.4

Policy review

Recommendation

Priority

The policy should be reviewed,
updated where necessary and
Observation: We have reviewed the recruitment and
published.
selection policy and noted that it is out of date and due for
a review. The last review took place in June 2015, with it
being due for the next review in June 2017.
Through conversations with management, we have been
made aware that the policy is currently undergoing a
review and an update is due to be published.

3

Management response

Timescale/
responsibility

After a review of the current Recruitment
Policy and in line with the Forces stance
on reducing the number of published
policies a decision has been made to
withdraw the Recruitment Policy and
replace it with ‘Guidance Notes’ for
managers and candidates.

Head
Workforce
Planning.
Oct - 2019

Risk: Guidance in place is not up to date for staff with
regards to recruitment.
The policy does not reflect current practice.
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A1 Audit Information

Scope & Objectives
Our audit considered the risks relating to the following control objectives:
Policies and Procedures
Policies and procedures are in place, are regularly updated to reflect lessons learnt and
legislative changes, and are communicated to all relevant staff.

Audit Control Schedule
Client contacts:

Andrew Dale, OPCC Chief Finance Officer

Procedures clearly set out the different roles and responsibilities of both the Retained HR
and Transactional Services, and are reviewed and kept up to date.

Simon Allsop, Temporary Joint Police and Fire
Director of Finance

Recruitment

Phil Mason, Head of HR
Maz Ahmed, Head of Shared Service
Internal Audit Team:

David Hoose - Partner
Brian Welch - Senior Manager
Moosa Bahadur – Internal Auditor

Finish on Site \ Exit Meeting:

10th August 2018

Draft report issued:

29th August 2018 (revised 18th January 2019)

Management responses received:

18th January 2019

Final report issued:

18th

January 2019

Recruitment is delivering against wider initiatives, such as that in respect of diversity and
anti-discriminatory policies.
The recruitment process is aligned with the force’s workforce planning processes.
Recruitment is carried out following the approval of a new post or a vacancy in an existing
post. Person specifications and job descriptions are reviewed and approved at the
appropriate level.
Approaches to advertising and recruitment agencies are reviewed for their effectiveness,
including the role of Transactional Services in the placing of adverts and the use agencies
via a five force arrangement.
Selection & Shortlisting
Selection panels are of an appropriate seniority and are provided with suitable support
and / or training to enable them to fulfil this role.
There are effective and robust arrangements in place between the Force and
Transactional Services for the logging and communication of applications for shortlisting.
Only applications received by the advertised closing date are considered and those
shortlisted meet the key requirements of the person specification / job description.
All interviews are fully documented to ensure full transparency in the selection process.
In addition, all decisions are documented, approved and justified in accordance with predetermined selection criteria.
Retained HR has effective arrangements in place to confirm that Transactional Services’
role in the administration of the recruitment process meets the Force’s requirements.
Vetting & Pre-Employment Checks
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The Force secures adequate assurance that appropriate vetting checks are carried out,
including obtaining proof of identify, qualifications, experience and disclosure of
convictions.
Vetting is commensurate with the nature of the position and proportionate to the role being
advertised.
Job Offer

Definitions of Assurance Levels
Assurance Level

There is a sound system of
internal control designed to
achieve the Organisation’s
objectives.

The control processes
tested are being
consistently applied.

Satisfactory
Assurance:

While there is a basically
sound system of internal
control, there are
weaknesses which put
some of the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

There is evidence that
the level of noncompliance with some of
the control processes
may put some of the
Organisation’s objectives
at risk.

Limited
Assurance:

Weaknesses in the system
of internal controls are such
as to put the Organisation’s
objectives at risk.

The level of noncompliance puts the
Organisation’s objectives
at risk.

No Assurance

Control processes are
generally weak leaving the
processes/systems open to
significant error or abuse.

Significant noncompliance with basic
control processes leaves
the processes/systems
open to error or abuse.

Performance
Standards and KPI’s have been agreed against which the recruitment process can be
measured.
Complaints relating to the recruitment process are monitored and dealt with appropriately.
The performance of Transactional Services in the recruitment process is measurable and
any issues of under-performance promptly addressed.
The objectives of our audit were to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of
recruitment, with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area
are managed. In giving this assessment it should be noted that assurance cannot be
absolute. The most an Internal Audit Service can provide is reasonable assurance that
there are no major weaknesses in the framework of internal control.
We are only able to provide an overall assessment on those aspects of recruitment that
we have tested or reviewed. Testing has been performed on a sample basis, and as a
result our work does not provide absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does
not exist.

Effectiveness of
operating controls

Significant
Assurance:

The Force receives adequate assurance that Transactional Services has robust systems
and controls in place to ensure that job offers are correctly administered.
All relevant documentation in respect of the recruitment and selection process, including
approved contract of employment, are collated by Transactional Services and reviewed
for accuracy and completeness by Retained HR.

Adequacy of system
design

OPCC for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police – Recruitment – January 2019
Page 10

Definitions of Recommendations
Priority

Description

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control
weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high
degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 2
(Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control
weaknesses which expose the organisation to a
moderate degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have
highlighted opportunities to implement a good or better
practice, to improve efficiency or further reduce
exposure to risk.
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A2 Statement of Responsibility
Status of our reports
We take responsibility to Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below.
The responsibility for designing and maintaining a sound system of internal control and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management, with internal
audit providing a service to management to enable them to achieve this objective. Specifically, we assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control arrangements
implemented by management and perform sample testing on those controls in the period under review with a view to providing an opinion on the extent to which risks in this area are
managed.
We plan our work in order to ensure that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, our procedures alone should not be relied upon to
identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify any circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Even sound systems of internal control can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that
exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. The performance of our
work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management practices.
This report is confidential and must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent permitted by law Mazars
LLP accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the Report, its contents, conclusions, any extract,
reinterpretation amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own risk.
Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 0C308299.
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APPENDIX D TO AGENDA ITEM 5B
JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

OPCC for Derbyshire Police & Derbyshire Police
Follow up of Audit Recommendations – January 2019
01 – Introduction
In line with the commitment to follow up Internal Audit recommendations made, this report provides an overview of activity undertaken to verify the implementation of internal
audit recommendations. The review focused on priority 1 and 2 recommendations (see Appendix 1) where agreed implementation dates had now passed, although lists all
recommendations irrespective of implementation date. Where satisfactory evidence has been provided that the recommendation has been implemented, and this has been
reported to the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC), the recommendation will be removed from future reports.
This report covers only those audits where a dedicated follow-up has not been planned. The following provides the status of all audit reports where recommendations have yet
to be fully implemented and where the target dates have been reached:
Audit / Recommendation

Priority

Recommendations
Manager
Confirmed
Implementation

Comments

N/A

Implementation date to be
confirmed by supplier of new
system.

Payroll 2016/17
- Expenses Policy – Derbyshire

Partnerships 2016/17
- Production of Partnership Principles
- Establishing the Partnership Framework
- Annual Review of Partnerships
Victim Services 2017/18
- Referral System & Reconciliation of Data
Procurement 2018/19
- Raising of Requisitions and Purchase Orders
- Adherence to Procurement Regulations
- Segregation of Duties
Health & Safety 2018/19
- Workplace Inspections
- External Contractors
- Strategy Objectives

Four recommendations raised – P2. Three P2 outstanding at last update.
P2
September 2017
Yes
N/A
Yes
P2
September 2017
Yes
N/A
Yes
P2
September 2017
Yes
N/A
Yes
Four recommendations raised – three P2 and one P3. One P2 outstanding at last update:
P2
September 2017
Yes - Partial
N/A
Yes
Eleven recommendations raised – three P2 and eight P3
P2
November 2018
Yes
N/A
Yes
P2
November 2018
Yes
N/A
Yes
P2
November 2018
Yes
N/A
Yes
Eight recommendations raised - six P2 and two P3
P2
September 2018
Yes
N/A
Yes
P2
September 2018
N/A
Yes
Yes – Partial
P2
December 2019
N/A
Yes
Yes – Partial

- Accident/Injury Reporting

P2

n/a

N/A

Yes

Manager
Confirmed Not
Implemented

Audit
Confirmed
Implemented

Agreed
Implementation
Date
One recommendation raised – P2
P2
April 2017

Yes

N/A

Yes

Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.
Partially implemented.
Partially implemented. Revised
implementation date – March 2019.
Recommendation Implemented.

- Accident/Injury Reporting Process
- The Co-ordination of Health and Safety
Training

P2
P2

September 2018
December 2018

Yes
Yes

N/A
N/A

Yes
Yes

Recommendation Implemented.
Recommendation Implemented.

02 – Follow-Up Results
Payroll (Final Memo November 2016)
Finding

Recommendation

Initial Management
Comments

Expenses Policy - Derbyshire
Observation: There should be a consolidated
Expenses Policy in place to provide clear and
complete guidance in relation to claiming
expenses. This will also allow for a central
document in relation to expenses to be referred
to in cases of query and bring the Force in line
with the recommendations from the Winsor
Review.
Review of the current expenses policy confirmed
that there are multiple process notes available in
relation to aspects of the expenses guidance.
For example, there is a 2009 update for Food
and Accommodation, and a separate article in
relation to mileage and car users on the intranet
site.
It was also identified that an officer had claimed
for first class train travel between Derby and
London on multiple days for the price of
£433.50. There was no notes available to show
that this was due to a price saving, or confirm
that it was in line with policy.
Risk: Where the expenses policy does not
contain all relevant information in relation to
expense claims, the force may receive claims
that would otherwise have been rejected had a
robust expense policy been in place.

Follow Up Result

Result /
Timeframe of Risk
Exposure

Previous Comments
The Force should review
and update the Expenses
Policy to ensure that all
information in relation to
expenses is collated into
one formal document for
completeness. This should
include guidance on train
journeys and first class
travel.
This document should
include an author, date of
issue, date of review and all
key guidance for expense
claims.

Agreed.
Derbyshire in the
process of implementing the
expenses policy that has been
developed for all east midlands
police forces.

The new expenses policy will be brought in
with the new Payroll system. There have been
delays in the implementation of the new
payroll system, with the current expectation
that this will be going live in September 2018.
The Policy will be worked on once the
capabilities of the new system are known and
can be tested sufficiently. Therefore Policy
expected to be delivered after this go live date.
January 2019
The expenses policy has been reviewed and
updated.
However, it has not been
implemented as yet because it needs to
incorporate changes due to the impending
electronic expenses process. Electronic
expenses has been put on hold due to the
change of payroll system being delayed. As
the system went live in November, we are in
the process of negotiating with the supplier to
establish when the expenses system can be
rolled out.

Not Yet Implemented.
Awaiting
implementation date
with supplier of new
system.

Partnerships (Final Report re-issued May 2017)
Finding

Recommendation

Initial Management
Comments

Follow Up Result

Production of Partnership Principles

A set of partnership
principles
should
be
produced to complement the
business plan for delivering
the objectives within the
Police and Crime Plan. The
business
plan
should
include a section for
partnership working which
includes, but not be limited
to, the following:

Agree
to
address
the
partnership principles; this will
be included in the Finance and
Commissioning Team Business
Plan and in the Financial
Handbook
(Financial
Regulations) not the OPCC high
level plan.

Previous Comments

•

This recommendation was
agreed following the original
report and will be implemented
by September 2017.

To ensure that partnership working is
appropriately guided, a set of partnership
principles should be produced and the business
plan to deliver the objectives within the Police
and Crime Plan should include an individual
section on partnerships.
A review of the documents currently in place for
partnership working highlighted that the OPCC
has not formally defined what they see a
partnership to be, how partners will help to
deliver the objectives within the Police and
Crime Plan, when the OPCC will use partnership
working and how resources will be used
effectively in partnership working.
It was confirmed that a business plan is to be
produced which will outline how the Police and
Crime Plan will be delivered. This business plan
will include an individual strand on partnership
working which will provide further detail on
partnerships than that of the Police and Crime
Plan and the OPCC website. It was, however,
agreed that the production of a set of partnership
principles for the office would add value to the
business plan and help to focus partnership
working.
Risk: Where partnership working is not
appropriately guided there is a risk that
ineffective decisions are taken which could
result in the benefits of partnership working not
being delivered.

•
•
•
•

The priorities to be
delivered;
How partners will help
to deliver the priorities;
When partnerships will
be used;
What the roles and
responsibilities
of
partners are;
How resources will be
utilised in partnerships;
and

The risk management
processes that are in place
for partnerships.

Summary of discussions held on
30th March 2017

The restructure of the OPCC has been signed
off and the new structure will include a Policy
& Partnerships role. Once this individual is in
post they will be tasked with undertaking the
outstanding work in regards to the Partnership
Principles. At the time of writing the OPCC
were undertaking interviews for this post.

January 2019
The Policy & Partnerships job role was filled
and they began in post in September 2018.
Since then they have been working on the
audit recommendations. A Partnership
Establishment Form has been developed
which establishes the principles of the
partnership being entered into.

Result /
Timeframe of Risk
Exposure
Recommendation
Implemented.

Establishing the Partnership Framework
To ensure that the OPCC has full awareness of
all partnership working and the governance
arrangements for these, an exercise should be
conducted to map out the framework of
partnerships for the office.
It was confirmed that an exercise was completed
a number of years ago to identify the partnership
work and governance arrangements for these
partnerships within the office. However, this has
since not been refreshed and is therefore
outdated.
Mapping out the current partnership working
arrangements would allow the office to have
oversight of the partnership activity taking place,
the governance arrangements in place for these
and the resources that are utilised for these
partnerships. This would be beneficial in the
long term when reviewing the effectiveness and
relevance of partnerships and the effective use
of resources.
Risk: Where the OPCC is not fully aware of all
partnership
working
and
governance
arrangements there is a risk of potential
ineffective partnerships or duplication of
activities not being identified which could result
in the ineffective use of resources.

An exercise should be
conducted to identify the
current partnership working
arrangements in operation
and a map of the framework
of partnerships should be
produced. This should
include the identification of
governance arrangements
in place to oversee
partnership working across
work streams helping to
deliver the Police and Crime
Plan and the resources
currently utilised within
these partnerships.

Nice to do but not essential.
Agreed that a review be carried
out but in the context of
determining the appropriate
support/attendance at the
partnership, and what benefit
the Commissioner gains from
that partnership. See also 4.3
It should also identify gaps.
Summary of discussions held on
30th March 2017
Based on resources available
within the OPCC it was felt the
most pragmatic way forward
was
to
evaluate
each
partnership and the value that
our involvement brings against
the PCC's priorities and the
Police & Crime Plan. We will do
a high-level review of the
partnership arena in Derbyshire
and
our
involvement/commitment
to
those. In addition, we will
understand
the
overall
governance arrangements for
those partnerships.

Previous Comments
In line with the comments made above, the
new Policy & Partnership role at the OPCC will
be undertaking this work once they are in post.

January 2019
A partnership mapping exercise for the OPCC
has been carried out by the newly appointed
Policy & Partnerships Officer allowing the
OPCC to clearly review the details of all the
partnerships that they are engaged with. This
information is being used as part of the new
review schedule noted below.

Recommendation
Implemented.

Annual Review of Partnerships
Observation: To ensure that the partnership
principles and the partnership working
arrangements remain both relevant and
effective, resources are being utilised
appropriately and to identify any ineffective
partnerships, a formal annual review should be
conducted.
It was confirmed that there are a number of
partnership working arrangements in place that
help to deliver the strategic requirements of the
Office and the Police and Crime Plan.
However, there is currently no formal
mechanism to regularly review all partnerships
in place.
Risk: Where partnerships no longer relevant and
effective are not identified there is a risk that
resources may not be utilised effectively which
could result in reputational damage to the OPCC
where objectives are not met.

A formal annual review of
partnerships should take
place to confirm that they
continue to be appropriate
and useful, that the
partnerships are being
managed effectively, that
resources
are
being
appropriately utilised and
that results are being
produced
against
the
strategic priorities.
Upon production of the
partnership principles, these
should also be reviewed on
an annual basis to confirm
that they remain relevant
and appropriate for the
office.

On reflection and consideration
of the resources available within
the OPCC- this is not agreed.
However, a review every two
years is accepted.
See also 4.2
Summary of discussions held on
30th March 2017
Whilst we agreed with the
rationale
for
the
recommendation, we feel a
more pragmatic action would be
that a review would take place
bi-annually due to (a) resource
limitations and (b) better
reflecting the pace of change in
the partnership arena. We will
review by exception in the
meantime should things change
significantly.

Previous Comments
Per comments above, once the OPCC has
recruited the Policy and Partnerships post an
initial review of all partnerships that the OPCC
engages with will take place. Moreover, the
new Strategic Priorities Assurance (SPA)
Board will focus on Partnership Activity on a
rolling basis, with Performance of Partnerships
having been earmarked for a detailed review
twice a year thus addressing the
recommendation.
January 2019
A schedule for reviewing partnerships has
been established by the Strategic Priorities
Assurance (SPA) Board. The first bi-annual
monitoring meeting is scheduled for 31st
January and it is planned to be reviewed as
part of the OPCC Team Day.

Recommendation
Implemented.

Victim Services (Final report 20th July 2017)
Finding

Recommendation

Initial Management
Comments

Referral System & Reconciliation of Data

The OPCC should work with
the Force to document how
Victims are referred to
services. This should then
be reviewed and updated to
ensure the referral system is
operating as intended.

It should be clearly documented
how Victims are referred to the
appropriate service provider and
the OPCC will work with Force
IT to complete this.

The delivery model in Derbyshire relies upon an
automated referral system that extracts key data
from Niche, the crime and incident recording
system, then refers victims’ details to the
appropriate provider. Following referral, the
service providers submit performance
information to the OPCC on a monthly or
quarterly basis, including the number of referrals
made from the Police.
The automated referral system is based on
internal scripts written by the police based on
crime codes and this directs referrals to the right
provider.
At present, it is not clearly documented how the
referral system operates. The Police can pull
raw data from the system and identify ‘Opt in’
and ‘opt outs’ and to which provider they have
been sent and is used by the Victims working
Group. The data includes victimless crime
numbers. Analytical support could reconcile this
to the contracted provider’s data. Although the
OPCC have a quarterly working group with
providers to address any issues arising, a clear
referral pathway, together with reassurance that
all data has been effectively transferred to the
relevant provider, would allow oversight of the
system and enable continuous review and
monitoring to ensure the automated referral
system was operating as intended.
Risk: Failure in the referral system is not
identified and victims are not referred to the
correct service provider

The OPCC should ensure
that all potential referrals are
captured on Niche and can
be reconciled to that
submitted to / acted upon by
the service providers.

The ability to reconcile the
referrals sent to providers to the
data they are providing would
give assurance that victims were
not being missed.
Delivery of this will be
dependent on IT availability and
the OPCC will liaise with the
Force to ensure appropriate
data can be provided.

Follow Up Result

Result /
Timeframe of Risk
Exposure

Previous Comment

Recommendation
Implemented.

This has become a larger piece of work and
the OPCC has been working closely with the
Force to clearly document the referral system
in place. An update was provided to the
JARAC in March 2018. This showed the
progress that had been made and identified a
small number of referrals that could have been
missed. To prevent this occurring, a manual
check process has been put in place. The
manual check will continue to ensure no
referrals are missed moving forward until the
OPCC receive assurance the referral system
is working as intended.
January 2019
A business case was agreed for a new victim
services referral system which is currently in
its trail phase, with a full ‘go live’ date of 4th
February. A triage process has been added to
ensure no referrals via the VCOP module or
Niche are missed. A longer term consideration
of how to ensure the VCOP details are
correctly and consistently recorded is ongoing.
Audit are satisfied that the original issues
raised now have mitigating controls in place.

Procurement (Final report 1st November 2018)
Finding

Recommendation

Initial Management
Comments

Raising of Requisitions and Purchase
Orders

A reminder should be issued
across the Force to enforce
the requirement to raise
requisitions for all purchases
which have not been
included on the approved list
of exemption and obtain
quotes for goods, works and
services for purchases over
£5k and up to £25k in
accordance with Contract
Regulations.

Accepted.

Observation: Clause 4.3.3 of Financial
Regulations states that ‘official orders will be
raised for all work, goods or services to be
supplied to Derbyshire Police, except for
purchases that are included on a list of
exemptions agreed with the Chief Finance
Officer.
Audit testing of 15 invoices valued between £5k
and £25k identified that:
• In three cases, a requisition had not been
received by the centralised ordering team
and, subsequently, a purchase order had
not been raised and approved in advance of
the purchase of goods, services or works.
The purchases were confirmed as not being
included on the list of exemptions. (AP Ref:
34753, transaction ref: 7093283), (AP Ref:
12438, transaction ref: 7090905), (AP Ref:
38609, transaction ref: 7089091)
• An initial purchase order was raised
(2524785) for £460k in accordance with the
contract value for the joint border
intelligence unit at East Midlands Airport.
£475,652 of invoice expenditure was
allocated against this purchase order. An
additional four invoices were received for
the same contract totalling £120,720 but
purchase orders were not raised and a
variation to the initial contract was not
completed. Total of works £596,371.98. (AP
Ref: 38538, transaction ref: 7092282).
The audit noted that the ordering team do not
check invoices received that do not have a
supporting purchase order to the list of

It should also be ensured
that
procurement
are
informed where contracts
are overspent so that a
contract variation can be
completed. Budget holders
should be reminded that
purchase orders must be
raised for additional contract
expenditure.
The
purchase
order
exemption list should be
reviewed to ensure that it
include
all
purchases
exempt from the purchase
ordering process.
Where invoices are received
without a purchase order
number, before processing,
the invoice should be
verified to the purchase
order exemption list. Where
the expenditure type is not
listed this should be raised

Accepted.

Accepted

Accepted

Follow Up Result

Result /
Timeframe of Risk
Exposure

A reminder about the raising of purchase
orders has been sent to all relevant staff.

Recommendation
Implemented.

Finance have agreed to keep procurement
informed of any overspends on contracts. No
examples have arisen since the audit to
confirm this has started to take place.

The purchase order exemption list has been
reviewed and updated.

A reminder has been sent to staff to remind
them of the correct process to follow.

exemptions at the point of invoice registration
and are therefore not identifying and addressing
with the service areas purchases that should
have had a requisition and purchase order
raised.
Furthermore, clause 5.5.6
Regulations states that:

of

Contract

“Contracts having a value of £25,000 or less
shall be evidenced in writing but may be on
Derbyshire Police’s purchase order form unless
the Director of Finance or the Chief Finance
Officer considers that a different form of contract
is appropriate.”
As a purchase order was not raised for the
purchases included on the invoices noted
above, this clause was not met.
Risk:
Non-compliance
Regulations.

with

Contract

Unauthorised purchases are made where
approval for the purchase of goods, services
and works is not obtained prior to a purchase
being made with the supplier.

and addressed with the
service area.

Adherence to Procurement Regulations
Observation: The Procurement Team undertake
analysis of spend processed through the
Agresso system every two months to identify
areas of non-contracted spend requiring
consideration for procurement activity and to
increase compliant spend.
Agresso spend analysis completed of 25
supplier expenditures over £25k identified one
area of non-contracted spend that should have
been considered for tendering which had not
been previously identified by the Procurement
Team. This supplier has been used frequently
since 2008. (AP Ref: 28895, £482,696 of
expenditure since 2008).
As a result, a contract framework for the ‘stray
animals’ spend area had not been considered.
Stray animal’s expenditure relates to vets and
kennelling expenditure with three main providers
with a total cost of £618,240 since the suppliers
have been used. (AP Ref: 28895 - £482,696
(2008), AP Ref: 14564 - £58,749 (2002), AP Ref:
34655 - £76,795 (2013)).These providers have
been used frequently year on year but none
have been considered for procurement activity.

Risk: Failure to obtain value for money within the
purchasing process and a breach of the
Contract Regulations in the Force financial
regulations. In addition, this could leave the
force open to challenge by alternative suppliers
and potential penalties under OJEU
procurement rules.

The Area of non-contracted
spend identified in this audit
report should be addressed
to ensure compliance with
the
Force
Contract
Regulations and OJEU
procurement rules.
Contract frameworks for
categories of spend should
be
considered
when
Agresso spend analysis is
completed
by
the
Procurement team.

Accepted. This will be
undertaken every couple of
months with the next review in
November 2018.

The items identified by audit have been added
to the Procurement pipeline to ensure
compliance with procurement rules.
An automated report has been created that
now aids spend analysis within the Agresso
system and allows procurement to investigate
more areas where contracts or contract
frameworks could be considered.

Recommendation
Implemented.

Segregation of Duties
Observation: The Agresso system automatically
workflows the requisition or invoice for approval
in accordance with the workflow delegations
which have been pre-set in the system. The
requisitioner on Agresso is often a member of
staff from the ordering team, however the
request to raise the requisition comes via email
from a member of the department.
In two out of ten cases where a purchase order
had been raised, it was identified that the email
requisitioner and the Agresso requisition
approver was the same person. Invoices with a
corresponding purchase order are automatically
matched to the invoice on the Agresso system
and is not subject to any other authorisation. (AP
Ref: 28642, order number: 2530031), (AP Ref:
38885, order number: 2529761).
Risk: Lack of segregation of duties which could
increase the risk of fraudulent invoice payments.

Requisitioners and system
approvers
should
be
reminded that two people
should be involved in the
raising and approving of
requisitions and invoices to
ensure
appropriate
segregation of duties are in
place.

Accepted but mitigating controls
are in place. Requisitions are
generated outside of Agresso
and therefore the same person
raising a requisition can also
approve a purchase order.
There were many practical
reasons and also cost
implications why the decision
was made not to raise
requisitions using the Agresso
software. Also, in this instance
the invoice value matched the
order value and therefore no
further
authorisation
is
undertaken on the invoice.
Controls that have been
introduced to mitigate against
the lack of separation of duties
and the risk of fraudulent
payments being made are: 1. Orders are raised by the
Finance Support Team.
Checks undertaken by
Finance Support ensure
the price and quantity is
correct and the purchase is
being made from an
approved supplier. This
control ensures separation
of duties between the
requisitioner and the
person generating the
purchase order.
2. If the invoice value does
not match the order value
the invoice goes for
approval to a budget holder
prior to payment.
Regular budget monitoring by
Strategic Finance with the
Budget Holder would identify
any irregular payments.

A reminder has been sent to relevant staff.

Recommendation
Implemented.

Health & Safety (Final report 15th June 2018)
Finding

Recommendation

Initial Management
Comments

Workplace Inspections

The
roles
and
responsibilities
for
completion of workforce
inspections should be
clearly stated, including any
delegations.

As part of the next Policy review
specific
roles
and
responsibilities with regard
workplace inspections will be
included within the Health and
Safety Advisors roles
As part of the new inspection
process a centralised record
showing dates of previous
inspections shall be developed.

Observation: The Health and Safety Policy
states that “The Force will ensure that all Police
owned premises will be subject to at least one
workplace inspection carried out on an annual
basis. Inspections will be carried out by suitably
identified building staff, Unison / Federation
representatives and a Health and Safety Advisor
if requested”. It further states that this should be
undertaken by the BCU Commander / Heads of
Departments.
However, audit found that this responsibility is
delegated to another officer and is not
completed by the BCU Commander or Head of
Department.
The Health and Safety Team do review some of
these inspections and provide advice, however
there is no central record that evidences these
reviews. Moreover, there is no specific
procedure, guidance or training provided to
ensure there is a consistent completion of
workplace inspections across the Force.
It was noted that due to a recent incident at a
police premises, additional inspections are
being carried out jointly by the Assets and H&S
Teams.

Risk: Health and safety inspections are not
consistently completed and, as a result, this
increases health and safety risks to both
employees and the public.

A centralised record of
completed
workplace
inspections should be
established and maintained
to ensure inspections are
being
completed
consistently
and
in
accordance with the Policy.

A workplace inspection
procedure or guidance
should be documented to
ensure a correct and
consistent approach to
inspections is followed. This
should
be
shared
throughout the Force.

The H&S Team should
consider running workplace
inspection training for the
relevant officers to ensure
that staff carrying out the
inspections
have
the
necessary skills to do so.

As a direct result of this audit
and
its
findings
and
recommendations in relation to
workplace
inspections,
a
decision has been made that
Health and Safety Advisors will
conduct workplace inspections
on an annual basis. These will
be spread out across the year
with findings fed back to
Divisional Committee meetings
as per Terms of Reference. This
will ensure that all premises are
subject to inspection on a rolling
basis, that they are consistently
completed and will negate the
need to deliver workplace
training to relevant officers and
develop an inspection guidance
or procedure.

Follow Up Result

Result /
Timeframe of Risk
Exposure

The Health & Safety advisors have taken
ownership of the workplace inspections and
have developed a programme to carry out site
inspections across all Derbyshire sites through
until 2022.

Recommendation
Implemented.

A standard template has been created to
ensure consistency and clarity for the
completion of workplace inspections.

External Contractors
Observations: The Health & Safety Policy
includes a contractor sections which states:
“The Force will ensure that where contractors
are working on any Police owned premise,
arrangements will be in place to ensure their
competence to carry out the required work and
that they shall complete the work in such a
manner as not to adversely affect the health and
safety of Police Officers and Police Staff working
on the premise.”
However, audit found that one of the Health and
Safety Strategy objectives for 2016-18, was for
the development of a framework for the on-site
monitoring of external contractors (building /
maintenance works), but this had not been
completed at the time of the audit.
The Assets section oversee external contractor
works and liaise with the H&S Team where
required, however there is a lack of clarity
regarding the process for sharing information
between the Assets Section and the H&S Team.
When the Procurement Team are reviewing
potential contractors, an evaluation panel
reviews, however a health and safety
representative is not included for new
contractors where there are health and safety
aspects of service/work provision.
Audit identified, through discussion with
Procurement, that there is no ongoing review of
due diligence documentation for contractors,
including specific health and safety evidence.
Risk: Increased health and safety risks to
employees and members of the public resulting
in liability claims and potential reputational
damage.

The external contractors onsite monitoring framework
should be completed and
include relevant reporting
requirements to provide
assurance over health and
safety.

Health and Safety will continue
to work with Assets to ensure
information regarding contractor
works is available to allow
monitoring inspections to take
place

A standard set of Health & Safety questions
has been completed which are to be answered
by the contractors as part of the tender
evaluation exercise. These will be reviewed by
health and safety advisors to provide
assurance over external contractor health and
safety credentials, at this stage of the
procurement process.

A H&S Team representative
should be included on the
tender evaluation panel for
all contracts that includes a
health and safety element.

Arrangements are to be made
with Procurement to ensure that
a
Health
and
Safety
representative is included on
tender evaluation panels going
forward.

Moreover, a centralised
contractors
framework spreadsheet has been created to
allow active tracking of onsite contractor work
and the health and safety inspections that will
be carried out when projects are being carried
out.

The sharing of health and
safety information between
Assets and the H&S Team
should be formalised and
agreed to ensure that the
Health and Safety Section
has an appropriate amount
of insight and proactive
monitoring of ongoing works
being completed by external
contractors.
A process to ensure the
periodic
refresh
of
contractor due diligence
documentation should be
established, along with a
contract monitoring checklist
to ensure health and safety
requirements are continued
to be met.

Discussions to be had between
Health and Safety and
Procurement
with
regard
suitable
timescales
and
associated processes

The due diligence documentation refresh has
been tasked but audit were unable to confirm
completion of this at the time of audit request.
It is due to be completed shortly.

Partially Implemented.

Strategy Objectives
Observations: The Health and Safety Strategy
2016-2018 includes six objectives that were
agreed in July 2016 to help focus the Force
Health & Safety Committee on actions to be
completed and achieved during the two year
period.
However, objective monitoring is not currently a
standing item on the Force H&S Committee
agenda. Audit reviewed the Committee meeting
minutes (October 2017 and March 2018) and
confirmed the progress of objectives
documented in the Strategy had not been
discussed.
The Strategy also states that progress on
objectives will be overseen by the Strategic
Governance Board. However, audit reviewed
the Strategic Governance Board Report to the
Chief Constable (September 2017 and March
2018) and found it does not include detail of
objectives progress.
Risk: Failure to deliver the Health and Safety
Strategy.
Committees are not focussed on the completion
of objectives and, as a result, the objectives are
not achieved.

Progress towards each
objectives
should
be
monitored and reported at
both the Force H&S
Committee and the Strategic
Governance Board in
accordance
with
the
reporting requirements as
set out in the Strategy.

Agendas and report templates to
be amended to ensure these
appear as standing Agenda
items.
(Current Strategy is due to
expire July 2018. Therefore
2018_2020 Strategy updates
will not commence until
approximately December when
new Strategy is developed and
approved)

Strategy yet to be developed and approved.
In regards to reporting of progress against the
Strategy, the decision has been made that the
Strategic Priorities Assurance Board will be
provided with an annual report from Health
and Safety.

Partially Implemented.
Revised
implementation date
31st March 2019.

Accident/Injury Reporting
Observations: The Gateway system is used
throughout the Force for accident / near miss
reporting. Individuals or their colleagues fill in
the initial report with key details and then this is
assigned to a line manager or most relevant
individual to investigate.
At both these stages an automated notification
should be sent to the H&S Team who review the
information and confirm if it is a reportable
incident under the RIDDOR guidance.
However, it was identified that these automated
notifications were not taking place as anticipated
and in some instances the notifications were not
been received by the H&S Team.
A sample of reported cases from the Gateway
system was tested to confirm that all reportable
instances had been reported to the HSE.
Audit found in one incident (17337) this had not
been reported to the HSE as this incident
occurred prior to the accident reporting system
upgrade and, as such, had been ‘stuck’ in the
system and not identified as reportable to HSE.

The H&S Advisor confirmed that this will now be
reported, although it will have been reported
outside of HSE reporting timescale (15 days).
Risk: Non-compliance with Health and Safety
Executive mandatory reporting requirements
potentially resulting in regulator inspections,
penalties and risk to reputation.

The H&S Team should
ensure
they
receive
notifications of reportable
incidents.
The H&S Team should
review all appropriate
accident reports to confirm
there are no further ‘stuck’
cases in the system that
require reporting to the
Health
and
Safety
Executive.

In relation to the report identified
as part of the audit, this issue
has been raised with the
software supplier

The current notification issue
does not affect the Health and
Safety Team becoming aware of
reportable incidents. There are
two notifications generated
when an incident is reported and
it is the second of these
notifications (which confirms an
investigation
has
been
completed) which is currently
not being received. The initial
notification that an incident has
occurred is still received and it is
at the point of receipt of this
notification that it can be
identified if the HSE needs
informing.

In addition to this the Health and
Safety Team already produce a
quarterly report to identify any
accident reports which still
require completing. Identified
Supervising Officers / Line
Managers are contacted with
details of the outstanding report
and requested to complete an
investigation as soon as
possible

The H&S advisor has liaised with the IT
Supplier and the issue with notifications has
been addressed.
The items identified as ‘stuck’ in the system
were investigated during the time of the audit
and the issues with these in the system have
been resolved.

Recommendations
Implemented.

Accident/Injury Reporting Process
Observations: An Incident Reporting Procedure
and Accident & Incident Reporting Manager
guide is available on the intranet. A review of
these documents found that they were last
updated in March 2015 and June 2013
respectively. Both documents reflect the
previous reporting process in place prior to the
Gateway system upgrade and therefore do not
reflect the correct process to be followed.
Audit testing identified seven investigated
accident reports where the accident severity had
been populated on the Gateway system as ‘Not
Yet Known'. This is a key identifier for the H&S
Team in understanding if the accident should be
reported to RIDDOR and therefore needs to be
completed. Although it was confirmed from the
DMS system that the accidents were not
RIDDOR reportable, the procedure and
manager guide should ensure this information is
completed.

Risk: Procedures and guidance do not provide
accurate information resulting in incorrect
working practices being followed and failure to
comply with the RIDDOR guidance.

The Accident & Incident
reporting procedures should
be updated to ensure that
key information is captured
that allows the Force to
ensure compliance with the
RIDDOR guidance.

The Health and Safety Team
shall update the procedure to
reflect the system upgrade and
ensure that Managers are aware
of key information to be checked
prior to submission of an
accident.

The accident and incident reporting
procedures have been appropriately updated.

Recommendation
Implemented.

The Co-ordination of Health and Safety
Training
Observation: The H&S Advisor confirmed that
the Force previously ran a core leadership
course which covered basic health and safety,
however this was phased out. Training in the
regional has been largely centralised, with the
regional learning and development unit
providing most training courses. The H&S team
are not currently aware of what elements of
health and safety are covered as part of an
employee induction or if new sergeants and
managers are receiving any health and safety
related training.
Historically some training courses were
mandatory, such as Risk Assessment training,
however this was stopped in 2015. The H&S
Team oversee some elements of training, such
as the completion of Display Screen Equipment,
but were unclear on all mandatory training that
is relatable to health and safety.
Risk: Training provided across the Force is
inconsistent and may result in employees not
being able to competently undertaken health
and safety responsibilities.
Employees are at an increased risk of harm due
to the lack of provision of health and safety
training.

The H&S team should
review all mandatory and
optional training courses
that staff are undertaking for
health and safety to ensure
these
courses
are
appropriate.
The H&S Team should liaise
with the regional learning
and development unit to
confirm what elements of
H&S are included within
training courses and provide
the Force with assurance
over levels of H&S training
being received by the
workforce.
Information
sharing
regarding the training
courses provided and
completion dates should be
established to ensure that
this can be included in
reports
provided
to
Divisional and Force Health
and safety Committees.

The Health & Safety Team will
work with the regional learning
and development unit with
regard these recommendations

The Health and Safety Team have liaised with
the regional unit to review the mandatory
training being provided and have confirmed
they are happy with the contents of the training
in regards to health and safety.
Moreover the team have also carried out a
review of the induction and management
training courses as well. They have raised
concerns over the amount of health and safety
content within them. They are working with the
regional unit to address this.
When health and safety training courses are
rolled out the health and safety team will track
the completion rates and provide the data to
the relevant health and safety committees. As
no training courses have been rolled out since
the audit visit, audit has not been able to see
the new system in operation

Recommendation
Implemented.

Appendix 1 – Definitions of Recommendations
Definitions of Recommendations
Priority

Description

Priority 1 (Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control weaknesses, which expose the organisation to a high degree of
unnecessary risk.

Priority 2 (Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control weaknesses which expose the organisation to a moderate degree of
unnecessary risk.

Priority 3 (Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to
improve efficiency or further reduce exposure to risk.
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5C
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE
REPORT
TITLE

STRATEGY FOR INTERNAL AUDIT 2019/20 TO 2021/22
AND 2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

REPORT BY BRIAN WELCH
DATE

13 FEBRUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
To review and advise on the draft annual internal audit plan for 2019/20 to 2021/22,
ensuring that this :
•

is consistent with professional standards;

•

meets the audit needs of the PCC and the Chief Constable; and

•

provides the JARAC with adequate coverage for the purpose of obtaining
appropriate levels of assurance over the adequacy of the risk management,
governance and internal control environment of both the PCC and Chief
Constable.

ATTACHMENTS
Internal Audit Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 and the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS
i.

To review and make comments on the adequacy of the proposed Strategy for
Internal Audit 2019/20 to 2021/22 and the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

ii.

To recommend, subject to any amendments, the final plan to the Chief Constable
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective approvals.

AGENDA ITEM 5B
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 FEBRUARY 2019

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Andrew Dale

Tel:

0300 122 6000

Email

pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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OVERVIEW
1.

The Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act introduced in November 2012 the
legal concept of 2 corporations sole for the Police and Crime Commissioner and
the Chief Constable with two Annual Governance Statements to support the
relevant statements of accounts and the group accounts.

2.

As part of a robust risk management process, internal controls are reviewed in
several ways; one such assurance is provided by the work of the internal audit
function.

3.

Given that the systems and process for both corporations sole are aligned, it has
been agreed, in consultation with both internal and external auditors, that there
will be one common audit strategy addressing all internal control review
requirements.

4.

Our internal audit is currently provided by Mazars as part of a regional contract.

5.

Each year an annual audit plan is compiled which the JARAC will review,
comment on and approve. It is an important feature of the governance function
that this Committee, with the advice of the Chief Finance Officer and the Director
of Finance, can influence and direct those areas of review which it thinks are
appropriate.

6.

The work of External Audit is dependent to a certain extent on the assurances
provided by internal audit, especially on the key financial controls in place in both
the organisations. This avoids duplication of cost and effort.

7.

Attached at APPENDIX A to this report are the draft Internal Audit Strategy
2019/20 to 2021/22 and the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20.

8.

The JARAC is required to consider
•

if the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see
Appendix A) reflects the areas that the Committee believes should be
covered as a priority, taking into account the assurance work that been
carried out

•

if the audit strategy includes all those areas that the Committee would
expect to be subject to internal audit coverage for both the Chief
Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner, in terms not only of
professional responsibilities but also covering areas of concern flagged by
management
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•

if the level of audit resource is accepted by the Committee and agreed as
appropriate, given the level of assurance required

•
9.

the detailed audit plan at Appendix A.

Members are requested to consider the proposals and to suggest any changes
they think are appropriate before recommending the 2019/20 audit plan to the
Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Commissioner for their respective
approvals.

10.

From time to time, it may be appropriate to amend the audit plan or to
commission work within the plan from any pooled resource/contingency
allocation. Where this might need to be actioned outside the cycle of JARAC
meetings, the Chief Finance Officer or the Director of Finance will make minor
changes to the audit plan. Changes will be reported through the audit update.
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Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police
Draft Internal Audit Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 and 2019/20 Internal Audit
Plan
January 2019
This report has been prepared on the basis of the limitations set out on page 12.

This report and the work connected therewith are subject to the Terms and Conditions of the Framework Agreement dated 21 April 2015 between The Police and Crime
Commissioner for Nottinghamshire and Mazars LLP and Order Form dated 12 May 2015 between Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Mazars LLP. This report
is confidential and has been prepared for the sole use of Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire. This report must not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in
whole or in part without our prior written consent. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or liability to any third party who purports to use or rely, for
any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions.
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1.

Introduction

1.1

A three-year proposed Strategic Audit Plan has been prepared on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and Derbyshire Police
(the OPCC and Force) for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022, together with an operational audit plan for 2019/20.

1.2

As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its attention
on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks. As Internal
Audit is a one source of this assurance, Internal Audit were requested to carry out an assurance mapping exercise which would identify where the
OPCC / Force obtains this assurance and that the Internal Audit plan is suitably focused and aligned with other sources of assurance. The results of
this exercise were considered when drawing the audit plan.

1.3

Appendix A contains our proposed Annual Audit Plan 2019 – 2020.

1.4

Appendix B sets out our proposed Strategic Audit Plan 2019 – 2022.

2.

The Scope and Purpose of Internal Audit

2.1

Internal Audit’s primary role is to provide the organisation’s management with independent assurance on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
that contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s business objectives. In so doing, this will support the OPCC and Force in signing the Annual
Governance Statement. It is also Internal Audit’s role to provide the OPCC and Force with assurance that they have in place effective processes for
the management of risk.

2.2

In drawing up the internal audit work programme it should be noted that:
•

The OPCC and Force are accountable for internal control. The OPCC and Force are responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives, and for reviewing its effectiveness;

•

The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve these objectives;

•

The system of internal control can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness; and

•

The system of internal control is based on an on-going risk management process designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of the
organisation’s objectives; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

Page 1

2.3

As set out in the Audit Charter, Internal Audit fulfils its role by:
•

Coordinating assurance activities with other assurance providers (such as the external auditors and HMICFRS) such that the assurance needs of
the OPCC and Force, regulators and other stakeholders are met in the most effective way.

•

Evaluating and assessing the implications of new or changing systems, products, services, operations and control processes.

•

Carrying out assurance and consulting activities across all aspects of the OPCC and Force’s business based on a risk-based plan agreed with the
Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee (JARAC).

•

Providing the Police & Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and
effectiveness of the key controls associated with the management of risk in the area being audited.

•

Issuing periodic reports to the JARAC and Senior Management Team summarising results of assurance activities.

•

Re-enforcing an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the OPCC and Force to aid the prevention and detection of fraud.

•

Assisting in the investigation of allegations of fraud, bribery and corruption within the OPCC and Force and notifying management and the JARAC
of the results.

•

Assessing the adequacy of remedial action to address significant risk and control issues reported to the JARAC. Responsibility for remedial action
in response to audit findings rests with line management.

3.

Approach

3.1

As part of fulfilling the Joint Audit, Risk & Assurance Committee’s (JARAC) responsibilities, the JARAC require assurance that it is focusing its attention
on the key risks to the OPCC and Force and that it is receiving timely and effective assurance with regards the management of those risks. As Internal
Audit is a one source of this assurance, Internal Audit have reviewed the OPCC / Force Risk Register with the aim of identifying where the OPCC /
Force obtains this assurance and that the Internal Audit plan is suitably focused and aligned with other sources of assurance. The results of this exercise
were considered when drawing the audit plan.
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3.2

The Assurance Framework provides a top-down identification and analysis of the assurance needs of the JARAC, and aims to provide a co-ordinated
view of the activity of the various assurance providers and therefore the right combination of direct, risk and independent assurance activities as shown
below:
1s t Lin e of D e fe nc e
D e p a rtm e nt s

2 nd Line of D e fe nce
C o m p lia n ce an d L e g al
C o rp o ra te R isk

D e p ar tm e n t a l
co n tro l a ctivitie s

3.3

3 rd L in e of De fe nc e

A u d it F un c tio n s

S e cu rity, I nv es tig a tio n s et c

In drawing up the operational and strategic audit plan, the assurance mapping exercise identified where the OPCC / Force obtained assurance it was
managing its key risks, with the aim of aligning the Internal Audit plan with other sources of assurance. The review was carried out through discussions
with appropriate staff and review of documents to confirm the adequacy of the assurance processes in place. In particular we:
Agreed the key strategic risks (OPCC and Force) that the JARAC require assurance on.
Identified and met with the nominated risk owners.
Through discussions and the review of relevant documents, using the ‘three lines of defence’ model referred to above, determined the key
sources of assurance that the risks are being effectively managed.
Identified and agreed gaps in assurance.
Agreed whether the gaps should be addressed and, if so, the likely sources of assurance available.
In determining Internal Audit’s current and future role in the ‘assurance landscape’, we noted that Internal Audit has a wider remit than purely focusing
on just those risks set out in the Strategic Risk Registers of the OPCC and Force, and is required to provide assurance on the systems of internal
control, risk management and governance arrangements. For this reason, we also considered other key areas of assurance including those relating to
Finance, Governance, Procurement, Information Technology and Risk Management.
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3.4

Through a focused approach to assurance, the internal audit service can be utilised to provide the right level of assurance, it can avoid unnecessary
use of its finite resources and it can support the OPCC and Force in maintaining an effective Assurance Framework. Internal Audit, through its support
for the Assurance Framework, should:
•
•
•
•

3.5

support the OPCC and Force in managing its risks through the establishment (and, more importantly, the maintenance) of an Assurance
Framework that is fit for purpose;
look to other sources of assurance and assurance providers, including third party assurance, to supplement the resources of the internal audit
team;
work alongside other assurance providers, such as External Audit, to more effectively provide assurance and avoid duplication; and
through risk-based auditing, focus internal audit resource on what is really important to each organisation.

Further to the above risk identification process, it should also be remembered that Derbyshire form part of the East Midlands Policing Region and, as
such, collaborate on a wide variety of services. The aim will therefore be to, wherever possible, align the audit plans across the region in order to secure
efficiencies through collaborative auditing.

4 External Audit Consultation
4.1

We liaise closely with your external auditors in preparing, and then delivering, a co-ordinated approach to the provision of assurance.

4.2

We speak regularly with the External Auditors to consult on audit plans; discuss matters of mutual interest; discuss common understanding of audit
techniques; methods and terminology; and to seek opportunities for co-operation in the conduct of audit work. In particular, we will offer the External
Auditors the opportunity to rely on our work where appropriate, provided this does not prejudice our independence.

4.3

Internal audit forms a significant part of the organisation’s governance arrangements and it is therefore also important that Internal and External Audit
have an effective working relationship. To facilitate this relationship we included in the Audit Charter liaison arrangement with the external auditors
under the Public Internal Audit Standards. The key principles behind this agreement are:
•

a willingness and commitment to working together;

•

clear and open lines of communication; and

•

avoidance of duplication of work where possible.
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Appendix A – Annual Audit Plan 2019-20
AUDITABLE AREA

PROPOSED
TIMING1

JARAC2

PLAN
DAYS

RISK REF /
CAT.

Commentary on Coverage

Core Assurance
To provide assurance with regards the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems of internal control in operation to manage the core financial systems.
The scope of the work will include, but not be limited to:

Core Financial Systems
Assurance:
• General Ledger
• Cash, Banking & Treasury
Management
• Payments & Creditors
• Income & Debtors

Q3

Feb 2020

14

Payroll

Q3

Feb 2020

5

Risk Management

Q1

July 2019

6

Core

Core

•
•
•
•
•
•

Policies and procedures
Access controls
Amendments to standing data
Reconciliations
Authorisation routines
Reporting

To provide assurance that there are effective controls in place for delivering the
payroll service. Testing will be primarily be carried out on site at Leicestershire
Police, who deliver the service on behalf of Derbyshire. However, we also cover
‘front end’ processes at Derbyshire and arrangements in place within the payroll
bureau, Kier, in respect of access controls, payroll reporting and approval / signoff routines.
To provide assurance that risk management arrangements are in place and
contribute to the effective management of risk.
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AUDITABLE AREA

PROPOSED
TIMING1

JARAC2

PLAN
DAYS

RISK REF /
CAT.

STR1192

Commentary on Coverage

Strategic & Operational Risk Assurance
Budget Control & Savings
Plans

Q2

Nov 2019

8

To provide assurance with regards the robustness of the Force’s budget control
processes and the identification, monitoring and reporting on savings plans.

Property Management

Q2

Nov 2019

9

To ensure that effective policies and procedures are in place for the seizure and
management of property.

Commissioning

Q4

Feb 2020

7

The audit will provide assurance with regards the controls and processes in
place to ensure that there is an effective Commissioning Framework in place
STR2020
that contributes to the delivery of the Police & Crime Plan.

IT Governance

Q3

Feb 2020

8

Using computer specialist resource, the objective will be to provide assurance
STR1960 /
with regards key IT risks, such as those relating to data security, IT policies and
1033
procedures, network infrastructure and application controls.

7

The audit will review the extent to which the Estates Strategy is being delivered,
STR1035 / including collaborative arrangements with the Fire Service, and how it
2014
contributes to the strategic and medium / long term objectives of the OPCC /
Force.

Estates Management

Fleet Management

Q4

Q1

May 2020

July 2019

To provide assurance with regards the systems and controls in place for
managing the force fleet of vehicles, taking account of collaborative
arrangements with the Fire Service.

7
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AUDITABLE AREA

PROPOSED
TIMING1

JARAC2

PLAN
DAYS

RISK REF /
CAT.

Commentary on Coverage

Collaboration

Collaboration

Q3 & Q4

Feb & May
2020

Resources have been allocated across each OPCC / Force in order to provide
assurance with regards to the systems and controls in place to deliver specific
elements of regional collaboration.

10

Consideration will be given to assessing whether the area of collaboration is
delivering against its original objectives and what arrangements are in place,
from an OPCC / Force perspective, for monitoring and managing the service.

Other

Audit Management
Follow Up of
Recommendations
TOTAL
1
2

Ongoing

14

This includes audit planning, production of progress and annual reports, and
attendance at progress and JARAC meetings. Time will also be set aside to
provide training to JARAC members.

5

To provide assurance
recommendations.

100

Proposed timings for each audit to be agreed, with any changes reported to the JARAC.
Dates for delivery to the JARAC to be included within future progress reports when known.
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that

management

have

implemented

audit

Appendix B – Strategic Audit Plan 2019-22
Audit Assignment

2019/2020

2020/2021

2021/2022

RISK REF /
CAT.

Core Assurance
Core Financials Systems

Core

Payroll

Core

Risk Management

Core

Governance
Strategic & Operational Risk
Procurement
Complaints

STR2010 /
PRO1088

IT Security

STR1960
STR1089 / 1913
/ 1894

Business Continuity
Budget Control & Savings Plans

STR1192

Firearms Licencing
Property Management
STR2020

Commissioning
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Audit Assignment

2019/2020

2020/2021

2021/2022

RISK REF /
CAT.

Partnerships

STR1803 / 1979

IT Governance

STR1960 / 1033

Recruitment

STR1422 / 1099

Estates Management

STR1035 / 2014
STR1978

Victims Support
Fleet Management

STR1219

Health & Safety
Data Quality

STR1046/ 1959

Absence Management

STR1098 / 1219

Project Management
Collaboration
Collaboration
Other
Follow-up of Recommendations

General

Audit Management
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Appendix C – Levels of Assurance & Opinions
Definitions of Assurance Levels
Assurance Level

Adequacy of system design

Effectiveness of operating
controls

Significant
Assurance:

There is a sound system of internal The control processes tested are being
control designed to achieve the consistently applied.
Organisation’s objectives.

Satisfactory
Assurance:

While there is a basically sound
system of internal control, there are
weaknesses which put some of the
Organisation’s objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance:

Weaknesses in the system of internal The level of non-compliance puts the
controls are such as to put the Organisation’s objectives at risk.
Organisation’s objectives at risk.

No Assurance:

Control processes are generally weak Significant non-compliance with basic
leaving the processes/systems open control
processes
leaves
the
to significant error or abuse.
processes/systems open to error or
abuse.

There is evidence that the level of noncompliance with some of the control
processes may put some of the
Organisation’s objectives at risk.

Definitions of Recommendations
Priority

Description

Priority 1
(Fundamental)

Recommendations represent fundamental control weaknesses, which expose the
organisation to a high degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 2
(Significant)

Recommendations represent significant control weaknesses which expose the
organisation to a moderate degree of unnecessary risk.

Priority 3
(Housekeeping)

Recommendations show areas where we have highlighted opportunities to
implement a good or better practice, to improve efficiency or further reduce
exposure to risk.
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Appendix D – Contact Details

Contact Details
07552 007708
David Hoose
David.Hoose@mazars.co.uk

07780 970200
Brian Welch
Brian.Welch@mazars.co.uk
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Statement of Responsibility
We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below.
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of
our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or
all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed
by you for their full impact before they are implemented. The performance of our work is not and
should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound
management practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal
controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management
and work performed by us should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in
internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Even sound
systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not
be proof against collusive fraud. Our procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by
management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to
provide us full access to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our work
and to ensure the authenticity of such material. Effective and timely implementation of our
recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control
system.
Mazars LLP
London
January 2019
This document is confidential and prepared solely for your information. Therefore you should not,
without our prior written consent, refer to or use our name or this document for any other purpose,
disclose them or refer to them in any prospectus or other document, or make them available or
communicate them to any other party. No other party is entitled to rely on our document for any
purpose whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown or gains
access to this document.
Registered office: Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD, United
Kingdom. Registered in England and Wales No 4585162.
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars
LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales to carry out
company audit work.
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AGENDA ITEM

6A
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE
REPORT
TITLE

AUDIT PLANNING REPORT

REPORT BY ANDREW DALE
DATE

13 FEBRUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1

To advise the Committee of the proposed external Audit Plan for the financial
year 2018/19 and the audit of the statements of accounts.

ATTACHMENTS
Audit Planning Report for year ended 31 March 2019

RECOMMENDATIONS
i.

To receive the External Audit Plan 2018/19

ii.

To raise any matters of further concern with the Audit Director.

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Andrew Dale

Tel:

0300 122 6000

Email

pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

AGENDA ITEM 6A
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 FEBRUARY 2019

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
1. An External Audit Plan covering the work that will be carried out to support the
Audit opinion for the Statements of Accounts for 2018/19 has been provided to and
reviewed by the two statutory Chief Finance Officers.
2. The plan details the audit approach which covers planning, the control evaluation,
substantive procedures and other audit matters. A copy of the plan is attached as
APPENDIX A to this report
3. The fee for the activity is £35,984. This is split into £11,550 for the Chief Constable
and £23,897 for the Commissioner.
4. Mr Hassan Rohimun of Ernst & Young, will be present to talk to this paper and
answer Members’ questions.
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AGENDA ITEM 6A
JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

Audit planning report
The Police and Crime Commissioner
for Derbyshire.
The Chief Constable for Derbyshire
Year ended 31 March 2019
13 February 2019

Private and Confidential

13 February 2019

Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Derbyshire
Butterley Hall
Ripley
Derbyshire
DE5 3RS
Dear Hardyal and Mick
Audit planning report 2018/19
We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide you
and the Joint Audit Risk and Assurance Committee (JARAC) with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the
Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It
is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with yours and the Committee’s expectations.
This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Police and Crime Commissioner
(PCC) and Chief Constable (CC), and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of you, JARAC and senior management of both the PCC and CC, and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 13 February 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.
Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Enc
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Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/auditquality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the PCC, CC, JARAC and senior management of both the office of the PCC and CC in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the PCC, CC, JARAC and senior management of both the office of the PCC and CC those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the the PCC, CC, JARAC and senior management of both the office of the PCC and CC for this report or for the opinions we
have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit 0
01 strategy
1
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the PCC and CC with an
overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.
Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus
Risk of fraud in revenue
and expenditure
recognition
Misstatements due to fraud
or error arising from
management override of
controls
Collaborative
arrangements
Other financial statement
inherent risk

Risk identified
Fraud risk/
Significant risk
Fraud risk

Included in
management
override risk
Other financial
statement
inherent risk

Details
Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of
expenditure recognition. Further details are provided at page 9.
As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate
accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that
would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Additional details are provided at page 10.
The joint arrangements operate with partners across the east midlands. There is a risk that the allocation of activity
in the financial statements is not correctly recorded in their financial statements. Additional details are provided at
page 10.
Funding of the Group’s participation in the LGPS will continue to have an impact on both its cash flows and the
liability in the balance sheet.
The PCC and CC are members of the LGPS, administered by Derbyshire Pension Fund. The net pension liability was
£2.099 billion as at 31 March 2018.
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to a range of assumptions such as rates of pay and
pension inflation, mortality and discount rates. The pension fund valuations separately involve external specialists,
to provide these actuarial assumptions. A small movement in these assumptions could have a material impact on
the value in the balance sheet. Based on our sector experience we also consider that there is also a risk that the
Group’s share of the LGPS scheme assets may be understated. Both these areas will be of audit focus and further
details are provided at page 11.
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the PCC and CC with an
overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.
Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus
Valuation of property, plant and
equipment (PPE)

Risk identified
Other financial
statement inherent
risk

PFI accounting

Other financial
statement risk

IFRS 9 – Financial statements

Other financial
statement risk

IFRS 15 – Revenue contracts with
customers

Other financial
statement risk

Accounting for associates and joint
ventures

Other financial
statement risk

Details
PPE accounts for a significant proportion of the PCC’s assets (£33.2m as at 31 March 2018).
The PCC’s external valuation expert undertakes a rolling programme of valuations that
ensures that all land and building assets required to be measured at fair value are revalued at
least every five years. The valuation of land and buildings is subject to a number of
assumptions and judgements and a small movement in these assumptions could have a
material impact on the financial statements. Further details are on page 12.
The PCC has two PFI Schemes, Ilkeston Police Station and the South Division Headquarters in
Derby. Correctly accounting for PFI transactions involves transactions which are derived from
an operating models for which assumptions and changes need to be accurately updated and
reflected. There is a risk that disclosures in the financial statements are not consistent with
the PFI operating model. Further details are provided at page 12.

These are new accounting standards that impact on the financial statements for 2018/19.
There is a risk that the PCC and CC do not implement the requirements of the standards
correctly. Further details of the risk are provided at page 13.

In 2014/15 the PCC entered into two joint service arrangements with Derbyshire Fire and
Rescue Service which consist of a joint headquarters and a joint training centre. There is a risk
of misstatement that the accounting treatment of these joint service arrangements are not in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard in the financial statements. Further details
of the risk are provided at page 14.
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy (continued)
Materiality
We have determined that materiality for the financial statements of the PCC Group, the subsidiaries (PCC and CC Single entities accounts) and the Police
Pension Fund is: £5.5m, £1.7m, £5.3m, £1.1m, respectively. This represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure for the PCC Group and gross assets for
PCC Single entity accounts; 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services for the CC single entity accounts and 2% of benefits payable for
the Police Pension Fund.
Performance materiality for the PCC Group, the subsidiaries and the Police Pension Fund have been set at £2.8m, £0.8m, £2.7m, £0.54m, which represent 50%
of planning materiality.
We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement
in reserves statement, cash flow statement and police pension fund financial statements). These are set out in audit difference thresholds at page 18. Other
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the PCC and CC.
We will update our assessment of materiality on receipt of the draft PCC and CC financial statements.
Audit scope
This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:
§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of the PCC and CC for Derbyshire gives a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and
of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
§ Our conclusion on the PCC and CC’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the PCC’s and CC’s Whole of Government
Accounts return.
Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.
When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
§
§
§
§
§

Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
The quality of systems and processes;
Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the PCC and CC.
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02 Audit risks
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Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

What is the risk?

Our audit approach

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the public
sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by
the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should
also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We will;
• Review and test revenue and expenditure
recognition policies;
• Review and discuss with management any
accounting estimates on revenue or expenditure
recognition for evidence of bias;
• Develop a testing strategy to test material
revenue and expenditure streams; and
• Review and test revenue cut-off at the period end
date.

We consider this risk to be present in the financial statements of
the PCC, the CC and the Group.
Financial statement impact
Misstatements that occur in
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts.
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Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
Misstatements due to fraud or
error

Financial statement impact
We consider that the risk impacts
on the following balances in the
financial statements:
• Year-end trade payables and the
calculation of estimates,
accruals and provisions which
impacts on the completeness
and valuation assertions.
• The accounting adjustments
processed and disclosed in the
movement in reserves
statements and supporting
notes.

What is the risk?

Our audit approach

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

We will;

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit
engagement.

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls
put in place to address those risks.

We consider the risk most focussed around items of
expenditure that are non-routine and involve management’s
judgement and estimation to determine items such as yearend accruals and provisions.

• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those
identified risks of fraud.

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with
governance of management’s processes over fraud.
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s
controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically
identified fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and
other adjustments in the preparation of the financial
statements.
• Perform a search for unrecorded liabilities at the balance
sheet date by reference to post year end payments made
and purchase invoices received.
• For a sample of additions to property, plant and equipment
we will examine source documentation to confirm that the
expenditure is appropriately capitalised.
• With regard to collaborative arrangements:
• Review the underlying allocation of expenditure in
the Authority’s own accounts against agreements
in place
• Seek further assurance from external auditors at
the other Police Authorities where required over
any significant stream of expenditure not
controlled by Derbyshire.
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

Our audit approach

Pension Liability Valuation

Local Government and Police Pension Schemes
We will:
• Update our documentation of management’s processes and controls over pension expenditure and deduction of
employer and employee contributions;
• Liaise with the auditors of Derbyshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the information supplied to the
actuary in relation to Derbyshire Police Force;
• Review the work of the Local Government actuary (Hymans Robertson LLP) and the Police Pension actuary
including the assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by
Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant
reviews by the EY actuarial team to ensure they are in our expected range; and
• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the PCC and CC’s financial statements to
ensure consistency with the IAS 19 entries in both actuarial reports.

The Local Authority Accounting Code of
Practice and IAS19 require extensive
disclosures within the financial statements
regarding membership of the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by
Derbyshire County Council.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS
19 report issued to the PCC and CC by the
actuaries to the Derbyshire Pension Fund and
also the Police Pension Fund. Accounting for
these schemes involves significant estimation
and judgement and therefore management
engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake
procedures on the use of management experts
and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates

Police Pension Scheme (only)
We will:
• Test a sample of lump sums and pension payments for new Police pensioners;
• Complete a predictive analytical review for both the pensions payroll and employees and employers pension
contributions;
• Assess management’s arrangements to reconcile the active and pensioner membership numbers.
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

Our audit approach

Valuation of PPE

We will:
• Document our understanding of the processes and controls in place to mitigate the risks identified, and walk
through those processes and controls to confirm our understanding
• Test the revaluation cycle, including instruction and completeness of information provided to the external valuer
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre
• Review each class of asset and the valuation approach adopted to assess where the risk of material misstatement
is higher. We will share this risk assessment with management.
• Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of management’s specialist.
• Review any terms of engagement or instructions issued to the valuer to ensure these are consistent with
accounting standards.
• Engage our valuation specialists to support our testing strategy and help evaluate the work of the PCC’s valuer.
• Perform appropriate tests over the completeness and appropriateness of information provided to the valuer.
• Review the classification of assets and ensure the correct valuation methodology has been applied.
• Ensure the valuer’s conclusions have been appropriately recorded in the accounts.
• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year rolling programme
as required by the Code for PPE and annually for IP. We have also considered if there are any specific changes to
assets that have occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer;
• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset base is not materially
misstated;
• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

The fair value of Property, Plant and
Equipment including assets held for sale,
represent significant balances in the Group
accounts and are subject to valuation changes,
impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation
techniques to calculate the year-end balances
recorded in the balance sheet.

Accounting for the PFI schemes
The PCC has two PFI schemes and there is a
risk that disclosures in the financial
statements are not consistent with the PFI
operating model.

We will:
• Test the completeness and accuracy of the inputs to the financial model and the subsequent correct application
of the outputs to the financial statements.
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?
IFRS 9 financial instruments
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year and will change;
• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

Our audit approach?
We will:
• Assess the PCC and CC implementation arrangements that will include an impact
assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;
• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the
2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
guidance on the application of IFRS 9. However, until the Guidance Notes
are issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed there remains
some uncertainty on the accounting treatment.
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year.
The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

We will:
• Assess the PCC and CC’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact
assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;
• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance
obligation; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

The 2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful
flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and
how they should be recognised.
The impact on Police accounting is likely to be limited as large revenue
streams like council tax and government grants will be outside the scope
of IFRS 15. However where that standard is relevant, the recognition of
revenue will change and new disclosure requirements introduced.
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Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

Our audit approach?

Accounting for associates and joint ventures

We will:
• Review both joint service agreements to understand the nature and responsibilities for
both the PCC and the Fire and Rescue Service.
• Review management’s assessment of the required accounting treatment in the
financial statements.
• Test the accounting entries and disclosures to confirm that the correct accounting
standard has been applied.

There is a risk of misstatement that the accounting treatment of the joint
service arrangements are not in accordance with the relevant accounting
standard in the financial statements. Further details of the risk are
provided at page 14.
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Background
We are required to consider whether the PCC and CC have put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.
For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:
“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”
Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:
§
§
§

Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.
We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level. In 2018/19 this has included consideration of the steps taken by the PCC and
CC to consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and investment
values. Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that PCC’s and CC’s will be carrying
out scenario planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.
Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of the significant risks noted on the following page which we
view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.
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Value for Money Significant Risks
What is the significant value for money risk?
Securing financial resilience
In common with other Police bodies Derbyshire
Police is facing significant financial pressures in the
medium term.
In January 2018, the MTFS reported a forecast
deficit of £2.35m by 2020/21. Review of the
updated MTFS in January 2019, highlighted that
the financial challenges had increased with the
cumulative forecast deficit to 2022/23,now
standing at £8.6m. This is predicated on the
contribution of reserves totalling £6.6m from
2019/20 to 2021/22. Actions are being taken to
identify plans to mitigate the risk.

What arrangements
does the risk affect?
Deploy resources in a
sustainable manner.
Planning finances
effectively to support
the sustainable delivery
of strategic priorities
and maintain statutory
functions

Our audit approach
We plan to review:
• the detail of the revised MTFS including the adequacy of the major assumptions;
• how the organisation has monitored progress of strategic delivery plans;
• how the PCC has considered the impact of the Local Government settlement for
2019/20 on the MTFS;
• The plans that have been developed to identify future savings and the level of
reported savings delivered in year.
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Audit materiality

Materiality
Materiality

Key definitions

For planning purposes, materiality for the PCC
Group and PCC Single Entity for 2018/19 has
been set at £5.5m & £1.7m, respectively. This
is based on 2% of the audited prior year gross
expenditure for the PCC Group and prior year
gross assets for PCC Single Entity.

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements would influence the economic
decisions of a user of the financial statements.

Planning materiality for the CC Single Entity
has been set at £5.3m which is 2% of the
audited prior year gross expenditure.
Materiality for the Police Pension Fund has
been set at £1.1m which represents 2% of the
higher of the audited prior year contributions
receivable/benefits payable of the Police
Pension Fund.
All levels of materiality will be reassessed
throughout the audit process.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of our audit procedures. We have set
performance materiality for the PCC Group, PCC and CC Single Entity Accounts & Police Pension Fund at £2.7m,
£0.8m, £2.7m, £0.5m, respectively, which represent 50% of planning materiality.
Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified below this threshold are deemed clearly
trivial. We have set the audit difference threshold for the Group at £274k with the thresholds set for the PCC and
CC Single Entity Accounts & Police Pension Fund set at £84k, £267k and £54k, respectively. We will report to you
all uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement, balance sheet and the police pension fund financial statements that have an effect on income or that
relate to other comprehensive income.
Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and misstatements in the cashflow statement and
movement in reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be communicated to the extent
that they merit the attention of the PCC and the CC, or are important from a qualitative perspective.
Specific materiality – We have also identified the following areas where misstatement at a lower level than our
overall materiality level might influence the reader. The areas identified in our audit strategy applied include:
• We assess the Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination
benefits as numerically sensitive and set a materiality level of £1k, being the rounding number in the financial
statements.
• Related party transactions. For any errors identified in related parties we considered the concept of the
materiality of transactions and balances as would relevant to the related individual or organisation.
• External audit fees: we set a materiality of £1k being the rounding number in the accounts.
• JARAC members’ allowances; a figure of £1k is judged appropriate.
• Cash and bank balances: given the inherent risk we have set a materiality level of £0.
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Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy
Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping
Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the PCC and CC’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.
We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit
Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.
Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.
Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO [delete if not applicable]
2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)
We are required to consider whether the PCC and CC has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on their use of
resources.
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Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)
Audit Process Overview
Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.
For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.
Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the JARAC.
Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We do not plan to place reliance on the work of
internal audit but will consider the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they
raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

22

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

Our audit approach

Earlier deadline for production of the financial statements

We will:
• Work with the PCC and CC to engage early to facilitate substantive testing at the
interim visit where appropriate.
• Continue to operate the EY Client Portal facility:
o Streamline our audit requests through a reduction of emails and improved
means of communication;
o Provide on –demand visibility into the status of audit requests and the
overall audit status;
o Reduce risk of duplicate requests; and
o Provide better security of sensitive data.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change
in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year which required the
PCC and CC to prepare and approve the accounts by 31 May and 31 July
2018, respectively.
Whilst these changes provided risks for both the preparers and the auditors
of the financial statements, the earlier deadlines for 2017/18 were fully
achieved.
These deadlines apply to 2018/19 and we have met with management to
discuss the outcomes from the 2017/18 audit in order to make
improvements and plan effectively for the current year audit.
To ensure the audit 2018/19 audit is completed efficiently we have agreed
the following points with the Finance team;

• Agree the team and timing of each element of our work.
• Agree the supporting working papers that we require to complete our audit.

• Production of a detailed audit project plan to monitor with the finance
team
• Early communication of emerging issues
• Production of good quality draft financial statements
• Prepare high quality supporting working papers in advance of the
commencement of the year-end audit;
• Ensure that appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the
agreed audit period;
• complete and prompt responses to audit questions.
Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional
risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope
changes, or poor audit evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee
and the timing of the audit. It should be noted that these circumstances
may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other work elsewhere.
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Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area

Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

PCC’s external valuer and the EY Valuations Team

PFI schemes

EY FAAS / PFI team

Pensions disclosure

Actuaries of the Police Pensions Fund, Derbyshire Pension Fund, the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)
consulting actuary and our EY actuarial service

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.
We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the PCC and CC’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the
particular area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:
•

Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

•

Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

•

Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

•

Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.
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Audit timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables
Timeline
Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the PCC and CC and we will discuss them and senior management as appropriate. We
will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Reporting our independence,
risk assessment, planned audit
approach and the scope of our
audit

Reporting our conclusions on
key judgements and estimates
and confirmation of our
independence

The Annual Audit Letter
will be provided following
completion of our audit
procedures

Audit Results Report

Annual Audit Letter

Audit Plan

Sep

Oct

Nov
Planning

Planning and Walkthroughs

Risk assessment and setting of scopes;
Walkthrough of key systems and processes

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

Interim Audit

May

Jun

Jul

Sep/Oct

Substantive testing

Interim Audit

Year End Audit

Early substantive testing

Work begins on our year
end audit. This is when we
will complete any
substantive testing not
completed at interim
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Independence

Introduction
The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate. The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.
Required communications
Planning stage
►

►

►
►

►

The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;
The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;
The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
Information about the general policies and process
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply
more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional
wording should be included in the communication
reflecting the client specific situation]

Final stage
►

►
►

►
►

►

►

In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create. We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;
Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is independent and, if applicable, that any
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;
and
An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.
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Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any. We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.
Overall Assessment
Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Hassan Rohimun, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.
Self interest threats
A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the PCC and/or CC. Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit
services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding
fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
At the time of writing, there are no non-audit services to be provided.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you. We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.
Self review threats
Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats
Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the PCC and/or CC Management threats may also arise during the
provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.
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Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
Other threats
Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2018
Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
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Appendix A

Fees
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.
This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Planned fee
2018/19
£
Total PCC Fee – Code work

23,897

Total CC Fee – Code work

11,550

Total audit

35,984

Other non-audit services not
covered above
Total fees

0

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:
► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;
► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided; and

35,984
► The PCC and CC have an effective control environment.

All fees exclude VAT.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with management in
advance.
Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.
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Required communications with the PCC and CC
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the PCC and CC.
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Terms of engagement

Confirmation by the PCC and CC of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the
engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Audit planning report (February 2019)
Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of
the engagement team

Significant findings from
the audit

•
•
•
•
•
•

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report (July 2019)
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Required communications with the PCC and CC (continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Going concern

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report (July 2019)

Misstatements

•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Corrected misstatements that are significant
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report (July 2019)

Enquiries of the PCC and CC to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity
Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist
A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report (July 2019)

•
•
•
•
Fraud

•
•
•

Related parties

•
•
•
•
•
•

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties Audit results report (July 2019)
including, when applicable:
Non-disclosure by management
Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures
Non-compliance with laws and regulations
Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity
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Required communications with the PCC and CC (continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications
Independence

External confirmations
Consideration of laws and
regulations

What is reported?

When and where

Audit planning report (February 2019) and
Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Audit results report (July 2019)
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence
• Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
Audit results report (July 2019)
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures
•

•

Audit results report (July 2019)
Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off
Enquiry of the PCC and CC into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the PCC
and CC may be aware of
Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit
Audit results report (July 2019)

Internal controls

•

Representations

Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report (July 2019)

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report (July 2019)

Auditors report

•
•

Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report (July 2019)

Fee Reporting

•
•
•

Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
Any non-audit work

Audit planning report (February 2019) and
Audit results report (July 2019)
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Additional audit information
Other required procedures during the course of the audit
In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.
Our responsibilities required
by auditing standards

•

•
•
•
•
•

•

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the
JARAC reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the JARAC and reporting whether it is materially
inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
Maintaining auditor independence.
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Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality
For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.
Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the Group financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.
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This sector briefing is one of
the ways that we support you
and your organisation in an
environment that is constantly
changing and evolving.
It covers issues which may have an impact on your
organisation, the Police sector, and the audits that
we undertake.
The briefings are produced by our public sector
audit specialists within EY’s national Government
and Public Sector (GPS) team, using our public
sector knowledge, and EY’s wider expertise across
UK and international business.
The briefings bring together not only technical
issues relevant to the Police sector but wider
matters of potential interest to you and your
organisation.
Links to where you can find out more on any of
the articles featured can be found at the end of
the briefing.
We hope that you find the briefing informative
and should this raise any issues that you would
like to discuss further please contact your local
audit team.
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Government and
economic news

EY Club Item
The latest EY ITEM Club forecast casts a cloudier outlook for the
UK economy which will have implications for Local Authorities
including Police forces. This partly reflects increased uncertainties
about Brexit, due to the elevated risk of the UK leaving the EU
without a deal. It also reflects a more challenging global outlook,
and continued pressures on consumer purchasing power.

As shown in Figure 1, it appears that the spare capacity in the
labour market created during the crisis has been largely absorbed.
The Bank of England’s (BoE) recent report about the labour
market suggests that very limited slack remains — a BoE’s regional
Agents survey found that 40% of companies are finding it harder
to recruit and retain staff compared to last year.

The forecast has slightly downgraded the UK’s economic
prospects for 2018 and 2019, with GDP growth for 2018 trimmed
from 1.4% to 1.3% — the slowest rate of expansion since 2009.
Whilst performance improved in Q2 and Q3, the outlook has since
become less certain.

Figure 1
UK: Unemployment rate

One positive note for UK economy is the robust growth in labour
demand. The unemployment rate remained at 4.0% for the three
months to July, the lowest level since February 1975. Over the
same period, the number of vacancies in the UK rose to 833,000,
highlighting the tightness in the labour market.
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The recruitment challenges facing employers are well known by
Police Forces. An expanding and ageing population will only add to
the demand pressures, whilst the supply of workers may be at risk
due to the impact of Brexit on migration of EEA workers.
Theory suggests that, with unemployment falling and vacancies
rising, there is little scope for further labour market tightening
without generating excess wage pressures. However, earnings
growth has remained subdued in recent periods, and indeed
relapsed in Q2 2018. Some firms appear keen to limit their costs
in an uncertain environment, whilst fragile consumer confidence is
likely deterring workers from pushing hard for pay rises.

As Brexit beckons, what is the impact that
local authorities, including police forces, can
expect across the UK?
With increasing focus on a potential extension to the Brexit
transitionary period and the likelihood of a ‘no-deal’ scenario failing
to diminish, local authorities, including police forces, are beginning
to prepare for an array of potential impacts from the UK’s departure
from the EU. We look below at some of the key focus areas for local
government in assessing the impact of Brexit, including:

Supply chain and logistics:
Some coastal Police forces may face road traffic issues if border
checks are applied following Brexit; authorities in the South East
likely to be most significantly affected, due to the potential of
border checks being applied at Dover. Furthermore, investigations
have been made by authorities such as Pembrokeshire Council
into the ready availability of food and medicine in the event of road
blockages and closures.

Property and land prices:
Predictions that property prices in general are likely to fall
following Brexit are well documented. Bank of England Governor
Mark Carney has stated that UK house prices may fall by up to a
third in the event of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. Such a reduction in property
values is likely to create a shock that may create financial hardship
for many as well as impacting the performance of certain sectors.

Budget 2018
On 29 October 2018 the Chancellor delivered the 2018 Autumn
Budget to Parliament. Among the headline policy announcements,
such as a new 2% tax on revenue for large digital companies,
changes to the income tax threshold bands, and increase in funding
to help departments prepare for Brexit, there were few which will
have a direct impact on police forces such as increased staff costs;
as the national living wage is set to increase by 5% from £7.83 to
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£8.21 and increase in funding to help departments prepare for
Brexit, as well as indirect impacts like additional funding to improve
damaged roads, improve traffic and renew bridges.
CIPFA’s response to the budget was that whilst the additional
short term support for the provision of services is welcomed,
there are greater long term challenges that need to be addressed
to embed sustainable funding. The July 2018 Office for Budget
Responsibility’s projection, upon which the budget was based,
forecasts that within 50 years the UK will not be able to afford
anything more than debt interest, health, social care and pension
payments. CIPFA is clear that there is not sufficient funding to
sustain expectations of public services at the current levels of
taxation.
An unexpected announcement made by Government during the
budget was that it will no longer use Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
schemes, or its successor PF2, because PFI schemes have been
identified by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) as a source
of significant fiscal risk to the Government. It is unclear if this
decision by central Government will impact on local authorities,
including Police forces, in future years.

Police get funding boost to fight organised
crime in Bedfordshire
The Home Office have awarded a special grant to the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Bedfordshire to assist the force in fighting
serious organised crime. The grant awarded for £4.6 million is
intended to assist the force in tackling serious organised crime
activity in the area including gun violence, drug operations and
child abuse and exploitation.
The costs involved in supporting the grant application were
assessed by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and
Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) and found to be reasonable
and proportionate. In its 2016 police effectiveness, efficiency and
legitimacy (PEEL) assessment, HMICFRS had previously assessed
the complexity of the challenges facing Bedfordshire Police as
similar to that of a London Borough.
Any Police force can apply to the Home Office for special grants
to reduce the burden of policing in unexpected and exceptional
events and this is in addition to the police funding settlement
which will increase by £460 million in 2019.
In April 2018 the government announced a new Serious Violence
Strategy. The new strategy sets out 61 commitments needed
to address serious violence such as gun crime, knife crime
and homicide.
The Home Secretary also recently launched a £200 m initiative
called the Youth Endowment Fund. This fund will focus on those
youths deemed most at risk of violence.
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Accounting,
auditing and
governance
Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation

IFRS 9: Statutory Override update

The Government undertakes a valuation of public service pension
schemes every four years, this year sees the first full assessment
of these since the introduction of reformed schemes in 2015.
These reformed schemes were created to address the rising cost
of pensions, rebalancing taxpayer and member costs to ensure
that public pensions remain affordable and sustainable.

The 2018/19 financial year will be the first year where the
accounting standard IFRS 9 will be implemented by local
government. IFRS 9 impacts on an authority’s financial assets:
the investments it holds; the amounts it has lent to others; and
other monetary based assets it may have. It changes how these
financial assets are classified and how movements in their value
are accounted for. It also changes how these assets are impaired;
based on the risk that the assets may not be recovered in full,
or at all.

The Chief Secretary to the Treasury’s has stated that early
indications would suggest that employers’ contribution will need
to increase, as a result of a proposed decrease in the discount
rate. The discount rate, known as the SCAPE rate, is based on
the OBR projection on the short-term pay growth in terms of
GDP. OBR has reduced this rate from 3.0% to 2.8% in 2016 and
a further reduction has been proposed as of April 2019 to 2.4%.
This discount rate is used to calculate the current costs of future
payments and as the discount rate decreases, the pension liability
increases. Given that employee rates are effectively fixed under
scheme regulations, employer contributions will need to increase
to meet the increased liability.
For a number of police force, this will likely result in a significant
and material impact on the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) and future savings requirement to balance budgets. And
as such, this will feature as an area for consideration in VFM
conclusion work by external audit.

Following a consultation by the Ministry for Housing Communities
and Local Government on the impact of IFRS 9, an initial
statutory override has been granted for five years, despite 90%
stakeholders opposing a time-limited period. This statutory
override means that police forces will still be required to account
for fair value movements in financial instruments (in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the code on local authority
accounting); however these movements will not be charged to the
revenue account.
The result of which is that statutory override will remove the
potential burden that council tax payers or local authorities,
including police forces, may have faced if fair value movements
were unfavourable.

Further details are to be announced later in the year in addition to
further discussion taken forward as part of the spending review.
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Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
For the public to gain trust and confidence in public spending,
a framework of accountability, transparency, governance and
ethics needs to be built. The ultimate responsibility lies with the
government departments that delegate spending to local public
bodies. These public bodies must then be able to demonstrate that
the money has been spent efficiently and effectively.
One way the public can gain trust in public spending, is by relying
on the external audit process to provide assurance on the financial
statements and report by exception on the arrangements the
public body has in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. However, the role of audit, is often misunderstood
creating the audit expectation gap which is the difference between
what an auditor actually does, as required by legislation and
auditing standards, and what stakeholders think that the auditors’
obligations might be and what they might do.
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW) produced a report to raise awareness on the expectation
gap and suggest some possible solutions. The report also
discusses how issues faced by local public bodies such as financial
difficulties, increasing demand from an ageing population,
complex structures and weaknesses of accountability impacts the
audit process and widens the expectation gap.
Some common concerns were noted in the report by
interviews with Chief Financial Officers in different sectors
and regulatory bodies:
1. Local authorities, police forces and health bodies are facing
a difficult time with increasing pressure to deliver more
services, become innovative and commercial with reduced
financial support. This pressure could bring in concerns about
behaviours that may not be in the best long-term interests of
the public.

3. Auditors are concerned that qualifications and issues identified
in their opinions are not taken seriously enough by those
charged with governance.
4. The reduction in audit fees has led to a perception by
local bodies that they are receiving reduced scope of work
compared to the previous regime (Audit Commission).
The concerns are not in relation to compliance with auditing
standards, but rather the lack of value added activities that
was previously provided.
5. Chief Financial Officers expect more challenge and review
of their forward-looking plans which underpin the financial
resilience of the authority.
6. Other stakeholders are not getting sufficient assurance over
the effectiveness of service delivery and performance in
auditors’ work.
7. Increased regulation and scrutiny against the reduced number
of auditor firms in the local government market.
8. Local public auditors’ power being limited by the removal of
indemnity insurance and increased difficulty to recover costs.
The ICAEW has offered a number of potential solutions in the
report to close this expectation gap including:
1. Chief Financial Officers could consider involving external
support to assist them in their financial resilience work, such as
challenging their budget assumptions and other key decision
making factors, instead of relying on external auditors to
provide other value added activities, as these may have some
independence restrictions. This is similar to the relationship
between NHSE/NHSI and CCGs, NHS Trusts and FTs.
2. More broadly, consideration could be given to widen
the scope of the audit to include for example a greater
future-looking focus.

2. Reports produced by auditors are not being fully utilised by
management and audit committees to build on successes and
make improvements within the body where recommendations
have been made.
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Regulation
news

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits

to identify areas where improvement can be made within a force
through consideration of performance relative to other forces.
Key metrics include:

PSAA (Public Sector Accounts Appointments) has reported
its annual summary on the timeliness and quality of financial
reporting in relation to audits for the 2017/18 financial year.
A total of 431 (87%) local government and police bodies published
their audited accounts by the deadline of 31 July 2018. 2017/18
was the first year that the accounts and audit deadline was
brought forward from the 30th September to the 31 July.
PSAA’s Chief Officer stated that whilst these results were
encouraging and reflect considerable efforts of both local
government finance staff and auditors, there is still more work to
be done in order for 100% of authorities to meet the new deadline.

Criminal Justice Joint Inspection Business
Plan 2018/19

The number of qualified ‘Value for Money’ conclusions is
currently at 7% (compared to 8% for 2016/17); however there
30 conclusions still to be issued for 2017/18. The most common
reasons for issuing a qualified Value for Money conclusion were
corporate governance issues, financial stability concerns and
contract management issues.

The inspectorates involved are:

Value for Money Profiles 2018
HMICFRS has published its latest annual value for money profiles.
The profiles cover a range of different aspects of policing across
England and Wales and provide the ability to analyse separate
activities between different forces. The analysis will show
variances across and between forces and may offer an opportunity
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►► How much forces spend on different activities
►► How crime levels compare across forces, as well as what
outcomes forces achieve
►► Workforce costs broken down by role, rank and gender

The four criminal justice inspectorates have launched their joint
inspection business plan for 2018/19. The business plan sets
out the criminal justice inspections where two or more of the
inspectorates work together on a collaborative inspection and
cover wide areas of criminal justice activity.

►► Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Prisons
►► Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation
►► Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire
Rescue Services
►► Care Quality Commission
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Within the business plan the joint inspections focus on four key
thematic areas. These include:
►► Community Safety
►► Bringing Offenders to Justice
►► Offender Management
►► Custodial Sentences
Linked to the above are three cross-cutting issues which are
fundamental to the success and effectiveness of the above
activities. These include:
►► The quality of the victim and witness experience
►► Active promotion of equality and diversity
►► Achieving value for money and efficiency
Although the joint business plan is published annually it does
actually cover a two year rolling cycle.
New inspections planned for 2018/19 include:
►► Domestic abuse
►► Crimes against older people
►► Released Under Investigation
►► Integrated Offender Management

Terrorism Response Tested in National
Multi-Agency Exercise
The preparedness of the emergency services for a major terrorist
incident has been tested in the largest exercise of its kind to
take place in 2018. The multi-agency exercise simulated a large
scale terrorist attack and the subsequent response from the
emergency services. These types of exercise are a common
feature of emergency planning and preparedness and look to

7

assess strengths and weaknesses in approach across a range of
simulated terrorist scenarios. The latest exercise was a simulated
chemical terrorist attack. Such incidents are categorised within
the Chemical, Biological, Radioactive & Nuclear Incidents (CBRN).
The exercise involved 40 multi-agencies and 500 individuals.
In attendance watching the exercise were representatives from
other police forces from around the world. Also present were
representatives from various governments

New strategic direction for the Emergency
Services Network (ESN)
The Home Office has announced the roll out of the ESN project in
phases starting early 2019. ESN will be the new communication
system used by Police, Fire and Rescue services, ambulances
and other public safety users in the UK. The product portfolio will
include ‘push-to-talk’ capabilities for mobile phones, which will
in effect turn them into an emergency services radio, with data
capabilities, a package telephone, messaging, data services and
an air to ground communications app. It also has the potential
to enable communication on the London Underground. It is
anticipated that the ESN products will be available for front line
deployment in 2019 following thorough testing and evaluations,
making Great Britain the first in the world to deliver critical voice
and data for emergency service over an enhanced and more
resilient 4G network.
The dedicated 4G network will allow emergency services to work
across remote areas and at times of congestion, as it will have
priority over commercial users of the network, enabling greater
blue light collaboration.
It is anticipated that once operational and has fully replaces the
previous radio based system, Airwave, the programme will save
£200 million of public money per year.
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Other

EY 2018 Transparency Report
Our profession has come under scrutiny from policymakers and
other stakeholders over the year, and the need for transparency
has never been greater. Increasingly, the public is expecting
more and more from the audit than its current remit requires.
This difference is known as the ‘audit expectation gap’ which
has been discussed above. We believe the time is right for all
concerned in the corporate control ecosystem to seize the moment
and consider deeply what society expects from businesses and the
assurance it needs over their activity.
It’s in our interests and the public’s for EY UK to be as open and
transparent as possible. The Transparency Report goes some
way towards helping us achieve this, whilst also providing an
opportunity to share a more balanced perspective on what we
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do and how we perform as a business. For example, it refers to
our role in building trust and confidence in the capital markets
and wider economies, by maintaining and developing positive
relationships with our stakeholders. It explains what we do to make
a difference to people’s lives by helping to improve social mobility
in the UK. It also shows how our people are supported in their role
as auditors by making reference to our tools, technologies and
training programmes. Details on internal and external surveys and
inspections are included as well, to show how we are performing
against our own expectations and — most importantly — those of
our regulators.
We refer to this report in our audit planning reports to audit
committees, and we summarise the key headlines below.

Police Sector Audit Committee Briefing

2018 Highlights
Audit quality

The result of the FRC’s most recent review of out audits showed
that 82% of our FTSE 350 audits were graded as requiring
no more than limited improvement, against a 90% target.
Overall 67% of all EY UK’s audits inspected were graded as
requiring no more than limited improvements. We are proud
of the progress we have made in the UK since the launch of UK
Sustainable Audit Quality (SAQ) programme a few years ago. But
there is still more work to be done to consider audit quality from
the viewpoint of key stakeholders: investors, audit committees,
companies, regulators and our people. The work we have done
to model the behaviours of our highest performing teams, using
cognitive psychologists, will continue. In the year ahead we will
prioritise the extent and consistency of the model’s adoption.
We aim to transform the behaviours that feature in the model into
business-as-usual activity across all of our audit teams.
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As organisations become more complex, so do audits, making
access to different skills and capabilities more important than
ever. The traditional audit has already been transformed by the
use of technology and digital platforms, and the pace of change
will only accelerate. These new capabilities enable us to search,
sift and sort through large quantities of data, allowing us to
identify potential areas of risk and understand an organisation’s
performance at a more granular level. The audit process is
becoming more forward looking, with a focus on anticipating
future risks. Our new capabilities are also providing insights into
areas that were once thought to be impossible to measure, such
as culture.
This unprecedented scrutiny and demand for change, can be seen
as an incredible opportunity to focus our efforts on addressing the
root cause, deliver sustainable high quality audit and gain the trust
and confidence in the capital markets society needs and demands.
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Key questions for the Audit Committee
1. How has the 2018 Budget impacted the local authority’s
financial plans for the current year and the year ahead?
2. Has your force applied for any special grants to support
policing in the area and are there any lessons that can
be learned from the example of Bedfordshire police
noted here.
3. Have you taken into account the impact of the most
recent review of the police pension scheme on your
budgets and medium term financial position?
4. Is your authority prepared to implement the new IFRS
9 accounting standard? How will the authority plan for
the possibility that the statutory override will end in five
years’ time?
5. Does the expectations gap resonate with your Authority’s
experience of the external audit process and if so, has any
action been taken to mitigate the gap?

7. Where an authority’s ‘Value for Money’ conclusion had
been qualified; how has the authority addressed the Value
for Money concerns?
8. Have you reviewed the 2018 VFM Profiles for your local
force? Is there any learning that can be gained from the
reported performance of your local force or that of your
closest statistical neighbours?
9. Are you aware of the outcomes from the latest simulated
terrorist attack and is there anything that your force needs
to implement or improve on as a result of the findings from
the exercise?
10. How well prepared are you for the roll out of the
Emergency Services Network? How confident are you that
the planned benefits of the project will be realised?
11. Considering the savings that the ESN system will provide
how will it be utilised by your authority?

6. What has the authority learned from the early accounts
and audit deadline for 2017/18? How will the authority be
best prepared to achieve the 31st July audit deadline for
2018/19?
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Find out more
EY Club Item
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/
financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-andprojections

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/
policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits

2018 Budget

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-ofauditors-work/

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-thingsyou-need-to-know

Value for Money Profiles

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-pressreleases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/
Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20
Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf

Police get funding boost to fight organised crime in
Bedfordshire

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/our-work/article/
value-for-money-inspections/value-for-money-profiles/value-formoney-dashboards/

Criminal Justice Joint Inspection Business Plan
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/cjji/wp-content/uploads/
sites/2/2018/09/criminal-justice-joint-inspection-businessplan-2018-19.pdf

Simulated Terrorist Exercise

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/police-get-funding-boostto-fight-organised-crime-in-bedfordshire

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/terrorism-response-testedin-national-multi-agency-exercise

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation

Emergency Services Network Update

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_
Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf

https://www.nationalfirechiefs.org.uk/News/nfcc-welcomes-homeoffice-announcement-on-future-delivery-of-emergency-servicesnetwork/211977

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/
written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/
Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-strategic-directionfor-the-emergency-services-network-esn

IFRS 9: Statutory Override

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparencyreport-2018

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-overridelast-five-years

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap

EY Transparency Report 2018

https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf

https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-thepublic-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-auditexpectations-gap
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AGENDA ITEM

8B
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE
REPORT
TITLE

EU EXIT PREPARATIONS

REPORT BY CHIEF CONSTABLE
DATE

28 JANUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
To inform the SPA Board of current activities to prepare for a potential no-deal exit from
the EU.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the SPA Board notes the preparations that are being made to ensure that
Derbyshire Constabulary can manage the potential impact of a no-deal exit from the
EU.

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Supt Steve Pont

Tel:

0300 122 5400

Email

spaenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

AGENDA ITEM 8B
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES ASSURANCE BOARD
13 FEBRUARY 2019

1.

OVERVIEW

1.1

The Government’s expectation is that an EU withdrawal agreement will be
negotiated in time to allow an orderly exit from the EU on 29 March 2019.
However a series of Technical Notices have been issued which have been
designed to allow all sectors of the community, including the police, to prepare
for a possible exit without a deal.

1.2

The National Police Chief’s Council (NPCC) is co-ordinating work to plan for
potential disruption to normal policing activities in the event of a no-deal exit from
the EU.

1.3

Derbyshire Constabulary has formed a Gold Group under ACC Kem Mehmet
with representation across the Force to prepare plans for the following potential
impacts.
•

Possible loss of access to EU intelligence sharing agreements.

•

Possible congestion on the Derbyshire road network.

•

An increased likelihood of protests/public disorder including mutual aid
requests to deploy Derbyshire officers to assist other forces.

•

Civil Contingencies ie planning for potential impact on fuel, food,
medicines.

•

Business Continuity – to ensure Derbyshire Constabulary can maintain
critical activities throughout the EU exit period.

•

A national requirement for regular monitoring of potential disruption,
community cohesion and any increase in cases of hate crime.

1.4

In addition the Force is working closely with the Derby and Derbyshire Local
Resilience Forum to understand and mitigate the impact of a no-deal EU exit on
communities in Derbyshire. The LRF is chaired by DCC Gary Knighton. An LRF
EU Exit table-top exercise was held on 9 January at the Joint Police and Fire HQ.
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AGENDA ITEM

8C
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE
REPORT
TITLE

WORKPLACE INSPECTIONS

REPORT BY CHIEF CONSTABLE
DATE

13 FEBRUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
To provide a summary report to the Joint Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee
(JARAC) and Police and Crime Commissioner of the work being undertaken following a
series of workplace inspections in 2018.
ATTACHMENTS
None
RECOMMENDATIONS
To determine if the PCC can gain direct assurance that this area of business is being
managed efficiently and effectively.
CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Supt Stephen Pont

Tel:

0300 122 5440

Email

pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

AGENDA ITEM 8C
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 FEBRUARY 2019

1.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

1.1

In December 2017 a utilities failure occurred within the CCMC building which led
to the buildings evacuation and relocation to our disaster recovery (DR) site.
Given the building is part of the Critical National Infrastructure the Director of
Finance in January 2018 commissioned a risk-based review of our 'Top 10' sites
in order to minimise the potential of a recurring failure and disruption to force
operations as far as is reasonably practicable.

1.2

Following the January 2018 workplace inspections a lesson’s learned debrief
was held involving the Deputy Chief Constable (DCC) with relevant departments
including Operational Planning and Business Continuity. A key recommendation
made by the DCC was for the inspection exercise to be repeated again in
October in order to ensure that any 'foreseeable risks' associated with these
buildings are dealt with before the autumn/winter period, the buildings inspected
were:•
•
•

CCMC
Divisional HQ sites
Section Stations containing Custody Suites

These joint inspections are conducted by Asset/Risk Management and cover:•
•
•
•
•
•

Roof and drainage
General Maintenance – contractor service schedules (plant/equipment)
Uninterruptable power supplies (UPS)
Electrical/IT equipment – damaged equipment and cable management
Heating/waste/air handling systems – servicing/repairs/assessment
Housekeeping – fire prevention/accident prevention/escape routes/waste
management

1.3

In order to ensure inspection compliance a project plan for all sites was drafted
by Programme Management team who monitored completion of the allocated
actions.

2.

FINDINGS

2.1

A primary concern emanating from these inspections was poor housekeeping in
section stations. The majority of poor housekeeping found is the result of mindset rather than the physical environment. A high proportion of the issues
identified did not require significant expenditure the main factors involved are:•
•

2.2

the standards which individuals find acceptable
the standards imposed (and monitored) by managers/supervisors

Our data equipment and plant rooms also suffered from very poor housekeeping
standards including cable management issues. Many of these areas had
become makeshift storerooms with broken or redundant equipment including
large volumes of carbonaceous waste materials left by our own staff and
2
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contractors increasing the fire risk. Given these areas are deemed critical to our
operational infrastructure work has been carried out with relevant parties to
ensure these areas have been cleared and monthly checks instigated so that
areas are maintained in a tidy state. Significant improvements have been made
since the January inspections. Height access equipment in poor condition and
used in certain plant rooms has also been replaced as required.
2.3

Our inspections included accessible roof structures and checking brickwork and
flat roofs for signs of damage. Damaged roof structures were repaired as
required including being cleared of leaf and plant debris that were causing drain
blockages. Numerous water leaks were detected and repaired in areas which
had no staff occupancy. Pot holes in car parks and on pedestrian traffic routes
caused by the inclement weather conditions were repaired as required.

2.4

Following an incident at Cotton Lane station involving an uninterruptable power
supply (UPS) it identified the need to provide a more in-depth assessment of
mechanical/electrical backup systems to ensure that such events do reoccur.
This work identified that additional checks were also required at other sites such
as Ilkeston, Long Eaton, Pear Tree and Staveley. The inspections identified
further works for our Information Services Department ie housekeeping and
cable management issues including our Ilkeston Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
site. A meeting with the company’s electrical engineer following high ambient
temperatures being experienced within the room has resulted in a new UPS
being supplied and the installation in December of air conditioning plant.

2.5

Any defective electrical equipment was immediately decommissioned and
disposed of with staff advice given where applicable. Overdue inspections of
Portable appliance tested (PAT) equipment where notified to the relevant Assets
Department engineer.

2.6

As part of the inspection process fire escape routes, stairwells, fire doors and fire
extinguishers were all checked. These highlighted fire safety issues such as
storing combustibles materials under stairwells which have been cleared
following discussions with local management, defective or missing intumescent
smoke seals on fire doors which have either been repaired or replaced. In
addition, overdue inspections of portable fire-fighting equipment where notified to
the relevant Assets Department engineer.

3.

SUMMARY

3.1

Incidents that lead to property, plant and equipment damage can result in
extensive repair costs and major disruption to force operations including
reputational damage. By identifying potential issues within our estate we
minimise our risk exposure to financial damage, legal and enforcement action.

3.2

There can be little doubt as to the benefits of implementing such an inspection
regime and given its success it should continue to have a high priority in the
protection of the forces assets as significant issues are only identified when such
a regime is implemented.

3.3

The latest premises inspections have seen a significant improvement in
housekeeping standards at all sites and improved equipment storage. Such
issues do not require significant financial investment; however, if supervisory
3
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officers and staff do not set the standards expected, we get a level of tidiness
and housekeeping which each individual thinks is acceptable. Key to this
process are local Managers and Supervisors ensuring officers and staff take
ownership in keeping their workplace tidy and clear of rubbish/defective
equipment and materials. Failure to do so increases the potential for fire and
introduces unnecessary accident hazards.
3.4

The DCC and Director of Finance have asked that we continue to conduct these
high-risk building inspections both in spring and autumn respectively.
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OVERVIEW
1.1

Appendix A to this paper is the PCC’s Revenue Budget & Precept report for
2019/20 and will be referenced by this paper.

1.2

On 13th December 2018, Mr Nick Hurd, the Policing and Fire Minister
announced the funding settlement for police forces. The key elements are listed
at paragraph 2.4 of Appendix A.

1.3

The JARAC will recall that previous funding assumptions were based on the
indications from the Policing & Fire Minister last year that the 2019/20 settlement
was anticipated to be a:

1.4

•

Flat cash settlement

•

Repeat precept flexibility of up to £12

However, when the settlement was announced Police & Crime Commissioners
(PCC) were offered a funding package that assumed each would increase the
Precept locally by up to £24 in 2019/20.

1.5

The PCC has consulted with the public of Derbyshire (Appendix A, paragraph
1.3) and received strong support for increasing the precept (71.3% of
respondents supported an increase of £12 or more). Whilst he regrets the fact
that local taxpayers are having to foot the bill of increased police resources, he
discusses in his preface to the budget report (page 3-5 of Appendix A) that he
has listened to the public call for visible investment in the communities of
Derbyshire.

1.6

Following consideration of the proposed revenue budget and precept (£24) for
2019/20 at the Strategic Priorities Assurance Board held on 21 January 2019,
the Police & Crime Panel were asked to consider the PCC’s proposed precept
on 24 January 2019.

1.7

The Panel gave their unanimous support for the precept and confirmed it in
writing, also dated 24 January 2019. A copy of the formal confirmation is
available at: https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Document-Library/FinanceGrants/How-Your-Money-is-Spent/2019/Police-and-Crime-Panel-letter-2019.pdf
2

AGENDA ITEM 9A
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 FEBRUARY 2019

1.8

As expected, the referendum principles which restrict the increase in the level of
council tax were confirmed to align with the £24 flexibility afforded to PCCs.
Derbyshire has therefore complied with these principles.

1.9

The Commissioner has approved the final budget for 2019/20 of £179.918m, a
council tax requirement of £68.433m and a Band D council tax of £216.60, an
increase of £24 from its 2018/19 equivalent.

1.10

Formal precept letters to the billing authorities are being issued by the
Commissioner’s Chief Finance officer. Information will be provided to each
billing authority to assist them in finalising their council tax billing processes.

1.11

In addition, a digital leaflet will be produced by the PCC which gives interested
parties further information on the budget for 2019/20, the council tax (precept)
increase and future plans.

1.12

All papers relating to the setting of the budget and the precept are available on
the Commissioner’s website. Please see: https://www.derbyshirepcc.gov.uk/Finance-and-Grants/How-your-money-is-spent.aspx for further
information.

1.13

As this process and its satisfactory outcome is fundamental to an efficient and
effective force, it was considered that the JARAC may wish to be advised of the
process and final outcome.
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RECOMMENDATIONS

1. In respect of the revenue budget for 2019/20: a) To note the information and analysis as set out in this report.
b) To agree the proposed adjustments to the 2019/20 budget as detailed in both
this report and Annexes A through F
c) To maintain a revenue contribution to capital of at least £3.1m into the base
revenue budget.
d) To approve the revenue budget for 2019/20.

2. In respect of the council tax requirement, the associated police precept and
provisional contributions to/(from) reserves: a) Consider the increase to council tax, and having received a final council tax
assurance statement from the Chief Finance Officer, to notify the Police and
Crime Panel accordingly.
b) To authorise the movement of reserves during 2019/20 as shown in paragraph
8.4 and Annex D.

3. In respect of the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2019/20 - 2022/23 discussed
within this report but also shown in more detail at Annex A: a) To note the financial projections up to 2022/23.
b) To note the assumptions inherent in those projections as described in
paragraph 5.2
c) To note that the Medium Term Financial Strategy (paragraph 6.6 and Annex
A) indicates reserves will not be sufficient to close a future funding gap.
d) To note that the Force will continue to be challenged to identify efficiencies and
savings both for reinvestment but also to protect front-line services.
e) To repeat your call for a fairer funding settlement for Derbyshire that includes an
increase in government funding and does not merely pass the financial burden
to local tax-payers through precept increases.
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PREFACE
Since 2010 the Police Service has seen real-term cuts in its Government grant funding
of 30% that have led to a reduction of over 20,000 police officers. This means that the
number of police officers in England and Wales are at levels that have not been seen
since the early 1980s. This continued and systematic underinvestment in policing has
led to very difficult decisions being taken and resources being removed from
neighbourhoods and allocated to areas of greatest risk. Here in Derbyshire we have
seen officer numbers reduce from 2,126 in 2009/10 to 1,702 in 2017/18 – a reduction of
424. The cuts have also decimated the number of police staff supporting the work of
Derbyshire Constabulary. Overall the organisation has lost the best part of 800 people
in the past eight years.

At the same time as funding has been cut, the face of crime has changed beyond
recognition. The development of digital technology has led to new crime types such as
cyber and cyber-enabled crime. The abuse of children has increased both in terms of
child sexual exploitation (often facilitated by technology allowing children to be
‘groomed’ online) as well as exploited by organised crime groups as part of so-called
‘County Lines’ drug distribution networks. Vulnerable adults are also being exploited
and we have seen significant rises in cases on modern slavery.
If it were possible to have a typical day in policing Derbyshire would deal with the
following:


400 999 emergency calls



1,500 calls to the non-emergency 101 number



700 incidents



150 crimes



40 arrests



5 Road traffic collisions



3 firearms or TASER incidents



60 domestic abuse incidents



13 missing people



12 burglaries



117 incidents of ASB
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The demands on the Force have also changed as partner agencies cut back on the
services they provide because they too have been subjected to harsh cuts to their
budgets due to the Government’s austerity agenda.

In the absence of services

historically provided by other agencies, the police have often become the service of first
and last resort, dealing with challenges that most people would not traditionally
associate with policing.

As Police and Crime Commissioner I have met with people from across the County and
the City to understand their concerns. People tell me that their priorities relate to the
areas that have suffered most as a result of the cuts, such as police visibility and safety
on the County’s roads. They want to see people brought to justice for their actions.
Most of all, they want to be safe as they go about their daily lives.

In the statement on Police funding for 2019/20 the Government announced that policing
would receive an extra £970m in funding. To reach this figure it clearly expects that
most of this amount will be delivered through an increase in the policing precept hence
it has raised the maximum amount by which PCCs can raise the precept from £12 a
year for a Band D property to £24.

Personally, I believe that the majority of any uplift in funding should come from Central
Government in the form of grant funding. However, the Government clearly expects
local people to plug the gaps in police funding resulting from its funding policy.
Whilst I don’t believe that it is fair, or right, to place the burden of fixing the funding
problem on to local tax payers, I have a clear responsibility to ensure that the
communities of Derbyshire are kept safe and the Force has the resources it needs to
meet demand.

This localised approach is not the method by which I would have

chosen to boost our funding, but it is the only option on the table.
I have repeatedly called for a review of the funding formula. I have made it clear that
the price of cuts is an overstretched force trying to do more with less. The fact that
crime figures are on the rise is not coincidental. Therefore, I have spoken at length with
the Chief Constable and challenged him to come up with plans that will deliver the
things that matter most to the people of Derbyshire on the things that matter to them. I
have been very clear and direct in my expectations – if people are being asked to pay
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more they need, no deserve, to see and feel the impact of that additional funding. The
following report outlines the plans the Chief Constable has developed.

Looking to the longer-term future, I was pleased to see that nearly 90% of those people
who responded to my consultation supported my view that the best solution reverses
this systematic underinvestment in policing in our county is a fairer funding settlement
from Government. I will, therefore, continue with my campaign to persuade the
Government to increase the Home Office Grant Funding for Derbyshire Constabulary
so that the burden does not continue to fall upon the hard-pressed local council tax
payer.

Hardyal Dhindsa
Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
January 2019
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1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – WHAT THIS MEANS FOR DERBYSHIRE

1.1

In reading this report and the supporting documents, it is useful to keep in mind
the following key headlines:

1.2

The government grant settlement and precept flexibility (up to £24 or £2 a month
for a Band D property together with additional grant funding from the
Government totalling £463m nationally) was more than expected for the police
service. In Derbyshire, it sees our potential funding increase by 7.3% between
2018/19 and 2019/20.

1.3

The Commissioner whilst welcoming additional funding regrets the burden
having been transferred again to the public of Derbyshire. The Commissioner
has consulted with the public of Derbyshire concerning his proposal to increase
the precept in 2019/20. This consultation, starting prior to the Government
funding announcements, ran until 6 January 2019 and generated 1,660 results.
71.3% of respondents supported a precept increase of £12 or more.

The

consultation is discussed in more detail within section 7 of this report. However,
the budget is subject to scrutiny and potential veto by a Police and Crime panel
consisting of local authority and independent representatives.
1.4

This budget settlement with the proposed £24 increase in precept means we are
able to invest now and in the future with £4.892m (see Annex F) of investment
across the Force and PCC priorities. The most significant investment proposed
in 2019/20 is in communities through our neighbourhood teams, rural crime
teams, prevention, response policing and our roads policing team. We will be
investing £3.209m (of the £4.892m) into these priority areas, made up of 58
officers and 62 police staff so our communities will see a visible investment in the
areas that need them. This follows on from our investment of 25 new officers
during 2018/19 and a further 25 other officers reallocated to areas of increased
risk and threat, primarily in the emerging risks and threats including Child Abuse
and Exploitation, Domestic Abuse, Sexual Violence, Modern Slavery and Cyber
Crime. On the back of the investment, the Force saw significant developments in
investigation of rape offences, seven day a week public protection, increased
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investigation capacity and safeguarding support to all children at high risk of all
types of exploitation.
1.5

Careful financial management over the last few years has also allowed us to
continue to invest in our people, IT and Estate despite Derbyshire Police seeing
its grant cut by £25m since 2010, £40m in real terms. Derbyshire Police has
delivered over £38m of savings in the same period. The additional funding that
we will have in 2019/20, the proposed £24 increase in the precept and the use of
our reserves will allow us to:


Increase our police officer establishment by 58 and police staff by
62 during 2019/20 in response to the historic reductions, particularly in
our neighbourhood and roads policing capacity (£3.209m)
This is made up of:
-

42 new posts into the Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNT)
with a further 8 officers transferred to SNTs from Response.

-

22 new Detective Staff Investigators who will support
neighbourhood safeguarding units, focus on the Police and
Crime Commissioner priorities of public protection and domestic
abuse. This will secure a resilient and vital resource in the Force
to help prevent and detect crime.

-

28 new Police Constables in local policing units in the North
and South of the County to rebalance the capacity following cuts
to police officer numbers in previous years.

-

5 new Police Constables in the County-wide Rural Crime
team which allows our safer neighbourhood teams to focus on
their local communities whilst providing a dedicated team to
tackle rural crime across the County.

-

7 new Police Constables and 1 new Sergeant for Roads
Policing to help address the unacceptable number of road
deaths in Derbyshire this year with over 50 people losing their
life. This investment will allow the Force to cover times of peak
demand and build a more resilient and effective roads policing
presence.
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-

7 new members of staff to develop and support the
analytical capability of the Force to provide risk and
community focussed intelligence to enable front line resources to
be targeted at the areas of greatest risk and threat.

This

investment is being funded by the Commissioner directly from his
reserve.
-

Investment into our Prevention and Mental Health support
including 1 new Sergeant to protect the most vulnerable in
Derbyshire, working closely with our partners, in particular the
Fire and Rescue and Ambulance Service; and

-

Investment in new technology including Tasers, Drones and
Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) capability to
support and protect the front line to include 4 new Police
Constables and 1 ANPR member of staff; and

-

A further 2 temporary criminal justice members of staff to
boost the criminal justice capacity.



Invest in other priority areas including sustaining our previous investment
in 2017/18, reinforcing our information management team to meet new
legislative requirements and digitising our custody suites to improve
criminal justice processes. These priorities and others amount to
£1.683m.



There are also unavoidable costs we have to cover of £8.801m,
predominantly pay awards, pension contributions and costs through our
regional collaborations in specialist areas policing.



Other changes in the year amount to a reduction in the budget
requirement of £1.847m which are included in Annex A.

(Further detail on the cost-pressures and investments the Force will make are
included in section 5 of this report and also Annexes A & F).
1.6

In addition to the significant investments identified by the Force, the
Commissioner has:
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Agreed to fund his Grants scheme (which was previously reliant on the
diminishing reserves) from the base revenue budget going forward.
This has increased the revenue budget by £0.250m.



Increased his Commissioning budget by £0.100m to allow some of the
organisations, such as those funded as a result of the Commissioner’s
City & Town Centre Summits, dealing with Domestic Abuse or ASB, in
receipt of temporary grant funding to be sustainably funded in the
future. It should be noted that a robust exercise will be conducted by
the Commissioner’s team to prioritise services based on outcomes and
value for money principles.



Set aside £0.250m in the PCC Grants & Commissioning Reserve (see
Annex D) to support the Mental Health Hub and to work with partners
to consider how drug and alcohol support can be integrated within the
Hub going forward.

This allocation is subject to match-funding

arrangements with the NHS and, it is hoped, contributions from EMAS,
Police and other partners. The Hub aims to both help people in mental
health crisis whilst also relieving the pressure on the front-line services
that would otherwise be supporting them.


Allocated £0.030m from the above reserve to fund a partnership
arrangement with the Chamber of Commerce aimed at tackling crime
that affects businesses in Derbyshire.



Allocated £1.000m (over two years) from the above reserve to support
the investment priorities that the Chief Constable has identified. In
2019/20 £0.296m will be used to support the Constabulary’s
investment in analytics.

1.7

The government settlement and precept flexibility are by no means a permanent
solution to our funding challenges with significant uncertainty over future funding
from the Government. The Force is still having to use £1m of its reserves to fund
the budget deficit, despite the proposed £24 increase in Precept and the Force
and the PCC will continue to lobby for extra funding as part of the
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). Had we not received the flexibility on
the precept in the last two years, we would be looking at a deficit of nearly £10m.
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This is approximately equivalent to the salary costs of 200 police officers. Even
with the proposed additional investment, the Force is still significantly short of its
previous establishment of 3,730 officers and staff in April 2009 with a projected
establishment of 3,256 at March 2019. However, the need to identify further
savings remains and will continue to challenge the Force in the future.

1.7

We have maintained a significant contribution to our capital programme for
2019/20 (£3.1m) in the revenue budget.

This is because our reserves are

diminishing and we face the need to finance our future capital expenditure,
particularly on our police stations, by borrowing. The additional contribution from
the revenue budget will help to reduce the amount of borrowing required and will
be needed now we increasingly have to pay for much of our new IT equipment
and software through our revenue funding.

1.8

Derbyshire continues to be a safe County and the investment last year into
priority areas has had an impact. The Force continues to meet the Home Office
tests to allow it to increase its precept. Reserves are at around average for
Forces nationwide, procurement savings targets set by the Home Office are
being met and the Force maintains a low cost per head of population when
compared with other Forces. With the proposed additional investment,
particularly into our communities, the Force has a great opportunity to continue
to make Derbyshire safer.

2.

THE NATIONAL PICTURE - PROVISIONAL POLICE FINANCE SETTLEMENT
WHAT’S HAPPENED IN THE PAST?

2.1

Since the Chancellor announced the results of the Coalition Government’s
Spending Review in 2010 Government support for local policing budgets was
reduced, in real-terms, by 34%. Even with annual increases in council tax
precept, total funding for local police was reduced by 21% up until 2018.

2.2

The 2015 Spending Review claimed overall police spending would be protected
in real terms between 2015/16 to 2019/20. The actual funding to police forces
was only protected to a flat cash level, which is not insulated from inflation or
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changes in the national pay settlement. Even at this level, Police and Crime
Commissioners (PCCs) have been expected to increase their precept by the
maximum permissible level.

2.3

The Provisional 2019/20 Police Finance Settlement was announced in an oral
statement by the Minister for Policing and Fire, Nick Hurd, on Thursday 13th
December 2018. This was followed by a written statement shortly afterwards.
WHAT’S HAPPENED THIS YEAR?

2.4

The key headlines for 2019/20 are set out below: 



Headline of £970m additional funding for the service – includes: 

£161m additional formula funding.



£153m of pension grant.



£59m additional funding for Counter Terrorism.



£90m additional funding to tackle Serious and Organised Crime.



£509m as a result of a £24 council tax increase.

Of the £970m approximately £813m is for local policing: 

£509m council tax rise



£143m (£153m-£10m for National Crime Agency (NCA) and Counter
Terrorism (CT) pension grant



£161m additional Funding.



Precept flexibility of up to £24 for all PCCs (or equivalents) in 2019-20.



£161m additional grant funding – made up of £146m increase in core
grant, £12m additional National & International Capital City (NICC) payments
and £2.7m precept grant.



The settlement, including council tax and pension grant, represents an
average cash increase (total funding) of 7.1% between 2018-19 and 2019-20.



£160m additional Counter Terrorism funding (announced at the 2018 Autumn
Budget) equivalent to an annual increase of £59m; an 8% increase on total
CT funding.



New Requirements - The minister’s letter refers to the requirement to “drive
efficiency, productivity and effectiveness”, see below.
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Core Funding
2.5

The Government Core Funding (made up of Police Grant, Rule 1, the Welsh
Grants and Ex-CLG funding) has increased by 2.1% in cash terms between the
2018-19 and 2019-20 settlement. This is equivalent to an additional £146m.

2.6

This £146m plus an additional £12m for the NICC grants and £2.7m precept
grant for the City of London sums to the £161m headline increase in grant
funding.

2.7

If each PCC raises their precept by up to £24, based on updated tax base
assumptions, then there will be an average increase in total income of 7.1% in
cash terms. Increase for individual PCCs range from 5.8% in Cleveland to 11.8%
in the City of London.

WHAT IS EXPECTED IN RETURN?
2.8

The 2019-20 settlement provides more funding than had been previously
expected. The letter to the Home Affairs Select Committee (HASC) outlines the
Policing Minister’s 4 priority areas to “drive efficiency, productivity and
effectiveness next year”: -

1. Continued efficiency savings in 2019-20 through collective procurement and
shared services. There will be an expectation that every force contributes
substantially to procurement savings and the Home Office will be working
with the police to agree the “right force level objectives for 2019-20 and 202021”.
2. Major progress expected to resolve challenges in investigative resource
identified by HMICFRS, including recruitment of more detectives to tackle the
shortfall.
3. Continue to improve productivity, including smarter use of data to deliver
£50m of productivity gains in 2019-20.
4. Maintain a SOC response that spans identification and management of local
threats as well as support for national priorities.
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The Force has performed in all these areas with over £0.590m in equivalent
annualised savings through collaborative procurement and shared services, with
particular work with the Fire and Rescue Service through shared posts and
procurement. This was highlighted in the latest Home Office returns. There is
also national recognition for the approach to smarter working through mobile
technology and the excellent approach to serious and organised crime.
WHAT ELSE HAS IMPACTED ON US?
Additional Pension Costs
2.9

Recent changes to the way in which police pensions are calculated means that
the police, as well as other “unfunded” schemes, will see a sharp increase in
costs. These costs, nationally for the Police, are now estimated to be
approximately £330m (£302m for police officers and a further £28m for
Metropolitan Police Service Civil Servants).

2.10 In 2019-20 the Treasury are providing forces with an additional £142.5m grant in
addition to the £161m additional funding. The result is that in some forces the
combined grants cover the full pension costs, in others there is a relatively small
remaining figure. Actual costs will depend on local circumstance netted off with
the pension grant allocations. In Derbyshire it is estimated there is a shortfall of
£0.4m.

2.11 The additional funding which is to cover the pensions cost increase makes up
2.6% of the total 7.3% increase in funding compared to 2018/19. This leaves a
4.7% increase to meet other funding priorities.

2.12 Prior to 2019-20 the Police Service had been forced to overpay by 2.9% despite
headline employer contribution rates falling in the last actuarial valuation, this has
now been removed and the service is required to use the valuation report as the
basis of future contribution rates, which equates to an increase in employer
contribution rates from 24.2% to 31%.
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2.13 The Home Office have also updated their tax base assumptions to reflect the
latest forecasts from the Office for Budget Responsibility, namely a 1.41%
increase in England and a 0.8% increase (no change) in Wales.

Reallocations of funding
2.14 In 2019-20 the top-slices/reallocations total £1,029m, £84m higher than 2018-19
(£945m).

2.15 The settlement announced an additional £90m to tackle Serious and Organised
Crime (SOC). This is likely to be made up from the £56m additional reallocation
plus the additional £38m under the heading “Strengthening the response to
organised crime”.

The £56m reallocation for National Crime Agency and

Regional Organised Crime Units is split between the two to ensure a flat cash
settlement for each. £51m is going to the NCA and £4.8m is going to ROCUs.

Police Funding - National Reallocations
PFI (Private Finance Initiative(s))
Police technology programmes
Arm’s length bodies
Top-ups to NCA and ROCUs
Strengthening the response to Organised Crime
Police transformation fund
Special Grant
Pre-charge bail
Total Reallocations and Adjustments

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
£m
£m
£m
73
73
73
417
495
495
54
63
63
0
0
56
28
42
90
175
175
175
50
93
73
15
4
4
812
945
1,029

2.16 Special grant has decreased from £93m to £73m, the grant total rose last year as
the Home Office anticipated additional funding for the Commonwealth Heads of
Government Summit. The announcement states that the transformation fund will
remain the same, in cash terms, at £175m.

Council Tax Referendum Principles
2.17 The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government has published the
draft council tax referendum principles. In 2019-20 PCCs will be allowed to
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increase band D bills by as much as £24, although in Wales there remains no
referendum limits.

2.18 Nationally, the additional £24 precept, combined with assumptions on increasing
tax base is worth an additional £509m. In terms of net revenue budgets £509m
nationally is equivalent to 4.3%.

2.19 This additional £24 represents increases of between 9.3% (North Wales) and
18.7% (West Midlands). The City of London, who do not levy a police precept,
have been allocated £2.7m precept grant in 2019-20. The £24 increase in
Derbyshire equates to 12.5%.
Grant Allocation
2.20 The PCC will receive the following grants in 2019/20: -

Derbyshire Reallocations

2018/19 2019/20 Variation
£m

£m

£m

Home Office Police Grant

61.2

62.6

1.4

Ex-DCLG1 Formula Funding

37.1

37.9

0.8

Sub-total

98.3

100.5

2.2

8.7

8.7

0

Pension Support Grant

0

1.9

1.9

Total General Grants

107.0

111.1

4.1

Legacy Council Tax Grants

2.21 In addition to these general grants the PCC will also receive £1.212m from the
Ministry of Justice to fund victim and witness services in 2019/20.

1

DCLG – Department for Communities & Local Government
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WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD?
The Spending Review
2.22 The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) and the National
Police Chiefs Council (NPCC) are working closely with Home Office and wider
policing partners to develop a co-ordinated Law Enforcement Spending Review
submission for the period 2020/21 through to 2024/25. Unfortunately, the
outcome from this submission will not be known until the Chancellor’s Autumn
Budget 2019.

Funding Formula
2.23 The police funding formula is widely considered to be unfit for purpose and
needs replacing. Indeed, the current formula has never been fully implemented.
Substantial work was undertaken in 2016/17 to bring forward new proposals but
this work was suspended in May 2017, following the snap general election. The
Minister is expected to announce that this work will recommence as soon as
possible once the Spending review submission is complete.
3.

IS

THE

CONSTABULARY

DEMONSTRATING

PRODUCTIVITY

&

EFFICIENCY AND DELIVERING VALUE FOR MONEY (VFM)
3.1

In order to meet the Minister’s conditions in relation to productivity and efficiency,
the APCC, NPCC and Home Office have created a National Commercial Board
through which to focus efforts to deliver real progress in relation to procurement
and shared services. By the end of Q1 2018/19 the national service has already
delivered or developed: 

£322m against the original target to make £350m procurement savings by
2020.



£23m of the 3 year £100m procurement savings target, with plans in place to
achieve the agreed £40m by year-end 2018/19.



At least £13m against the 3 year back-office savings target of £20m.



An outline business cases for both a future commercial operating model for
policing, and for future shared services in policing using a national Centre of
Excellence.
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Results of VFM Profiles
3.2

Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) publish value for money dashboards, which provide comparative
data on a wide range of policing activities from 2011 up to the most recent data
release.

3.3

The overall picture: Derbyshire Constabulary is still a VFM Force (low cost, high
performance). We know this because: 

Derbyshire is below average net spend per head of population against all
forces (£161.29 vs. £174.50), but slightly higher than Most Similar Group and
the same as the region, as shown in the table below: -



Crime per 1,000 population is below average (52.80 v 80 MSG 2 v 68.96
Region3) and in all categories of crime except for drug offences, as shown in
the
table
below:

2

MSG – Most Similar Group (of forces)

3

East Midlands Region – Derbyshire, Leicestershire (& Rutland), Lincolnshire, Northamptonshire &

Nottinghamshire
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Reserve Position
3.4

Derbyshire’s reserves have been falling faster than the national average over the
past six years. The updated Reserves Strategy is also on the agenda and from
being substantially above average in 2012, the level of reserves is now only
marginally above the national average and reserves are now being used to meet
certain cost pressures rather than holding a contingency in the budget. This as
illustrated in the graph below: -
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Total 1/4/18 Audited Reserves / 2018/19 NRB
Gwent
Hampshire
Cumbria
Sussex
Warwickshire
Dyfed-Powys
Gloucestershire
Hertfordshire
West Mercia
Devon & Cornwall
Cambridgeshire
Wiltshire
North Wales
Humberside
Kent
West Midlands
Leicestershire
South Yorkshire
City of London
Derbyshire
Lincolnshire
Lancashire
West Yorkshire
Greater Manchester
Avon & Somerset
Nottinghamshire
Norfolk
Thames Valley
Cleveland
Merseyside
Northamptonshire
Bedfordshire
Durham
Essex
Dorset
Suffolk
South Wales
Cheshire
MOPAC
North Yorkshire
Surrey
Northumbria
Staffordshire

45.3%
24.1%
22.1%
20.4%
20.3%
19.9%
19.5%
17.9%
17.6%
17.0%
16.7%
16.7%
16.7%
16.4%
16.0%
15.9%
15.7%
15.1%
15.0%
14.8%
14.6%
14.2%
13.4%
13.1%
12.6%
12.4%
11.9%
11.4%
10.7%
9.9%
9.2%
9.1%
7.5%
7.2%
7.0%
6.7%
6.7%
6.7%
6.5%
6.3%
6.0%
5.1%
2.1%

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0% 30.0% 35.0% 40.0% 45.0% 50.0%

4.

WHAT ARE THE CHALLENGES FOR POLICING?

4.1

Chief Constables still believe the service is financially stretched. A reduction in
real terms funding of police budgets of 21% (range 11% to 29%) up until 2018
came at a time when the policing mission had been expanded and demand has
grown.
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4.2

The public and political expectation that policing should address crimes against
the most vulnerable, (domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, modern slavery,
human trafficking, county lines, forced marriage and modern slavery) is resource
intensive. Victims require safeguarding. Investigations are often complex and
partnership case management is intense. The ability to create significant
efficiencies is limited in an area concerned with protecting very vulnerable
people.

4.3

The threat from terrorism has increased and significant investment in counter
terrorism policing has been provided to National Counter Terrorism Policing.
Whilst the funding in some counter terrorism capabilities has grown it is worth
reflecting that the majority of the police response to the London Bridge and
Manchester attacks came from core policing resources. Even uplifts in areas
such as armed policing with additional funds have required support from host
force budgets.

4.4

The demand on policing is growing. This is reflected in additional demand
through reports and call volumes but it is also apparent in the evidence being
provided to police. The digital footprint in most investigations requires more time
to process the work. There is also recognition of the reductions over many years
in the capacity of neighbourhood policing and the importance of the
neighbourhood teams to our local communities.

4.5

The service needs to respond to an increasingly digitally capable criminal
requiring new technology capabilities and organisation and serious and
organised crime is a threat, more widely regarded as a national security issue.

4.6

Finally, the stretch on the police workforce is extensive with a sharp focus now
on the level of community and neighbourhood resources and the need to reinvest
back into our communities.

Page 20 of 34

AGENDA ITEM 5A
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES ASSURANCE BOARD
28 JANUARY 2019

5.

WHAT ASSUMPTIONS HAVE WE MADE?
WHAT COSTS DO WE NEED TO COVER?
WHAT INVESTMENT DO WE NEED TO MAKE?

Assumptions
5.1

The proposals developed for the draft budget ensure that resources are targeted
towards priority service areas, the delivery of the strategic objectives contained in
the Police and Crime Plan and meeting our Strategic Policing Requirement.

5.2

In developing and refining the budget and the MTFS4 the following underlying
assumptions have been made: 

Pay inflation has been allowed for at 3.0% per annum in each of the four
years to reflect the increase in inflation and removal of the central
government capping on pay increases.



Council tax precept to increase by £24 per annum in 2019/20, with an
increase of £6 per annum thereafter.



Council tax billing base to increase by 1.3% in 2019/20 and by 1.5% in each
of the next three years.



Police grants (Main Grant & Pensions Grant) have been assumed to remain
at the cash levels as notified in the provisional settlement for 2019/20.



No provision has been made at this stage for the introduction of the new
National Police Funding Formula due to the unknown impact this will have on
Derbyshire’s share of the national policing funds.



The future investment in technology, whether direct capital purchase or
revenue service contracts, will need to be funded by revenue given the
diminishing reserves and the minimal level of annual capital grant.

Inflation
5.3

This additional cost does not relate to any increase in service but is required just
to maintain the existing base level of service and pay commitments. Overall
inflation would add approximately £0.9m to the annual budget assuming an
annual rate of 2.5% across all non-pay budgets. The 2019/20 budget assumes

4

MTFS – Medium Term Financial Strategy
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that all such increases can be contained within existing estimates, i.e. they will
be offset by procurement / other savings

Costs We Have to Cover
5.4

These are items within the budget which are committed to by means of previous
decisions taken, national agreements or statutory payments.

The main

significant changes that have occurred in this section for 2019/20 include: -

Description

£m

Pay Awards

2.105

Pay increments/ Specific Price Inflation

1.475

Pension Contributions

4.384

NPAS5 - Potential Changes to Funding Model

0.168

Other contributions to national Policing Services

0.212

EMSOU6 / Other regional collaboration

0.458

Total unavoidable costs

8.801

Other approved or anticipated changes

5

NPAS – National Police Air Service

6

EMSOU – East Midlands Serious & Organised crime Unit
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Priority Areas for Investment
5.5

These items of growth are required to improve performance, meet the
Commissioner’s and Constabulary’s priorities and the growing demands on the
Constabulary. These were developed in consultation with employees across the
Constabulary and Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, taking into
account the priorities of our communities. The main significant proposed areas
for investment for 2019/20 include: -

Description

£m

Reinvestment into the Community
Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT) Review

1.063

Detective Staff Investigators

0.730

North & South Division – Local Policing Units

0.381

Rural Crime Team

0.127

Roads Policing

0.221

Analytics

0.296

Prevention portfolio

0.043

Extended Roll out of Tasers

0.157

Drones – running costs *

0.112

ANPR Manager

0.035

Criminal Justice Case File Management

0.044

Total for reinvestment into the community

3.209
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Description

£m

Other areas of investment
Reshaping for the Future (18/19) ongoing effect

0.649

Open Source Capability

0.042

New Child & Adult Safeguarding arrangements

0.084

Information Management Legislative requirements

0.118

Domestic Abuse Training

0.063

Temporary HR Staff and Trainers

0.065

OPCC Commissioning Budget

0.100

Securing Long term funding of Grants Scheme

0.250

Business Crime Initiatives

0.030

Apprenticeship Scheme

0.046

Safe Space - City Centre Initiative

0.015

Positive Action Budget

0.030

Contribution to Police Treatment Centres

0.010

Digitisation of Custody Suites

0.181

Cost of other investment

1.683

*£100k purchase cost of 4 new drones will be met from existing capital provisions

These investments and cost-pressures are also shown in both Annex A &
Annex F.

The Workforce Strength
5.6

The table below provides a summary of the changes to the funded establishment
built into the 2019/20 revenue budget which shows the uplift from the proposed
investment of through the precept of 58 Police Officers and 62 staff as well as
savings in support roles to help offset the cost of the investment: -
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Police

FTE’s

Officers

2018/19 Funded Posts – Precept Report

PCSO’S

Police

Total

Staff

Staff

Total

1700

164

1306

1470

3170

12

14

16

30

42

22

22

22

SNT Review (12 uplift + 8 PCs reallocated from
Response)
DSIs – 22 Additional Posts
North and South Division – 28 Additional PCs –

28

28

Rural Crime Team – 5 Additional PCs

5

5

Roads Policing Unit – 7 PCs & 1 Sgt

8

8

LPUs

Analytics Posts

7

7

7

Prevention Portfolio – Additional Sgt

1

1

Taser Trainers – 2 Additional PCs

2

2

Drones Officers – 2 PCs

2

2

ANPR Manager

1

1

1

CJ– Case File Management Posts

2

2

2

48

62

120

4

4

4

1358

1536

3294

Sub Total

58

14

Other Agreed resource/increases/decreases
2019/20 Funded Posts – Precept Report

6.

1758

178

WHAT’S THE RESULT?
2019/20 BUDGET SUMMARY

6.1

The tables below provide a summary of the 2019/20 revenue budget showing a
high-level split of the overall budget between those elements that the PCC is
directly responsible for and those under the direction and control of the Chief
Constable to manage and operate.
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6.2

The proposed budget for 2019/20 for the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner is summarised in the table below: -

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

Approved

Proposed

Budget

Budget

2018/19

2019/20

£m

£m

Commissioner’s Office

1.176

1.220

Crime Prevention Fund

0.250

0.275

Community Safety Fund

1.309

1.366

Victim and Witness Services

1.090

1.133

Sub-Total

3.825

3.994

Revenue Contributions to Capital

3.092

3.092

Debt Charges

0.597

0.701

(0.095)

(0.160)

7.419

7.627

(0.250)

-

0.022

0.024

(1.215)

(1.212)

5.976

6.439

Interest Receipts
Sub-total
Contribution from Reserves
Contribution to Reserves
Grant from the Ministry of Justice (estimate)
Net Budget Requirement

6.1

The proposed budget for the Chief Constable is set out in the table below: Chief Constable

Approved

Proposed Budget

Budget 2018/19

2019/20

£m

£m

152.356

162.768

10.311

11.310

BCU Fund

0.318

0.318

Partnerships

0.561

0.576

Contribution to National Policing

0.400

0.215

Derbyshire Constabulary
East Midlands Collaboration
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Sub-total
Contributions from Reserves
Net Budget Requirement

6.2

163.946

175.187

(0.752)

(0.610)

152.356

174.577

The budget for the share of specialist policing within Derbyshire that is being
delivered collaboratively with other police forces within the East Midlands is
summarised in the table below: East Midlands Collaboration

Approved

Proposed

Budget

Budget

2018/19

2019/20

£m

£m

EMSOU Serious and Organised Crime

3.813

4.405

Technical Support Unit

0.466

0.481

Major Crime

0.208

0.188

Forensics

1.802

1.875

HR Service Centre

0.732

0.745

Learning and Development / Occupational Health

1.000

1.039

Legal

0.344

0.357

Contribution to Regional Teams

0.000

0.302

Major Crime (budget retained within Derbyshire’s base)

1.940

1.911

CrimeStoppers Regional Manager

0.006

0.007

10.311

11.310

Total Collaboration

Council Tax base
6.3

The tax base is calculated by the billing authorities by converting all properties to
band D equivalents and making assumptions about the levels of discounts to be
offered and the amount of tax to be collected. Billing authorities are not required
to finalise their tax bases until the end of January. Based on current information
the total tax base for the PCC for 2019/20 is expected to be 315,940.14 and is
broken down by authority in Annex E.
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Band D Council Tax
6.4

The Band D council tax proposed for 2019/20 is £216.60, an increase of £24 or
12.46% on the comparable figure for 2018/19.

Precept Increase
£24
Net Revenue Budget
Budget Increase (%)
Proposed Council Tax Requirement
Police Council Tax (Band D)
Police Council Tax Increase (£)
Police Council Tax Increase (%)
Proposed Contribution from reserves

£179,917,656
7.3%
£68,432,634
£216.60
£24.00
12.46%
£1,098,409

MEDIUM-TERM PROJECTIONS 2019/23
6.5

The impact of the budget proposals for 2019/20 and key assumptions for costs and
income streams over the next 4 years is summarised in the table below.

All

government funding, including all special grants, are shown as external funding,
illustrating the full cost and funding of the Derbyshire PCC and Chief Constable. This
shows the deficit of £1.098m for 2019/20, rising to £6.328m in 2022/23, based on the
current assumptions. These projections are set out in more detail at Annex A. Given
the uncertainties surrounding future funding for the police service the projected
deficits can only be highly provisional at this stage.
6.6
Medium-Term Forecasts 2019/23

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

£m

£m

£m

£m

169.170

181.016

185.804

190.728

Inflation (including pay awards and
increments)

3.579

6.110

6.338

6.546

Other spending pressures/reductions

8.267

(1.322)

(1.414)

(1.955)

Net Revenue Budget

181.016

185.804

190.728

195.319

Projected Funding

179.818

182.869

185.892

188.991

1.098

2.935

4.836

6.328

(1.098)

(2.935)

(2.591)

-

-

-

2.245

6.328

Previous Year’s Gross Expenditure

Annual Budget Base
(Surplus)/Deficit
Contribution (to) / from Reserves
Remaining (Surplus)/Deficit
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6.7

We continue to model a range of scenarios for the future and the Statement from
the Chief Finance Officer for the Chief Constable highlights some of the risks that
need to be managed. It is important that Derbyshire Police continue to explore
opportunities to deliver savings to fund future investment as Reserves will only
cover any deficit until 2021/22 based on the current projections, without further
savings or funding.

7.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

7.1

The Commissioner conducted a public consultation through both digital (the
Commissioner’s website) and face-to-face contact (at engagement events).

7.2

The consultation described the Commissioner and Chief Constable’s aspiration
to invest in visible community policing and was well received.

7.3

The consultation commenced prior to the Government announcing that precept
flexibility would be ‘up to £24’ in 2019/20. It should be noted that prior to this
announcement, Government had advised Commissioners to work on the
assumption of ‘up to £12’ precept flexibility.

7.4

The consultation achieved 1,660 responses, 1,314 online and 346 face-to-face.
All districts (and the City) were represented in the consultation responses.

7.5

The consultation results showed that 40.7% of respondents supported a precept
increase of £12 whilst a further 30.6% of respondents supported an increase of
over £12.

Therefore, in total, 71.3% of respondents supported a precept

increase of £12 or more.
7.6

Furthermore, 86.7% of respondents agreed with the Commissioner and Chief
Constable that additional investment should be made into neighbourhood
policing and visibility next year.

7.7

Finally, 89.4% of respondents support the Commissioner and Chief Constable in
their call to Government for an increase to the Police Grant for Derbyshire.

8.

RESERVES AND BALANCES

8.1

There is an increasing focus on the amount of reserves held by the police. A
report was presented to the Policing Minister in October 2018 which showed that
total revenue reserves at 31st March 2018 amounted to £1.40bn; a reduction of
14% on comparable figures twelve months ago. Current forecasts indicate that
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revenue reserves will fall by a further 47% between now and March 2021 to a
figure of £747m.

8.2

Capital grants and reserves have fallen from £534m in March 2017 to £168m by
March 2018 and expected to fall still further to just £29m by March 2021.

Reserves Position for Derbyshire
8.3

The budget plans accommodate all the known immediate financial risks facing
Derbyshire Police. Nevertheless, risks continue to remain over future finance
settlements, inflation and the impact of future pay awards, but also: 

Contributions to Regional Organised Crime Units (ROCU) and East Midlands
Serious and Organised Crime Unit.

8.4



Employer Pension rates.



Changes to the funding model for the National Police Air Service (NPAS).



Forensics (investment in digital technology and supplier pressure).



Introduction of the Emergency Services Network (ESN).



Impact of Brexit.

Equally, major and unpredictable new policing operations can also impact heavily
on the budget. As it stands reserves are sufficient to provide a cushion against
these risks. More detail on the assessment of the adequacy of reserves and the
management of reserves can be found in the Reserves Strategy. The table
below shows the projected level of reserves up to 2023: -
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GENERAL RESERVES

Balances at
31/03/18

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/19

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/20

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/21

Estimated
Balances
at 31/03/22

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,000

5,500

5,500

5,500

5,500

Operational Priorities

1,325

0

0

0

0

Operational Funding & Investment

6,776

5,624

4,822

2,591

0

Contribution to Capital

1,464

0

0

0

0

Carry-forwards
PCC Grants &
Reserve

1,400

578

624

578

578

2,406

2,056

1,761

1,056

1,056

500

0

0

0

0

13,871

8,258

7,207

4,225

1,634

PFI – Ilkeston

1,115

1,048

983

910

829

PFI – Derby

3,091

2,792

2,452

2,080

1,673

992

997

1,003

1,010

1,020

EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable: -

Commissioning

Pensions
Sub-Total
Non-useable: -

Insurance
Carry-forwards non Force

658

232

47

0

0

5,856

5,069

4,485

4,000

3,522

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES

19,727

13,327

11,645

8,225

5,156

TOTAL RESERVES

23,727

18,827

17,144

13,725

10,656

Sub-Total

8.5

Further detail on the level of reserves is set out in Annex D.

9.

IS OUR BORROWING AFFORDABLE?

8.1

Whilst the Prudential Code relates to new capital controls, it does impact on the
revenue budget. Any agree long term borrowing meeting all the Prudential Code
guidelines will have on-going revenue implications over a long period. Separate
reports deal with the Capital Programme and also the Prudential Indicators for
the Constabulary and are also included on the agenda.

10.

ASSURANCE STATEMENT FROM THE S151 OFFICERS’ CONSIDERATIONS

9.1

When setting the Budget and Capital Programme for the forthcoming year the
Police & Crime Commissioner must be satisfied that adequate consideration has
been given to the following: −
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Government policy on police spending, as applied to the Police & Crime
Commissioner.



The CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.



The impact on the Council Tax and the threat or risk of exceeding the
excessiveness principle (previously capping).



Whether the proposals represent a balanced budget for the year.



The robustness of estimates and the size and adequacy of general and
specific earmarked reserves.



The medium-term implications of the Budget and Capital Programme
(MTFS).

9.2

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Commissioner’s Chief
Financial Officer to provide the Commissioner with assurance on the robustness
of estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations and the adequacy
of reserves.

9.3

The Act requires that the Commissioner has regard to the report of the Chief
Finance Officer in making their budget decision. Where this advice is not
accepted, this needs to be formally recorded in the minutes of the Strategic
Priorities Assurance Board.
ASSURANCE OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE’S CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

9.4

As the Chief Constable’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following
assurances: 

The main assumptions for compiling the budget are set out within the report
and the figures for the 2019/20 budget have been based on these
assumptions.



The recommendations are consistent with the budget strategy also set out
within the report and do not impact on the financial stability of the
Constabulary. However, as highlighted in the report, the Constabulary has
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changed its approach with an increasing emphasis on managing risk through
reserves rather than building contingency into the budget.


Future financial implications up to 2023 have been analysed but can only
provide an indication of the potential financial position that the Constabulary
and Commissioner will face. This reflects all known factors that could have an
impact on these financial plans up to 2023 and we are assuming that funding
for the increased pensions contributions will continue in the medium-term
financial forecast which is a risk that we will have to monitor closely.



The figures within the Medium Term Financial Strategy are based on a
number of key assumptions set out within the MTFS and can only provide an
indication of the scale of the challenge that we face at this time. In particular
the figures are heavily dependent on future government funding decisions.



Medium Term implications –the proposals are sustainable and allow the
Constabulary to be agile enough to respond to any changes arising from the
next Spending Review. There are a number of scenarios that the
Constabulary will need to model with the current MTFS based on the most
prudent forecast around funding and precept increases.

ASSURANCE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER’S CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER
9.5

As the Commissioner’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following
assurances: 

Government Policy – The MTFS is produced in line with the latest
government policy as applied to Police & Crime Commissioners.



CIPFA Code – the MTFS is produced in line with the Prudential Code and the
CIPFA Treasury Management Code. Details are outlined in the Treasury
Management and Capital Programme reports.



Council Tax – The Government confirmed that legislation through the
Localism Act provides communities with the power to veto, through a
referendum, council tax increases deemed by the government to be
excessive. The level at which council tax is deemed excessive is decided in
accordance with a set of principles determined by the Secretary of State for
Communities.

For 2019/20 the Referendum Principle is £24 for Police &
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Crime Commissioners. This report presents the precept option for the
Commissioner to consider, which is for an increase in the Police element of
Council Tax at Band D by £24. Increases in council tax secure year on year
funding, as being a part of the base revenue budget.


Balanced budget – a balanced budget is presented.



Robustness of Estimates – I have reviewed the matters that have been
considered in drafting the proposed budget and the consequential budget
requirement, and the required level of the police precept. I am satisfied that
the procedures adopted by the Director of Finance and his team are
sufficiently robust to ensure the financial data is accurate and forms a sound
basis for the preparation of the estimates for 2019/20.



Adequacy of reserves – I consider the level of general reserves (increased to
£5.5m) to be adequate for meeting estimated future risks. Specific reserves
are at appropriate levels to support future expenditure in the medium term. I
fully endorse the move to managing risk through our reserves as opposed to
holding contingencies within the revenue budget.



Medium Term implications – I consider that the MTFS presents a best
estimate of the future financial pressures that the Commissioner will face. It
should be noted that inherent within the MTFS are key assumptions that (a)
the pensions grant for 2019/20 continues in future years in flat terms, (b) the
precept is increased by £6 each year and (c) that 3% pay inflation will apply
in the future.

Movement in any of those key assumptions would have

significant impact on the available resources to support policing. The Director
of Finance and I will continue to monitor national developments carefully to
ensure the Commissioner and Chief Constable are sighted on any emerging
risks for Derbyshire.
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POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
Revenue Budget Projections to FY 2022/23
notes
Previous Year's Budget Requirement
Pay & Price Increases
Full Year Effect of Previous Year's Pay Award:Police Officers
Police Staff
Provision for Current Year's Pay Award & Inflation:Police Officers pay award
Police Staff pay award
Police Officer Increments
Police Staff Increments
Specific Price Inflation
General Inflation Contingency
Total - Pay & Price Increases
Previous Year's Budget plus Pay & Price increases
Other Approved or Anticipated Changes to Base Budgets
2018/19 Business Cases - ongoing effect
2018/19 Re-shaping For The Future - ongoing effect
Police Officers - Turnover (recruitment less wastage)
Police Officers - Funded strength increase in 2018/19
Police Officers - Funding of pension schemes
Police Officers - Costs of Ill-health retirements
Police Officers - Overtime (Special Services)
Police Officers - Overtime (no of Bank Holidays)
Police Officers - Rent / Housing Allowance eligibility
Additional Officer recruitment via Police Now
Police Staff - Workforce modernisations
Police Staff - Additional posts approved in 2018/19
Police Staff - Other changes
Rents - LLP
Other property related costs
Other Revenue Consequences of Capital Expenditure
Photocopying Contract
Vehicle Recovery Contract - net costs
Professional Fees
Contributions to Regional collaboration
Maintenance costs associated with existing IT
Open Source Capability
Single On-line Home costs
Other subscriptions to national policing services
Derbyshire Child & Adult Safeguarding - uplift in contributions
Debt Charges - current and new borrowing
Football Income
Other Special Services Income
Investment Income
Other miscellaneous income
OPCC - Additional Requirement
Reserve contributions - PCC Community Safety grants
Reserve contributions - Other
Other Changes
Total - Other Approved or Anticipated Changes

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

169.170

181.016

185.804

190.728

( .158)
( .073)

1.209
0.554

1.222
0.553

1.252
0.575

1.608
0.728
1.236
0.557
0.505
( .823)
3.579

1.710
0.774
1.345
0.518

1.753
0.805
1.483
0.523

1.800
0.839
1.550
0.530

6.110

6.338

6.546

187.126

192.142

197.274

172.749

( .747)
0.649
( 1.966)
0.307
4.384
0.308
0.112
0.117
( .239)
0.112
0.066
0.101
( .141)
0.485
( .016)
( .047)
( .060)
( .061)
( .050)
0.458
( .116)
0.042
0.131
0.249
0.084
0.104
0.146
( .131)
( .065)
0.015
0.037
0.250
( .040)
0.098
4.576

( 1.991)

( 1.826)

( 1.881)

( .295)
( .112)

( .153)

( .079)

( .031)
0.184

( .029)

0.375

0.788

0.045

( .038)

( .039)

( .040)

( 1.908)

( 1.259)

( 1.955)

Annex A
notes
2019/20 Business Cases / Funding Priorities
Safer Neighbourhood Team review
Police Officer Overtime provision
Digitisation in Custody Suites
Information Management - meeting new legislation
Other miscellaneous priorities
Drones
Rural Crime Team
LPU - North & South
CJ - Case File Management
Prevent
Roads Policing
Analytics
Detective Staff Investigators
Tasers
Domestic Abuse Training
ANPR Manager
Temp HR Staff & Trainers for Resourcing Uplit Plan 19/20
less: Reduction in CCMC staff
Total - 2019/20 Business Cases / Funding Priorities

2019/20
£m
1.424
0.200
0.181
0.118
0.047
0.112
0.127
0.381
0.044
0.043
0.221
0.296
0.369
0.157
0.063
0.035
0.065
( .192)
3.691

BASE BUDGET REQUIREMENT FOR YEAR

2020/21
£m
0.554
( .050)

2021/22
£m
0.039
( .150)

2022/23
£m
0.000

( .048)
( .017)
0.042
0.127
( .044)
0.015
0.074

0.017
( .063)
( .065)
0.586

( .155)

0.000

181.016

185.804

190.728

195.319

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

100.504
8.700
1.856
111.060

100.504
8.700
1.856
111.060

100.504
8.700
1.856
111.060

100.504
8.700
1.856
111.060

60.519
0.757
7.582
0.000
68.858

68.858
1.026
1.924
0.000
71.808

71.808
1.071
1.953
0.000
74.832

74.832
1.116
1.982
0.000
77.930

TOTAL PROJECTED FUNDING

179.918

182.869

185.892

188.991

BUDGET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT

1.098

2.935

4.836

6.328

( 1.098)

( 2.935)

( 2.591)

0.000

0.000

0.000

2.245

6.328

FUNDING FOR BUDGET REQUIREMENT
Central Government Funding
Formula grant
Council Tax grants
Pension Support grants
Total - Central Government Funding
Precept Funding
Previous year Council Tax Funding
Change in tax base - annual growth
Change in Band D Council Tax
Change in Collection A/c Surplus / (Deficit)
Total - Precept Funding

Contribution from Reserves
REMAINING (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT NOT FUNDED

notes

Annex B
Office of the PCC - 2019/20 Budget (detail)

Account

Account(T)

1100 Police Staff Pay
1120 Police Staff Overtime - Plain Time
1140 Police Staff National Insurance
1160 Police Staff Superannuation
1501 Training Courses
1600 NHS Re-Imbursement
1602 Recruitment Advertising
1603 Interview Expenses
2210 Hire of Rooms
3200 Police Vehicle Fuel
3300 Hire of Vehicles
3400 Other Mileage (PSV)
3403 RaIl Travel
3408 Car Parking, Taxis, etc
4000 Equipment - General
4040 Furniture
4100 Accomodation / Hotel Expenses
4101 Subsistence Expenses
4291 Meals / Refreshments
4400 Printing and Stationery - General
4401 Publications
4505 Financial Contracts
4520 Professional Fees
4543 Professional Fees - Legal
4575 Media Relations
4630 Hardware - Purchase
4635 Software Purchase
4740 JARAC Attendance
4741 JARAC Mileage
4805 Non-Recruitment Advertising
4807 Conference Expenses
4888 Bank Charges
4890 Misc Expenditure
4895 Subscriptions General
Office of the PCC - Total Budget

2018/19
Adjustments
Base Budget
to Base
712,200

Full Year
Inflation

Increments

Other
Changes

18,400

11,500

(8,000)

734,100

1,900

1,200

1,500

79,300

2,400

1,500

900

94,700

1,100

1,100

74,700
89,900
0
200
0
2,000

2019/20
PROPOSED
BUDGET

5,000

5,000

(200)

0

1,000

1,000

(1,500)

500

1,200

1,200

0

400

400

0

1,200

1,200

11,400

(400)

11,000

8,000

8,000

1,000

1,000

3,000

3,000

500

2,000

2,500

1,000

800

1,800

300

100

400

800

900

1,700

3,800

1,200

5,000

(3,000)

48,000

500
51,000

500

22,400

22,400

17,600
45,000
800
8,500

17,600
1,500

46,500

(800)

0

9,000

17,500

7,000

7,000

1,000
0

1,000
4,900

4,900

2,500
7,000
34,400
67,000

1,175,800

2,500
(22,100)

0

22,700

14,200

12,700

7,000
25,000
67,000

7,100

1,219,800

Annex C

2019/20 PROPOSED BUDGET
Services Commissioned via the Chief Constable

2018/19
Approved
£m
Police Officers
Community Support Officers
Other Police Staff

87.032

2019/20
Proposed
£m
94.114

4.795

5.186

35.860

37.794

Police Pensions

2.530

2.912

Other Employee Expenses

0.690

0.834

Premises

8.644

9.212

Transport
Supplies & Services

3.737

3.760

13.865

14.629

Agency & Contracted Services

0.088

0.172

Pay & Price Contingency

0.823

0.000

Specific Grants

( 2.989)

( 2.759)

General Income

( 2.719)

( 3.087)

Derbyshire Constabulary
Contribution to East Midlands Collaboration

152.356

162.767

10.311

11.310

BCU Funding

0.318

0.318

Partnerships

0.561

0.576

Contribution to National Policing

0.400

0.215

163.946

175.186

PROPOSED GROSS SPENDING
Contribution from reserves
- PFI
- Devolved Carry-Forwards
- Other Reserves

PROPOSED NET SPENDING

( .382)
( .370)
( .752)

163.194

( .425)
( .185)
( .610)

174.576

Annex D

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
STATEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES AT 31 MARCH 2018 AND FORECAST LEVELS TO 31 MARCH 2021

2018 / 19

Balances at
31/03/18

GENERAL RESERVES

£
4,000,000

Movements
(to) / from
Revenue
£

Transfers
Between
Reserves

-

£
1,500,000

2019 / 20

Contributions
to Capital
£
-

Balances at
31/03/19
£
5,500,000

Projected
Movements
(to) / from
Revenue
£
-

2020 / 21

Projected
Contributions to
Capital
£

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/20
£
5,500,000

-

Projected
Movements
(to) / from
Revenue
£
-

2021 / 22

Projected
Contributions to
Capital
£

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/21
£
5,500,000

-

Projected
Movements
(to) / from
Revenue
£
-

Projected
Contributions to
Capital
£

Estimated
Balances at
31/03/22
£
5,500,000

-

EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:Operational Priorities

1,324,693

(38,000)

(1,286,693)

0

Operational Funding and Investment Reserve

6,775,866

(1,514,418)

362,693

5,624,141

Contribution to Capital

1,464,100

Carry-forwards

2,057,551

( 1,248,100)

PCC Grants & Commissioning

2,406,474

(350,000)

Pensions
Total Useable:-

(1,464,100)

500,000
14,528,684

(500,000)
(3,150,518)

(1,424,000)

0
(802,409)

0

4,821,732
0

2,590,732

0

0

0

(185,000)

624,451

(47,000)

577,451

577,451

2,056,474

(296,000)

1,760,474

(704,000)

1,056,474

1,056,474

8,490,066

0

0
(2,590,732)

809,451
(1,464,100)

0
(2,231,000)

(1,283,409)

0

7,206,657

(2,982,000)

0

4,224,657

(2,590,732)

0

1,633,925

Non-useable:PFI - Ilkeston

1,115,395

(66,941)

1,048,454

(64,991)

983,463

(72,978)

910,485

(81,542)

828,943

PFI - Derby

3,091,382

(299,639)

2,791,743

(339,988)

2,451,755

(372,043)

2,079,712

(406,602)

1,673,110

991,879

5,455

Total Non-useable:TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES

Insurance

5,198,656
19,727,340

(361,125)
(3,511,643)

TOTAL RESERVES

23,727,340

(3,511,643)

997,334

5,485

1,002,819

7,521

1,010,340

10,103

(1,424,000)

0
(1,464,100)

4,837,531
13,327,597

(399,494)
(1,682,903)

0
0

4,438,037
11,644,694

(437,500)
(3,419,500)

0
0

4,000,537
8,225,194

(478,041)
(3,068,773)

0
0

3,522,496
5,156,421

1,020,443

76,000

(1,464,100)

18,827,597

(1,682,903)

0

17,144,694

(3,419,500)

0

13,725,194

(3,068,773)

0

10,656,421

Annex E
2019/20 PRECEPT PROPOSAL: A £24 COUNCIL TAX INCREASE

Band D

Council Tax
Base

Total
Funding

£216.60

Collection Fund

Surplus

Council Tax

Deficit

315,940.14

68,858,063

428,476 -

Amber Valley
Borough Council

39,539.86

8,613,851

49,517

Bolsover
District Council

21,982.87

4,761,490

Chesterfield
Borough Council

29,000.63

6,278,489

Derby
City Council

68,679.00

14,958,144

82,273

Derbyshire Dales
District Council

28,914.13

6,271,269

8,468

6,262,801

Erewash
Borough Council

32,988.80

7,147,600

2,226

7,145,374

High Peak
Borough Council

30,575.00

6,696,755

74,210

6,622,545

North East Derbyshire
District Council

30,957.85

6,805,752

100,282

6,705,470

South Derbyshire
District Council

33,302.00

7,324,713

111,500

7,213,213

167,655,879

2019/20 Proposed

179,917,656
7.31%

Increase in GRE

Council Tax Requirement

68,432,634
8,564,334

4,761,490

-

Gross Revenue Expenditure
2018/19 Approved

3,047

3,047

6,281,536

-

14,875,871

Council Tax per Banding
BAND

2018/19

2019/20

A

£
128.40

£
144.40

B

149.80

168.47

C
D

171.20
192.60

192.53
216.60

E
F

235.40
278.20

264.73
312.87

2018/19 Approved

60,092,870

G

321.00

361.00

2019/20 Proposed

68,432,634
13.88%

H

385.20

433.20

Increase in CTR
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POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
Summary of Movements in the 2019/20 Budget

Previous Year's Budget Requirement
Costs - Resourcing Uplift Plan
Safer Neighbourhood Team review
Detective Staff Investigators
North & South Division - Local Policing Units
Rural Crime Team
Roads Policing
Analytics
Prevention Portfolio
Extended Roll out of Tasers
Drones
ANPR Manager
CJ - Case File Management Posts
Total - Resourcing Uplift Plan
Other Priority Areas of Investment
Reshaping for The Future Budget Requirements
Open Source Capability
New Child & Adult Safeguarding arrangements
Information Management - Meeting new Legislation
Domestic Abuse Training
Temp HR Staff & Trainers for Resourcing Uplift Plan 19/20
OPCC - Commissioning Budget
Securing Long Term Funding of PCC Grants Scheme
Business Crime Initiatives
Apprenticeship Scheme
Safe Space - City Centre Initiative
Positive Action Budget
Contribution to Police Treatment Centres
Digilisation in Custody Suites
Total - Other Areas of Investment
Costs we have to cover
Pay Awards
Pay Increments / Specific Price Inflation
Funding of Pension Contributions
NPAS - Potential Changes to Funding Model
Other contributions to National Policing Services
EMSOU / Other Regional Collaboration
Total Unavoidable Costs
Other Approved or Anticipated Changes
Base Budget Requirement for Year

2019/20
£m
169.170
1.063
0.730
0.381
0.127
0.221
0.296
0.043
0.157
0.112
0.035
0.044
3.209
0.649
0.042
0.084
0.118
0.063
0.065
0.100
0.250
0.030
0.046
0.015
0.030
0.010
0.181
1.683
2.104
1.475
4.384
0.168
0.212
0.458
8.801
( 1.847)
181.016

4.892

AGENDA ITEM

9B
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE
REPORT
TITLE

2018/19 YEAR END ACCOUNTING ARRANGEMENTS
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORT BY CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
DATE

13 FEBRUARY 2019

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
To advise of the draft timetable for the closure of accounts and to note the Statement of
Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable and for the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A. 2018/19 Year-end closedown plan
Appendix B. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Derbyshire
Appendix C. Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable for Derbyshire

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Committee can take assurance that plans, including the draft timetable
for the closure of accounts and the production of the Statements for 2018/19 are
robust.

AGENDA ITEM 9B
JOINT AUDIT RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE
13 FEBRUARY 2019

2. The Statement of Accounting Policies for the Chief Constable and for the Police
and Crime Commissioner are approved. To note the information and analysis as
set out in this report and Appendix B and C.

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES
Name:

Andrew Dale

Tel:

0300 122 6000

Email

pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
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1.

INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
1. The 2018/19 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting 2018/19 (the Code). The Accounts reflect the current
legislative framework as well as the local arrangements operating in practice. Key
elements of this framework include: •

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act).

•

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

•

The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police
Service of England and Wales 2013 – revised July 2018.

•

Joint Corporate Governance Framework – Scheme of Delegation and
consent between the Commissioner and Chief Constable.

•

The Financial Handbook of the Commissioner and Chief Constable.

2. Each year a timetable is prepared setting out the key processes that must be
followed and respective deadlines to ensure the accounts are prepared in
accordance with the framework and by the statutory deadline. Under the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015, the date by which the unaudited accounts must be
published is the 31 May and the date by which the accounts must be published
along with the auditor’s opinion is the 31 July. The year-end timetable is attached at
Appendix A.
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Preparation of the 2018/19 Accounts
3. We are required, under statute to publish the annual audited statement of
accounts before the end of July of the following financial year. The primary financial
statements within this document comprise:•

Movement in Reserves Statement.

•

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

•

Balance Sheet.

•

Cash Flow Statement.

4. In addition to these primary statements the accounts include a Narrative Report
providing context and explanations of key issues and a series of notes providing
further detail to the primary statements.
5. The Annual Governance Statements (AGS) also accompany the statements of
accounts. The AGS sets out the management’s view of its governance
arrangements, issues to be addressed and actions to be taken to strengthen
governance.
Accounting Policies
6. Accounting policies are the specific principals, conventions, rules and
practices that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual accounts. The
Commissioner and Chief Constable follows broadly the standards and policies
contained in the Code when preparing their final accounts.
7. It is recommended that the Accounting Policies are approved by the Joint Audit,
Risk and Assurance Committee, so setting the framework for final accounts to be
prepared and the Statements produced. Attached at the Appendices B and C are
the Statements of Accounting Policies for the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts for the
Committee’s approval.
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Draft Final Accounts Closedown Plan for the Chief Constable and Police and Crime Commissioner 2018/19 Appendix A TO AGENDA ITEM 9B

JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

Day

Date

Leave

Sep-Mar
Sep-Mar
Oct/Nov
Nov/Dec
Dec
Nov
Dec/Feb
Dec-Mar
Jan/Feb
Jan
Wednesday
09-Jan
Friday
18-Jan
Saturday
26-Jan
Sunday
27-Jan
Monday
28-Jan
Tuesday
29-Jan
Wednesday
30-Jan
Thursday
Friday

31-Jan
01-Feb

PS

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

02-Feb
03-Feb
04-Feb
05-Feb

MC
MC

Wednesday

06-Feb

Thursday

07-Feb

Friday

08-Feb

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

09-Feb
10-Feb
11-Feb
12-Feb

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Put Payments in advance, receipts in advance, creditors, debtors into system where possible. Raise debtor invoices for 2018/19
where possible
Ensure any miscodings are corrected, orders closed, reconciliations are up to date etc…
Set up proforma accounts for 2018/19
Prepare Capital working Papers
GAD issue data requirements and deadlines for police pensions plus Commissioning letter
Scan all grant notifications & precepts for final accounts working papers
Set up Asset Registers for 2018/19, calculate depreciation, prepare spreadsheets to send out for disposals
Finance Support to ensure that creditors,debtors and aged registrations are monitored and cleared as soon as possible
Review Code of Practice for new requirements
Finance Support/Legal to review debtor invoices for write off during January - deadline for return 1 February
Deadline for return of GAD commissioning letter
Public Sector Accounting Workshop - EY

Strat Finance
Strat Finance
JC
JC
GAD/PS/MC
MC
SM/JC
Fin Support
JC
CW
MC/PS
JC

External Audit in for a week for Interim Audit - Walkthrough of systems
Send out Draft Timetable to discuss at meetings
Meeting with CW re Final Accounts Timetable
DCC issue data requirements and deadlines for LGPS
CW to check that mileage details are up to date for Chief Officers
Written Instructions issued to users re year end procedures
Deadline for acceptance of demographic assumptions to GAD
Email sent out to SS about property sales
Email to IS re asset disposals - deadline for return 22 February

Ext Audit
JC
CW
DCC
CW
JC
MC/PS
JC
JC/SM

Deadline for JARAC - Report on Accounting Policies - include track changes on Acc Policies
Send out email re CDC % to staff deadline 5 March
Finance Support to review old registrations to clear by 1 March
Meeting with Strategic Finance re Final Accounts Timetable
Under the new I-Trent payroll system, check if any reports can be provided for the accrual of overtime/expenses (March). If not,
decide on an approach for estimating the accrual.
List of aged orders and registrations to be sent out to check if any need closing/chasing
Check debtors reconciliation of 0325 in anticipation of year end
Strategic Finance to review old orders to be closed by 1 March
Assets registers to be complete for start of year position
Deadline to for DCC IAS19 information - dates to be confirmed

DF/MC/JC
KF
Fin Supp
Strat Finance
JC/CW
MC
KB/CW
Strat Finance
SM/TW/JC
PS/MC

Send out emails re leases and embedded arrangements to IS, Assets Team and Procurement.
Emails Assets Team (SS) re new leases or terminated leases in 2018/19

JC
JC/KB
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JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

Day

Date

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Email LLP (Derbyshire Fire) re deadlines for accruals and other information
JARAC
Meeting with Regional Accountants - Final Accounts Issues - Meeting date to be arranged
Send Email to DCC re backlog of DCC Maintenance Invoices

JC

External Audit in for a week for Interim Audit
Draft Closing down timetable issued to External Auditors.
Written request sent to Finance (CW) & Divisions & CTIU for Petty Cash Imprest Account Reconciliations and a request to bank
income on 31 March
Written request sent to Business Services Support and Legal for Vehicle and Liability Insurance Claims deadline 5 April
Meeting with Assets (DP) re recharge to LLP for costs of Joint HQ & Joint Training Centre
Balance all reconciliation accounts in anticipation of year end (eg collection accounts, salaries Interims etc)
Written request to Lampton Smith Hamptons re valuation requirements
Deadline for return of lists for IS Disposals
Apprenticeship Levy - need details of anything spent and to be recovered

Ext Audit
JC
JC/TW
KF
SM/Assets
LS/CW
DF/JC
SM/JC
TW

CW
CW

Check with Director of Finance any changes to Chief Officer scheme
Email to HR re TOIL, Annual Leave for Police Officers and Staff on DMS system as at 31/03/19 Deadline 8 April
Send email to Claire for information on Police Property Fund Balances as at 31/03/19
Recharge for Crest Vehicle insurance (premium/self insurance)
Action write off any items in collection accounts and salaries interims (04's)
Email to District/Borough Councils re Accounting for Council Tax - deadline Wednesday 1 May
Email Assets Team re assets held for sale, surplus assets and impairments
Period 11 Monitoring reports run

TW
TW
AC
MC
LS/JC/CW
MC
JC
JPJ

02-Mar
03-Mar
04-Mar

MC

Strat Finance
CW/JC

Tuesday

05-Mar

MC

Wednesday

06-Mar

MC

Thursday

07-Mar

MC

Friday

08-Mar

MC

Strategic Finance to work on Draft Outturn this week for Carry Forward meetings w/c 11 March
Finance Support/Legal to review debtor invoices for write off during March - deadline for return 25 March
Email to Assets Team (TH) re reports from Vehicle Management System re purchases and disposals up to 31/03/19. Deadline
5 April 2019.
Remind DCC/Derby City to send debt charges and early retirement invoices before 31 March 2019
Deadline for CDC% information
Email Business Support re deadlines (8 April) for Fuel and Hire Cars (11 April)
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (11 April) for Barclaycard, CW to email departments with deadline
Email Finance Support (CW) re deadlines (8 April) for POCA information
Cleaning Recharges to be actioned
Prepare utility accruals
Provide GAD with a record of the summary data and cashflows during 2018/19
Deadline for embedded leases

Wednesday

13-Feb

Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

14-Feb
15-Feb
16-Feb
17-Feb
18-Feb

Tuesday

19-Feb

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

20-Feb
21-Feb
22-Feb

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday

23-Feb
24-Feb
25-Feb
26-Feb
27-Feb

Thursday
Friday

28-Feb
01-Mar

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

MC
MC

PS
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Day

Date

Leave

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

09-Mar
10-Mar
11-Mar
12-Mar
13-Mar
14-Mar

Friday

15-Mar

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

16-Mar
17-Mar
18-Mar

Tuesday

19-Mar

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

20-Mar
21-Mar
22-Mar

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

23-Mar
24-Mar
25-Mar
26-Mar

JC,DF
JC,DF

Wednesday

27-Mar

JC,DF

Thursday
Friday

28-Mar
29-Mar

DF
DF

PS
PS
PS
PS
PS
CW

JC
JC
JC

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Send Information to LSH re capital spend

JC/SM

Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
Review out of date cheques and write-off actioned by 26 March.
Draft outturn/Carry forward meetings with formations
All recharges to be sent to EMSOU (estimate for March)
Check Balance Sheet Codes for revenue items (eg 0222,0236,0336,0238,0338 etc….)

DF/Strat Finance
DF/Strat Finance
DF/Strat Finance
DF/Strat Finance
LS
DF/Strat Finance
AC/MC
JC

Email to Leicestershire/Business Support re salaries over £40,000 and P11D information.
Email Finance Support (CW), Divisions and CTIU to remind about banking on 29 March 2019
Email Business Support re deadline for repair costs Chief Officer Vehicles (5 April) for P11D calculation
Cheque/BACS run
BACS run for Widows payments required

TW/JC
JC
CW
Fin Supp
Fin Supp

Email to Sheila Sismey re Derby PFI CCR's
Deadline for Divisional Petty Cash to be received by Finance Support
Deadline for Divisions/Departments/Strat Finance to send any invoices they might receive to Finance Support
Last day for debtor invoice details to reach Finance Support for input deadline 29 March 2019
Last day for virement requests from Divisions/Departments to be actioned by 22 March.

PS
Divisions/Fin Supp
Divs/Depts/Strat Finance
Divs/Depts/Strat Finance
Strat Finance

MC to send template letter to Banks to inform them that EY will be asking for verification of bank balances we hold with them

MC

List of Debtors to be written off/credited to be established
Out of date cheques In Agresso
Cheque/BACS run to pick up most invoices
Email to Chief offIcers and Office of PCC re related party transactions
Email to Force Solicitor, Director of Finance and Office of PCC (Chief Finance Officer & Chief Executive) re contingent liabilities
Action Debtor Write offs (JC) and credit notes (CW) by this date
Income (cash receipts) to be banked. Divisions to send Statement of Receipts and Banking slip to Fin Supp by 2.30pm
Transfer monies from legal account to main account
Emails sent to Force Managers re force assets as at 31/03/2019 due back 5 April
Cash Receipts to be registered in Agresso for HQ and Divisions.
Debtor invoices to be input.
All handdrawn cheques to be posted (Manual Payments)
Last Cheque/BACS run for 2018/19 and HQ Petty Cash.

CW
LS
Fin Supp
KF
MC
JC/CW
Fin Supp
Trea Man
JC
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
Fin Supp
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Day

Date

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

30-Mar
31-Mar
01-Apr

Tuesday

02-Apr

Wednesday

03-Apr

Thursday

04-Apr

Friday

05-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

06-Apr
07-Apr
08-Apr

Tuesday

09-Apr

Wednesday

10-Apr

Thursday

11-Apr

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Period/Year end routines and Agresso system default period changed to 201901.
Run report of invoices registered but not approved (posted) plus other year end reports

MC/JPJ
JC

Open Purchase Orders as at 31 March carried forward to 201901
Check all Cash Receipts input
Check with Enterprise if we can have hire vehicle invoice by 13th April
Auditors to request third-party verifications for bank balances. MC to send letters for investments as at 31 March 2019 to be
returned to auditors- schedule to be sent to Auditors
Email PFI provider about lifecycle expenditure - capital/revenue
GAD send out financial assumptions
Email sent re capital orders to accrue
Income banked (Manual Credits and Debits) up to 31 March 2019 posted within Agresso. Manual Receipts to be posted.
Final reconciliation of Account code 0325 - debtors income - Liase with Finance Support if necessary
Final Bank Reconciliation for 2018/19 completed. Save copy in excel (Final Accounts Balance Sheet Working Papers)
Send out Bad Debt Provision information to Fin Support (CW) deadline for return 12 April
Deadline for information from Vehicle Management System re purchases and Disposals
Deadline for Petty Cash Reconciliation Information
Cancelled cheques (no reissue) relating to old year to be posted
Deadline for repair costs Chief Officer vehicles
Deadline for Force Asset information from Assets
Finance Support to sort all queries on Police overtime
Deadline for vehicle and legal claims information

JPJ/SM/MC
JC/CW
JPJ

Balance System Debtors and Creditors and summarise in different formats
Deadline for Fuel recharges
Deadline POCA information
Overtime and 10% allowance submission to Kier
Police Officer/staff TOIL,RDIL, Flexi and Annual Leave to be obtained from HR system (DMS Staff only)
Send email out re Grants to be checked for conditions
Fuel Charges to be input into Agresso
Reconcile POCA to Finance Support records and post journals
Cheque/BACS Run
Run report of invoices (creditor/debtor) posted in 2019/20 to check which need accrueing into 2018/19. Send out to Strategic
Finance
EMSOU to send final spreadsheet, Notts to send Arrow Recharge
Underspends on Collaborations to be sent out
Download Year End PWLB Information from internet
Deadline for Long/Short term hire vehicles for March transactions
Deadline for Barclaycard Expenditure spreadsheet to be received for March transactions
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MC
PS
GAD
JC/SM
Fin Supp
KB
LS
KF/JC/CW
Assets/SM
Fin/Bus Supp/CTIU
CW
Bus Supp
Assets/JC
Fin Supp
Bus Ser/Legal

KF
Bus Supp
CW/KB
JPJ
TW
JC
JPJ
KB/Fin Supp
Fin Supp
JC/SM
EMSOU/Notts
PS
MC
Bus Supp
Fin Supp
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Day

Friday

Date

12-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

13-Apr
14-Apr
15-Apr

Tuesday

16-Apr

Wednesday

17-Apr

Thursday

18-Apr

Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday

19-Apr
20-Apr
21-Apr
22-Apr
23-Apr
24-Apr

Thursday
Friday

25-Apr
26-Apr

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

27-Apr
28-Apr
29-Apr
30-Apr

Leave

Task/Comment
Bad Debt provision deadline
Finalise system accruals spreadsheet & input into Agresso
Barclaycard Expenditure to be input into Agresso
Pensions Deficit information input into Agresso
Vehicle Reconciliation Complete
Require overtime and expenses information for accrual - Check with Claire
Information back from DCC - IAS19 information - to be confirmed
Amounts for Police Officers' &staff overtime/10% allowances/unsocial hours in April 2019 payroll posted to period 201813. Also
accrue March registered Overtime.
Amounts for Mileage & Expenses in April 2019 Police Officer and Police Staff payrolls posted to period 201813
Chief Officer private mileage recharge journal to be posted (0421)

Responsible Task Complete
CW
SM/JC
JPJ
JPJ
SM
DCC
JPJ
JPJ
CW/JC

Final reconciliation of salaries interims/collection accounts
LS/CW
DCC Maintenance recharges to be done
SM
Hire Cars Expenditure to be input into Agresso
JPJ
Check that Finance Support have entered all debtor and creditor invoices into Agresso that relate to 2018/19 to be picked up for
final accrual by Strategic Finance
JC/Fin Supp
Last journal entries to revenue codes (Final outturn position) by 4pm
Strat Finance
Excelerator Reports run for final outturn position
JPJ/MC
Check Final Outturn Reports and send out
Strat Finance
Capital Accounting 17 April to 3 May
JC/SM
Collaboration Accounting 17 April to 26 April (lead force information to others in region), 3 May for Derbyshires Accounts
TW/SL/KF/MC
Information provided to Chief Finance Officer (PCC) re Police Property Fund. CFO to agree amounts and CW to prepare report t CW
Information back from Valuer
LSH

GAD issues the consolidated results re IAS19
Balance Manual Debtors and Creditors and analyse for Debtor/Creditors note Deadline 10 May
Sponsorship balances in ledger balanced to Sponsorship register

GAD
KB
AC

Deadline for Provisional Outturn Figures for Director of Finance to report to PCC & Chief Finance Officer
IAS19 figures to be posted in ledger.
All other IAS19 Information back from DCC
Lead Force Information to be sent/received from region re collabaration

KF/DF
MC
DCC
TW/SL/KF/MC

Prepare Annual Governance Statement - Chief Constable and PCC for Audit Committee (JARAC) on 17 May
Information required for Chief Officer renumeration note re P11D information (Chief Officers cars etc..)

DF/AD
CW
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Day

Date

Leave

Wednesday
Thursday

01-May
02-May

CW
CW

Friday

03-May

CW

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

04-May
05-May
06-May
07-May

CW

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

08-May
09-May
10-May

CW
CW
CW

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

11-May
12-May
13-May
14-May
15-May
16-May

Friday

17-May

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

18-May
19-May
20-May
21-May
22-May
23-May
24-May
25-May
26-May
27-May
28-May

Wednesday
Thursday

29-May
30-May

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Review Partnerships re Group accounts
Accounting for Council Tax Information received from Councils
Accounting for Council Tax Information posted in ledger
Accumulated Absences information to be posted
Last day for our share of EMSOU/Collaborations to be entered into Derbyshire's Accounts
Final day for Capital journal entries
Last journal entries for contributions to/from Reserves and Balance Sheet (final position)

JC/TW
MC
MC
TW
TW
JC/SM
JC/PS

Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Codes complete
Check if we need any information from Legal for contingent Liability note eg number of claims for pension challenge
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Information for Debtors/Creditors note complete
Last date for all Statements in the accounts to be completed

Strat Finance
JC/MC
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
KB
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF

Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
JARAC
Preparation of Statement of Accounts
Last date for all notes in the accounts to be completed

JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF
JC/PS/TW/MC/KF

Draft Statement of Accounts Finalised including Group Accounts -sent to be checked
Draft Statement of Accounts Checked
Draft Statement of Accounts Checked
Changes to Statement of Accounts finalised
Statement of Accounts completed

Strat Finance
SA/TN/DF/AD
SA/TN/DF/AD
JC/PS
JC/PS

Start Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Return - for completion by 21 June?? - Date not known yet
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Chief Finance Officer for PCC/Director of Finance to sign off Accounts by this date

JC/KF
Strat Finance
Strat Finance
Strat Finance
SA/TN/AD
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Day

Date

Friday

31-May

Saturday
Sunday
Monday

01-Jun
02-Jun
03-Jun

Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

04-Jun
05-Jun
06-Jun
07-Jun

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

08-Jun
09-Jun
10-Jun
11-Jun
12-Jun
13-Jun
14-Jun
15-Jun
16-Jun
17-Jun
18-Jun
19-Jun
20-Jun
21-Jun

Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

22-Jun
23-Jun
24-Jun
25-Jun
26-Jun
27-Jun
28-Jun
29-Jun
30-Jun
01-Jul
02-Jul

Leave

Task/Comment
Set of signed Accounts to be provided to Auditors and published on website
Statement of Public Rights to be published on Internet
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Accounts open to public inspection for 30 working days

KF
KF
KF
KF

Responsible Task Complete
JC
AD
Strat Finance

Accounts open to public inspection for 30 working days
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Compilation of Final Accounts files/completion of Audit Checklist
Deadline for Outturn Reports (Revenue & Capital) for SPA Board on 8 July ??
Deadline for Treasury Management Annual Report SPA Board 8 July ??
Deadline for Annual Debtors report for SPA Board 8 July??

Strat Finance
Strat Finance
Strat Finance
Strat Finance
Strat Finance
DF/JC
MC/JC
KB/JC

JARAC Final Accounts Workshop

JC/AD/SA/TN

Completion of WGA Return
Completion of RO Forms

KF
MC

Audit of Accounts 24th June until end of July. Ext Auditors doing both Police & Fire at same time. Awaiting confirmation.
All debtor invoices that relate to old year to be sent to Finance Support to be raised

Ext Audit
Strat Finance

Completion of CO Forms

SM/JC
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Day

Date

Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday

03-Jul
04-Jul
05-Jul
06-Jul
07-Jul
08-Jul

Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Monday
Tuesday

09-Jul
10-Jul
11-Jul
12-Jul
13-Jul
14-Jul
15-Jul
16-Jul
17-Jul
18-Jul
19-Jul
20-Jul
21-Jul
22-Jul
23-Jul
24-Jul
25-Jul
26-Jul
27-Jul
28-Jul
29-Jul
30-Jul

Wednesday

31-Jul

Saturday
Sunday
Friday

03-Aug
04-Aug
30-Aug

Leave

Task/Comment

Responsible Task Complete

Strategic Priorities Assurance (SPA) Board

Conclusion of Public inspection of Accounts

Deadline for Audited SOA for JARAC??

CW

JARAC Accounts signed off
Send Accounts to Auditors

JC

Opinion of Auditors required

Auditors

Publish Accounts on Internet by this date
Conclusion of Audit publised on Internet

JC
AD

Audited WGA sent off - not been given dates yet ??
Weekend
Bank Holiday
Annual leave
High risk - management attention required
Medium risk - review by management required
Low risk - no action required

KF
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Day

Date

Leave

Task/Comment
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POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER AND GROUP
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies
General Principles
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The accounting policies
contained in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the
public sector by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities.
With the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 on 22 November 2012 two
‘corporation sole’ bodies, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire and the Chief Constable
for Derbyshire were formed. Both bodies are required to prepare separate Statements of Accounts.
The Financial Statements included here represent the accounts for the Commissioner and also those for
the Group. The financial statements cover the 12 months to 31 March 20182019. The term ‘Group’ is
used to indicate individual transactions and policies of the Commissioner and Chief Constable for the
year ended 31 March 20182019. The identification of the Commissioner as the holding organisation
and the requirement to produce group accounts stems from the powers and responsibilities of the
Commissioner under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below: -

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made and
received. Whilst all expenditure is paid for by the Group including the pay costs of police officers and
staff, the actual recognition in the respective Commissioner and Chief Constable Accounts is based on
economic benefit.
Debtors – these are recognised in the accounts when the ordered goods or services have been
delivered or rendered by the Group in the financial year but the income has not yet been received.
Income has only been included in the accounts when it can be realised with reasonable certainty. Where
there is evidence that the Group may not be able to collect all amounts due to it, a provision for bad
debts is established. The provision made is the difference between the current carrying value of the debt
and the amount likely to be collected. These amounts are set on an individual debtor basis. The
provision for bad debts is recognised as a charge to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for the income that might not be collected.
Creditors – these are recorded where goods or services have been supplied to the Group by 31 March
but payment is not made until the following financial year.

Fair Value Measurement
Some of the non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some financial instruments are measured
at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either: •
•

In the principal market for the assets or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account.
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Valuation techniques used are those appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: •
•
•

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be
accessed at the measurement date.
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted process included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

Accounting for Local Taxes
The collection of council tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement with the Derbyshire District and
Derby City Authorities (billing authorities) collecting council tax on behalf of the Commissioner (the
Police Precept).
The council tax income is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis and includes the precept for the year plus a share of Collection Fund surpluses and
deficits from the billing authorities.
The difference between the income reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Reserve shall be taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The year-end Balance Sheet includes the share of year end debtors (arrears and collection fund
surpluses) and creditors (prepayments, overpayments and collection fund deficits) attributable to the
Group

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. The following have been classed as cash
and cash equivalents:
•
•
•

Cash on hand.
Cash in bank (Current Account, Call Account and Business Premium Account).
Temporary investments with instant access and no penalties.

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the Group’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for
the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2017/18
2018/1916

Appendix B TO AGENDA ITEM 8C
JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

Employee Benefits
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting
standard but it is based on a simple principle that:
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the
future”.
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment,
termination benefits and post-employment benefits.

Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in
the year in which employees render service to the Group. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the
year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (as a surplus/deficit on Provision of Services), but
then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating
Compensated Absences Account so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in
which the holiday absence occurs but have no impact on the level of council tax.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Group to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and when the Group is demonstrably committed to the termination of the
employment of an individual employee or group of employees or making an offer to encourage
voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end.
Post-employment Benefits (Pensions)
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability in
the Balance Sheet (offset by an unusable Pension Reserve) for benefits earned but not yet paid, and
entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for in-year movements in the liability.
Reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement bring back the cost of pensions to the
amount chargeable to the General Fund for the purposes of grant and local taxation).
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Group’s share of investments (if any)).
The Group participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit schemes” as
they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service;
a) Police Officers
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police
officers based on pensionable salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities.
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently the equivalent
of 24.2% of pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The Group is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that must be
paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. Officer’s contributions and the
employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account from which pension payments are then
made. The account is topped up as necessary by a grant from the Home Office if the contributions are
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insufficient to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus is recouped by the Home Office. Injury
awards and the capital costs associated with ill health retirements are paid from the Group’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which
fall due after the end of the financial year.
b) Police Staff and PCSO’s
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational
pension scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year.
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types
of asset, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of the
fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its liabilities.
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’,
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.
Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the net pension liability in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value: •
•
•

Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price.
Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate.
Property – Market Value.

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service cost comprising:
•
•

•

Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned
this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of scheme amendment or curtailment whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of nondistributed costs.
Net interest expense – the change during the period in the net defined liability (asset) arising from
the passage of time charged to Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure line, taking into
account changes in net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments

Remeasurements comprising:
•
•

•

Return on plan assets – excluding amounts included above in net interest, charged to Pensions
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure.
Contributions paid to the pension fund.

Discretionary Benefits
The Group also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event
of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. The Group will report these in the following way if it is determined
that the event has had a material effect on the Group’s financial position: PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2017/18
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•

Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts.

•

Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative
notes to the accounts.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

Financial Instruments - Liabilities and Assets
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the
borrowings that the Group has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement.
The Group has not undertaken any repurchasing or early settlement of borrowing.
Financial assets are classified into two types: •
Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market.
•
Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.
The Group only has financial assets based on the first category of loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans
that the Group has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Government Grants & Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants and third party contributions
and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable assurance that: •
•

The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments.
The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefit or service potential embodied in
the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the
Net Cost of Services (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income (non ring fenced grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve.
Where it is applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to
fund capital expenditure.
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Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition and Measurement
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis,
provided that it yields benefits to the Group and the services it provides for more than one financial year
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following
measurement bases:
•

•
•

Land, property and other operational assets are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (existing
use value). Operational assets can either be specialised or non-specialised. Specialised Assets,
where there is no particular market-based evidence of current value or demand for because of their
specific use specialist nature, are valued at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) as an estimate
for fair value. The only assets to be classified as specialised property relate to the operational
custody suites situated within the various properties. In cases where there is only a small number of
cells, or where cells are now out of use, these have not been treated as specialised properties.
Surplus assets are included at the current value measurement base (fair value), estimated at
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective.
Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed,
whereupon they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.

Where non property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost
basis is used as a proxy for fair value e.g. Vehicles, IT and Communications equipment and other
equipment.
Revaluation
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that the
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value but as a minimum every five years.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised
gains. Occasionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to the account.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: •
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated
gains)
Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Impairments
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they
are accounted for by:
•
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated
gains).
Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2017/18
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Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis for on all Property, Plant, Vehicles and Equipment
assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives, as advised by a
suitably qualified advisor. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e.
freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Component Accounting – where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components
whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated
separately. The component is judged to be significant where the replacement value is above £0.5m or
25% of the asset.
It is the Group’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is
made in the year of disposal. Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment
Account.
Disposals and Assets held for sale
When a non-current asset is planned to be disposed of, it is reclassified as an Asset held for sale. To be
reclassified it must meet the following criteria: •
•
•
•

The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such assets.
The sale must be highly probable (with management commitment to sell and active marketing of the
asset initiated).
It must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value.
The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year.

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell,
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held
for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to
sell.
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain
or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of the disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance
of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used to
finance new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Group’s underlying need to borrow (the capital
financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Reserve Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Group.
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to provide information on policing matters.
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets
held by the Group can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset
held by the Group meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable
amount of an intangible asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
over its useful life. Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in
which they are received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve
Balance; it is therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: •
•
•

Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
Revaluation and impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.

The Group is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards
the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). An annual
statement for the policy on making MRP is required in accordance with statutory guidance; this should
be calculated on a prudent basis. The policy for Derbyshire is: •
•
•

For Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP Policy will be based on the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) at 4% of the opening balance being 2% straight-line basis of the opening
balance of the CFR for that year
For unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be based on the Asset Life Method, equal
instalment over the life of the asset
For PFI contracts and leases that are deemed to be on Balance Sheet, the MRP requirement would
be regarded as met by a charge equal to the element of the charge that goes to write down the
Balance Sheet liability.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by revenue
provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Group has determined to meet the cost of
this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves
Statement from the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor
(landlord) to the lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group has looked at material property leases over £10,000 and for more than 10 years. IAS 17
‘Leases’ includes indicators for the classification of leases as a finance lease. Material leases have
been judged against these indicators.
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a) Finance Leases
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Group is the lessee will be recognised on the
Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability.
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line).
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way
as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group. Depreciation to be charged over the lease term if
this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
Where an asset is identified as a finance lease, and where the Group is the lessor, it will be written out
of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. The carrying amount is written off to Other Operating Expenditure
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the authority’s net investment in the lease, is
credited to the same line, matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. The lease
rentals received write-down the lease debtor and the finance income is credited to the Financing &
Investment Income & Expenditure line.
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt.
b) Operating Leases
i) Lessee – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Group is the lessee, the rentals will be charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.
ii) Lessor – Property, Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Group is the lessor, shall be retained in the
Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts
The Group has entered into two PFI arrangements, Ilkeston Police Station and St Mary’s Wharf DHQ at
Derby. The first affected the accounts from 1998/99, the second from 2000/01. Both have a continuing
commitment by the Group for 30 years. PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the
responsibility for making available the non-current assets needed to provide the services passes to the
PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes
and has control over the residual interest in the property at the end of the arrangement (if exercised), the
Group carries the non-current assets under the contracts on the Balance Sheet as part of Property,
Plant and Equipment.
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investments.
PFI assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property,
plant and equipment owned by the Group.
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year should be analysed into five elements: •

Fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

•

Finance cost – an interest charge of 9.114% for Ilkeston PFI and 7.917% for Derby PFI on the
outstanding Balance Sheet Liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

•

Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract. For
both the Group’s PFI schemes there is no contingent rent as the property element of the fee paid to
the PFI operator is not indexed.
PCC and PCC Group for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2017/18
2018/1923

Appendix B TO AGENDA ITEM 8C
JARAC
13 FEBRUARY 2019

•

Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI
operator. This is also the MRP charge for PFI schemes.

•

Lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as fixed assets on the Balance Sheet if the costs are of a
capital nature or if the costs are revenue debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or
amount. There are three criteria:
•
•
•

The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.
It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation.
A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks
and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months).
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where
a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Reserves
Usable Reserves - the Group’s General Revenue Balances are held in the General Reserve to
generally support the budget. The Group also maintains a number of specific ‘earmarked’ reserves for
future expenditure on either policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by
appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve Balance. When revenue expenditure to be financed
from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
relevant reserve is then debited with an equivalent amount which is appropriated back into the General
Reserve Balance so that the expenditurere is not net charged against Council Tax for the expenditure.
Also held under usable reserves are those that support the financing of capital (Capital receipts reserve
and Capital Grants unapplied).
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for noncurrent assets (Capital Adjustment Account, Revaluation Reserve, Deferred Capital Receipts),
retirement and employee benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated
Absences Account) and Accounting for local taxes (Collection Fund Adjustment Account). These do not
represent usable resources for the Group.
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Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all
VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them.

Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Group in conjunction with other venturers
that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a
separate entity. The Group recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities
that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the
expenditure its incurs and the share of income it earns from the activity of the operation.

Joint Ventures
Joint Ventures are arrangements under which two or more parties have contractually agreed to share
control, such that decisions about activities that significantly affect returns require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control, and joint ventures have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint Ventures have their own legal entity. They are accounted for using the equity
method.
The Joint Venture between Derbyshire Police and Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service was formed
under a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP). The Joint Venture operates an Income and Expenditure
Account, the LLP Board can re-distribute 75% of any profits back to partners (Police and Fire). Due to
the timing of the LLP accounts Derbyshire Police will account for any profit in the following financial
year.
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CHIEF CONSTABLE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies
General Principles
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The accounting policies
contained in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the
public sector by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities.
The Accounting Policies below also reflect the powers and responsibilities of the Chief Constable as
designated by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Home Office Financial
Management Code of Practice for the Police Service, England and Wales 2013. The Accounting
policies defined here are consistent with local regulations, local agreement and practice as well as the
PCC Group policies.
The Accounts cover the 12 months to 31 March 20198.

Cost Recognition
All expenditure is paid for by the Commissioner including the wages of police officers and staff and no
actual cash transactions or events take place between the two entities. Costs are however recognised
within the Chief Constable’s Accounts to reflect the financial resources consumed at the request of the
Commissioner and the economic benefit this brings about. For instance an economic benefit is
recognised to reflect the utilisation of the Commissioner owned Estate, which mirrors depreciation of
property.

Accruals of Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made: •
•
•

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.
Expenses in relation to services received (includinged services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.
Short term compensated absences are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in the
period in which officers or staff render the service which entitles them to the benefit, not necessarily
when they receive the benefit. The cost of leave earned, but not taken at the end of the financial
year is recognised in the financial statements of the Chief Constable to the extent that staff are
entitled to carry forward a limited amount of leave into the following year.

Fair Value Measurement
Some of the non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some financial instruments are measured
at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either: •
•

In the principal market for the assets or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account.
Valuation techniques used are those appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: •
•
•

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be
accessed at the measurement date.
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted process included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Chief Constable’s financial
performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the Chief Constable’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Employee Benefits
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting
standard but it is based on a simple principle that:
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the
future”.
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment,
termination benefits and post-employment benefits.

Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in
the year in which employees render service to the Chief Constable. An accrual is made for the cost of
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken
before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is
charged to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (as a surplus/deficit on Provision of
Services), but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Short Term
Accumulating Compensated Absences Account so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief Constable to terminate
an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and when the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the termination of
the employment of an individual employee or group of employees or making an offer to encourage
voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them
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with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end.

Post-employment benefits
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability and
a pensions reserve in the Balance Sheet and entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for movements in the liability relating to the employee pension schemes in which the Chief
Constable participates (with reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement back to the true
cost of pensions).
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Chief Constable’s share of investments (if any)).
The Chief Constable participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit
schemes” as they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service.
a) Police Officers
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police
officers based on final salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities.
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently the equivalent
of 24.2% of pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The Chief Constable is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that
must be paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. Officer’s contributions
and the employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account from which pension payments are
then made. This will be topped up as necessary by the Home Office if the contributions are insufficient
to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus will be recouped by the Home Office. Injury awards
and ill health retirements will continue to be paid from the Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which
fall due after the end of the financial year.
b) Police Staff and PCSO’s
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational
pension scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year.
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types
of assets, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of
the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its
liabilities.
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’,
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.
Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: •
•
•

Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price.
Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate.
Property – Market Value.

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
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Service cost comprising:
•
•

•

Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned
this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of scheme amendment or curtailment whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of nondistributed costs.
Net interest expense – the change during the period in the net defined liability (asset) arising from
the passage of time charged to Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure line, taking into
account changes in net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments

Remeasurement comprising:
•
•

•

Return on plan assets – excluding amounts included above in net interest, charged to Pensions
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure.
Contributions paid to the pension fund.

The Chief Constable’s accounts include the pension costs, assets and liabilities for all staff, including
those employed directly by the Commissioner. The scheme assets and liabilities for the two corporation
soles are pooled, any pro rota would not be accurate as valuing the fund is based on various
assumptions. The effect of including all of the pension figures in the Chief Constable’s accounts has no
material effect on the accounts.
Discretionary Benefits
The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. The Chief Constable will report these in the following way if it is
determined that the event has had a material effect on the Chief Constable’s financial position: •

Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts.

•

Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative
notes to the accounts.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

Non-Current Assets – Vehicles, Plant, Furniture, Equipment and Assets under
Construction
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment.
Recognition and Measurement
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis,
provided that it yields benefits and the services it provides for more than one financial year and that the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.
Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed, whereupon
they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.
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Where assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as
a proxy for fair value e.g. vehicles, IT and communications equipment.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment assets on a straight line
basis by the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives, as advised by a
suitable qualified advisor.
It is policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is made in the
year of disposal. Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and
controlled by the Chief Constable as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Chief Constable.
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to provide information on policing matters.
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets
held can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held meets this
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible
asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over its useful life.
Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in which they are
received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve Balance; it is
therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: •
•

Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.

The Chief Constable is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or amortisations.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor (landlord) to the
lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.
a) Finance Leases
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee will be recognised on
the Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability.
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line).
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way
as vehicle, plant and equipment owned by the Chief Constable. Depreciation to be charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.
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ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
Where an asset is identified as a finance lease, and where the Chief Constable is the lessor, it will be
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. The carrying amount is written off to Other Operating
Expenditure as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the authority’s net investment in
the lease, is credited to the same line, matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance
Sheet. The lease rentals received write-down the lease debtor and the finance income is credited to the
Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure line.
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt
and recognised in the accounts of the Commissioner and Group.

b) Operating Leases
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee, the rentals will be
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.
ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Chief Constable is the lessor, shall be retained
in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or
amount. There are three criteria:
•
•
•

The Chief Constable has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.
It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation.
A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year that the Chief Constable becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months).
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.
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Reserves
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for noncurrent assets (Capital Adjustment Account and Revaluation Reserve), retirement and employee
benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account. These do not
represent usable resources for the Chief Constable.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Chief Constable does not submit a VAT return as the Commissioner submits a single VAT return on
behalf of the Group. Expenditure in the Chief Constable’s Income and Expenditure Statement excludes
any amounts relating to VAT as all VAT is remitted to/from HM Revenue and Customs.

Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken in conjunction with other venturers that involve the
use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The
Balance Sheet of the Group recognises the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs. The
Chief Constable Accounts include Derbyshire’s share of running these operations as part of the Income
and Expenditure Statement.
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